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Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the
“Company” or “Sansheng Holdings”, together with its subsidiaries,
collectively referred to as the “Group”) is principally engaged in
property development and sale, and property investment. Mr. Lin
Rongbin, the de facto controller of Sansheng Group, successfully
acquired the equity interests in the Company in April 2017. Following
the completion of the acquisition, the Group continued to explore
potential business opportunities and seek sustainable development,
and adopted “Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.”(Stock code:
2183) as its company name.

Since 2018, the Group has unceasingly expanded its project coverage
with a focus on the Western Straits Economic Zone, the Yangtze
River Delta Economic Zone and the Bohai Economic Rim, and has
successively acquired land plots in Fuzhou, Zhangzhou and Ningde
in Fujian; Rudong Nantong and Wuxi in Jiangsu; Wenzhou, Zhejiang;
Jinan, Shandong and other regions. In the future, the Group will
be committed to providing customers with high-quality residential
products and living services in a pleasant living environment.

While it is the Group’s intention to enhance its income from
existing investment properties, it also intends to actively seek new
opportunities in property development and carry out more mergers and
acquisitions, especially in the residential property development market
in the Mainland China. In the future, the Group will adhere to its
development strategy of “high caliber team”, “superior product” and
“precise investment” to actively identify land in prime locations and
suitable for property development and investment in order to increase
its land reserve and promote further development of the Group.
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Corporate Information

TREH

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Rongbin (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Xuan (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xiao Zhong
Mr. Xu Jianwen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Pan Dexiang

Mr. Yuan Chun
Mr. Zhong Bin

Company Secretary

Mr. Cheng Ching Kit'

Authorized Representatives

Mr. Lin Rongbin
Mr. Cheng Ching Kit'

Audit Committee

Mr. Yuan Chun (Chairman)
Mr. Pan Dexiang
Mr. Zhong Bin

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Pan Dexiang (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Xuan
Mr. Zhong Bin

Nomination Committee

Mr. Lin Rongbin (Chairman)
Mr. Pan Dexiang
Mr. Yuan Chun

Registered Office

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Note:

1.

2

Mr. Cheng Ching Kit was appointed as the Company Secretary and an
Authorized Representative on 7 June 2018 to fill the vacancy caused by the
resignation of Ms. Ko Nga Kit who was appointed as the Company Secretary
and an Authorized Representative to replace Mr. Young Ho Kee Bernard on
10 April 2018.
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Corporate Information (continued)

TERER(E)

Head Office and Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong

Room 3207

The Gateway Tower 6
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Principal Bankers
Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch

China

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd

Auditor

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Cayman Islands Share Registrar and Transfer
Office

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House, 3rd Floor
24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman, KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Share Information

Place of listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Main Board

Stock code: 2183

Board lot: 2,000 shares

Financial year end: 31 December

Website

www.sansheng.hk
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Significant Events of the Group

FREXFREL

February 2 A

The Group successfully acquired Future City (F&E
%), a commercial and residential project in Langgqi,
Fuzhou, Fujian.

AEBERNEREZRMNRIKEERR - KRB -

The Group successfully acquired Binjiang
International (BT ER), a project in Xiapu, Ningde,
Fujian.

AEBEKINEREEEEEBRER -BTHE -

March 3 A

Awarded as “2018 China Real Estate Enterprise
with Capital Value Excellence” by Guandian Real
Estate New Media.
EREBRIMENRIEREN[2018hBEFEERE
BEEBRE]-

Crina Real Estate Fashon Awards
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April 4 B

Sansheng Land Development Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into a sales
and purchase agreement to acquire the entire
equity interest of Wuxi Xidong Automobile Plaza
Development Co., Ltd.* (#EiHHRTBESLFHER
fR 2 7)), which holds a parcel of land situated at
Dongting Town, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province, the
People’s Republic of China, from an independent
third party.
CREMBERBERAR(ARGIZEZEWERAR)ET
VEEWE  UWMBYE=-REEHHRTEES
RBEERAF 2 2AMAE - ZARFA — BN E
ARKRBEI#HE B TR=H L L) -

* The English translation is for identification purpose only.

May 5 A

Awarded as “Top Ten PRC Listed Real Estate
Enterprises in terms of Growth and Development
Capability” by Yihan Think Tank.
KECHEEREN [PELETREEXNREREN T
981

Awarded as “Hong Kong-listed Mainland Real
Estate Companies — Top 10 of Investment Value”
jointly issued by the Enterprise Institute of
Development Research Centre of the State Council,
Real Estate Research Institute of Tsinghua University
and China Index Academy.

RERBIRERARP ODERRN  BEREREM
EM TP AN B HE R Te e Bt & AR B e [ B K BEAE
B LEMEMERRIREMEETOP10]

The Group successfully acquired two residential
projects, namely Yuefu Garden and Jiangcheng
Town, in Pingyang, Wenzhou, Zhejiang.

AREE IR IR M F 5 /M EE I8 B -1 T E
FOTHE -

The Group successfully acquired a commercial and
residential project, The Puyue Bay City, in Tingjiang,
Fuzhou, Fujian.

AEBRINERBRZEMNZTHERR -ERERE

The Group successfully acquired a commercial and
residential project, Puyue Mansion (Phase ), in
Changle, Fuzhou, Fujian.

AEERIVERRERMNRERETE B -BERAA(—H)
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Significant Events of the Group (continued)

AEBAERL(E)

June 6 A

The Group successfully acquired a commercial
and residential project, Sansheng e Puyue Sea, in
Longhai, Zhangzhou, Fujian.
ﬁ%‘%@ﬁ}wﬂ%ﬂﬂ%@_%d\l‘lﬁéiPﬁﬁ&léi B— =% e By
o

The Group successfully acquired a commercial and
residential project, Puyue Mansion, in Rudong,
Nantong, Jiangsu.

AEBERERUT #F R B NREERE — 20 -

August 8 A

Sansheng International Coast was awarded the
“China Real Estate Fashion Awards ¢ 2018 China’s
Investment Value Model Project” by Guandian Real
Estate New Media.

=R e B R ENIREBREN [ R EH
ERRALE « 2018 FRHFEHREEEMEIRE | -

September 9 A

The Group successfully acquired a commercial and
residential project, Puyue Mansion (Phase II), in
Changle, Fuzhou, Fujian.
7;;%%&E}?%HNEE%%J‘\‘IE%%EIE B-BEHA (=
8i) -

November 11 H

The Company completed the exchange offer for
the outstanding U.S.$135,000,000 floating rate
secured bonds.

A FEIFEARE 135,000,000 E0F BN FI R KREZEFIR
REFREORBELD -
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Project Distribution
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Project Profiles
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Zhangqiu Jinan Shandong  The Puyue Bay

LIRS - B

S

il T

It ! !
L i:_|_||u|_-.|_.|5__

Zhanggqiu Jinan Shandong « The Puyue Bay

The Puyue Bay (BE1K/&) is located in Zhanggiu district, Jinan City. It
is west of Shiji East Road, south of Shanquan East Road, north of
Tiedao North Road and east of Shihe Street with well-established
infrastructure in the vicinity and good access to transportation.
This is a residential property project with planning construction
area of 60,032 square meters (“sgq.m.”), total planned gross
floor area ("GFA") of approximately 204,112 sg.m. of which
aboveground construction area is approximately 150,062 sg.m.
and the underground construction area is approximately 54,050
sg.m.. The project mainly consists of high-rise residential buildings
which comprise one 34-storey building, five 33-storey buildings,
two 18-storey buildings, one 14-storey building and one 17-storey
building, and four 6-storey low-rise western-style houses, and involves
partial construction of a one-to-two storey commercial podium and
ancillary public facilities, and the construction of one waste transfer
station and heat exchange station. The project is developed in two
phases. Construction of the first phase of the demonstration zone
commenced in April 2018. Pre-sale of four western-style houses
commenced in December 2018, and the current area available for
pre-sale is approximately 30,864 sg.m..
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Project Profiles (continued)

THE B (&)

Pingtan Fuzhou Fujian « Sansheng International Coast (Phase 1)

BEBMFE o =ZRREIFRE=F (

Pingtan Fuzhou Fujian - Sansheng International Coast (Phase 1)
Sansheng International Coast (ZEXEIBX/& =) (Phase 1) comprises
villas, high-rise residential buildings, underground parking lots and
shops. The pre-sale of the high-rise residential building commenced in
October 2018. The estimated GFA of the high-rise residential building
is approximately 292,249 sq.m., and the estimated selling price per
sg.m. is approximately RMB12,500. The pre-sale of the townhouses
commenced in December 2018 covering a GFA of approximately
13,520 sq.m. and is expected to be sold at approximately RMB20,000
per sq.m.. The estimated GFA of commercial space is 24,742 sq.m.
and is expected to be sold at approximately RMB20,000 per sg.m..
The estimated GFA of the kindergarten is approximately 4,900
sgq.m.. The estimated GFA of the other ancillary public facilities is
approximately 6,531 sg.m.. The estimated GFA of the basement and
empty space is approximately 101,565 sq.m..

8 Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Project Profiles (continued)

8B R ()

Pingtan Fuzhou Fujian » Sansheng International Coast (Phase 2)

BEEEMNEE « =—REIREF(=H)

Pingtan Fuzhou Fujian - Sansheng International Coast (Phase 2)
Sansheng International Coast (Phase 2) comprises townhouses,
high-rise residential buildings, apartment buildings and shops.
The townhouses are scheduled for pre-sale in 2020, covering an
estimated GFA of approximately 33,638 sq.m. and is expected to
be sold at approximately RMB24,000 per sg.m.. The estimated GFA
of the high-rise residential buildings is approximately 69,050 sq.m.
and is expected to be sold at approximately RMB17,500 per sg.m..
The pre-sale of apartment buildings will commence in early 2021
which covers an estimated GFA of approximately 42,000 sq.m. and
is expected to be sold at RMB12,500 per sg.m.. The pre-sale of the
shops is to commence in early 2022 which covers an estimated GFA
of approximately 5,000 sgq.m.. The estimated GFA of the ancillary
public facilities is approximately 1,313 sq.m.. The estimated GFA of
the basement and empty space is approximately 36,050 sq.m..

UDBHE S
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Project Profiles (continued)

THE B (&)

Xiapu Ningde Fujian « Binjiang International

RBEZBESH » BIERF

Xiapu Ningde Fujian - Binjiang International

Binjiang International (& ILEEE) is a residential development
project comprising villas and high-rise residential units. It is south
of Zhanggian Road of Songgang Sub-district Railway Station,
Xiapu County, and adjacent to Luohanxi Park, railway station and
the new bus terminal. The whole project consists of 14 buildings,
namely Sansheng e Binjiang International Building Numbers 1, 2,
3,5,6,7,8,9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 15 and 16, and planned facilities
such as leisure rooms, healthcare stations and beyond. The total
site area is approximately 23,860 sg.m. and the planned total GFA
is approximately 65,306 sq.m.. The master layout plan for the
project was approved in June 2018 and the pre-sale of the project
commenced in September 2018. Construction for the entire project
is expected to be completed in December 2019. At present, the total
area of the project approved for pre-sale is approximately 37,279
sg.m.

10
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Project Profiles (continued)

THE B (&)

Langqi Fuzhou Fujian « Future City
BEBMIRIE o KRR

Langqi Fuzhou Fujian - Future City BEEBEMIRIE o R

Future City (AR2R3) is located on the western part of Langgi Island, FEWMBEUNEEREREESRAE @ BRI
Mawei District, south of the island-entering section of Langqi BT ABESEREAl - FHEAE =W L2 8
Minjiang River Bridge, west of the Duting River, north of the planned |4kt - F/E AR FAA] - }{Eﬁ;‘litfﬁﬂ ==
green space, west of the Area A of Xianghai Xincheng (B/&% Mm% 475,805 $E+ BEEEELN A
#), and the northern side of the Yanhang River. The land area is  173,193F 5K - B T @B EWMH R A - F
approximately 75,805 sg.m. and the total GFA is 173,193 sq.m.. The %ﬁﬁiﬁz PR - RIGR )j@ﬁﬁf@(ijﬁ&ﬁﬁ
main buildings of the project include residential space, commercial —#) - RE|FER T — \F L AFEEB
space, and space for an ancillary facility (kindergarten). The relevant & -_ZT—NWF—AF—HERTEE > BT
master layout plan was approved in September 2018. The first batch ~—Z = —F®T -

of pre-sales is scheduled in January 2019 and the construction of the

project is expected to be completed in 2021.
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Project Profiles (continued)

THE B (&)

Tingjiang Fuzhou Fujian « The Puyue Bay City

BEBBMNTIL « P EBE

Tingjiang Fuzhou Fujian « The Puyue Bay City

The Puyue Bay City (E£1%/&[&) is located between Roads No. 5
and No. 6 in the eastern part of the Yanleiding Mountain Area,
Tingjiang Area, Mawei District. Situated in the old town and backed
by mountains, Minting Lot in Tingjiang Town, Mawei District is
adjacent to China National Highway 104 and boasts quick access to
Dongjiangbin. In spite of relatively fewer commercial facilities, it is
surrounded by Tingjiang Central Primary School, Tingjiang Middle
School and other facilities. It is a suitable homestead location along
the riverside surrounded by mountains with a charming scenery of
Minjiang. The main buildings are for residential and commercial use.
The GFA of high-rise residential buildings, commercial and residential
area and ancillary public facilities is approximately 180,707 sg.m.,
9,888 sg.m. and 7,043 sqg.m. respectively, and the total GFA is
approximately 258,757 sq.m.. The first batch of pre-sale is scheduled
in July 2019 and construction of the project is expected to be
completed by 2021.

12 Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Project Profiles (continued)

THE B (&)

Rudong Nantong Jiangsu « Puyue Mansion

BEBIR « B

ﬁ* M e B
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Rudong Nantong Jiangsu « Puyue Mansion

Puyue Mansion (EEMHAT) is located in Rudong County, Jiangsu
Province, north of Longteng Road and west of Jiefang Road. The
project consists of residential and commercial developments, mainly
including six 26-storey high rise buildings (Blocks 1-6), three 11-storey
western-style apartments (Blocks 7-9) and fifteen 3-storey villas
(Houses 10-24), together with a commercial podium of one-to-
two storey and ancillary public facilities such as a kindergarten. The
total site area is approximately 77,481 sg.m. and the planned total
GFA is approximately 171,200 sq.m.. The project is planned to be
developed in two phases. The construction of the first phase of the
demonstration zone commenced in September 2018. Two high-rise
buildings (Blocks 1 and 2) and six villas (Houses 10-15) are now under
construction. The pre-saleable GFA is approximately 32,297 sq.m..

BT M S

Artists impressions forreference

THEENR « BERF
BTSN REMEBEIA - &
WEER BERBEESRNEAEFE B
% AIBEREFREZEERSE1-61E26
; /$)%7 9fR11E © BIZE10-241R3E : )%*B
BRI 2 2ENBERLYHESRER
é@ﬁéﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬂ,%ﬁ?ﬁ# E%ﬁ%ﬂ%@@_
HEELA171,200F 7K - ZEBRE D
WERRE  F—HrREER - —N\F LA
BT BRI2EESEB(1 - 24R) - 618 BIZE (10-
1588 b Tkt —HE%E’JL EEIEN A
32,297 F 7K o

SR (£ E) ER AT —B—NEFH 13



Project Profiles (continued)

THE B (&)

Changle Fuzhou Fujian « Puyue Mansion (Phase | & Phase ll)

BEEMRE « EHRMT (—H

Changle Fuzhou Fujian « Puyue Mansion (Phase )

Located in Longmen Village, Hangcheng Street, Changle District,
Fuzhou City, east of Square South Road and north of Kaige Road,
the land is for residential and commercial use. The project consists of
nine high-rise buildings, together with a commercial podium of one-
to-two storey. Pre-sale of the project is estimated to be started in
the end of July 2019, and the delivery of commercial and residential
buildings is expected to be completed in December 2021. The
estimated total GFA is approximately 136,435 sg.m..

Changle Fuzhou Fujian « Puyue Mansion (Phase Il)

Located on Hangcheng Street, Changle District, Fuzhou, east of
Huitang South Road and north of Kaige Road, the land is for residential
and commercial use. The project consists of 14 high-rise buildings.
Pre-sale is estimated to be started in the end of September 2019,
and the delivery of commercial and residential buildings is expected
to be completed in December 2021. The estimated total GFA is
approximately 138,496 sq.m..
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Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. ANNUAL REPORT 2018

B =

)

I PRE -

\ {Artists impressions fo efgﬂ

BERMRE « BN (—H)

ZEB R BMN T RERMIZHEERPMN
BESrmBERA - SLHGRALA - L RERE
ENEE - AHEBREIRFE - BEER1
E2BNEERE - ZHBEF T -AFEAR
EERZ —T-—F+-_AXNE®E -
ERHARR MK /5 136,435 F 7 K o

EMERS « T (=)
ZEBUREMNTRLEM B ETES EEEK
A S BEAE s tHmARAETENS
¥ - ABERELA4RSE BT —hF
NEEERSR —E-_—F+_AXNEH
B o [hEt A EEIBEL 5 138,496 F K o



—

Project Profiles (continued)

THE B (&)

Pingyang Wenzhou Zhejiang « Yuefu Garden

ALBE M F 5 o RFE

T E Al

Artists impressions for |eference

Pingyang Wenzhou Zhejiang - Yuefu Garden
Located in the Binjiang Section, City Central District, Aojiang Town,
Pingyang County, Wenzhou City, Zhejiang Province, Yuefu Garden
(f)ﬁif@) is adjacent to Wanda Plaza (23Z&#%) and Yintai Center
$RZ=H0). Binjiang Section is a high-end residential segment in
AOJlang Town in the heart of the new city with great development
potential and well-developed facilities, which is highly recognized by
customers in Aojiang and Longgang. Sophisticated living facilities,
comprehensive commercial facilities and excellent educational
resources are located within three kilometers from the lot. The
Jiudie River Park which is under planning and construction is in the
east. Located along the trunk roads, namely the Station Avenue,
Kun’ao Avenue, China National Highway 104 and Wenwei Road, it
is four kilometers away from the Pingyang Aojiang Railway Station.
The Aojiang Fourth Bridge nearby is an essential linkage for the
integration of Aojiang and Longgang. The plot has a total site area
of approximately 52,180 sq.m. and a total GFA of approximately
156,359 sq.m., of which the saleable area of nine residential
buildings is approximately 116,589 sq.m. with 931 saleable units
in total. Pre-sale of the project started in November 2018 and
construction is expected to be completed in December 2020.

HOLB NSRS o HFE
TR AT T B &N T F 5B E8 T EF O
WRETIRE  BEESGHEERFOLAE -
i=hAR %= =l:I EE/IfEﬁ HE AR - HTI
ZhE BEREINRK BERAEERS
fX% Igﬁiﬁgl%§)5uu—_[ EHUﬂEf}EHL—
NEBHERNEEFREKY  BERER
HEEREY REABBER r@e*m
NE AR BETHE: Elﬁkutb%ﬁ
2@/1042@/?%&% C BEEFGEITE B
i FEETINE : R B{LEZE
& ZH R A E AL & 52,180 F 75
ol iﬁ@ &TEITE#) /156,359 F 7K - Erp{E
EORAEMBELN A 116,589 F K » A&

o

NVNEEE - ZBEBEHER-_Z—N\FE+—AH
ATEE AR ZE-BFE+-ART -
= B (EE) AR AT ZB—I\NEER 15



Project Profiles (continued)
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Pingyang Wenzhou Zhejiang - Jiangcheng Town

ALBRMFRE o TmE

Pingyang Wenzhou Zhejiang - Jiangcheng Town

Located in the Binjiang Section, City Central District, Aojiang Town,
Pingyang County, Zhejiang Province, lJiangcheng Town (T¥#E) is
adjacent to Wanda Plaza (B23Z&¥%) and Yintai Center ($RZ L))
Binjiang Section is a high-end residential segment in Aojiang Town
in the heart of new city with great development potential and well-
developed facilities, which is highly recognized by customers in
Aojiang and Longgang. Sophisticated living facilities, comprehensive
commercial facilities and excellent educational resources are located
within three kilometers from the lot. The Jiudie River Park which is
under planning and construction is in the east. Located along the
trunk roads, namely the Station Avenue, Kun'ao Avenue, China
National Highway 104 and Wenwei Road, it is four kilometers away
from the Pingyang Aojiang Railway Station. The Aojiang Fourth
Bridge nearby is an essential linkage for the integration of Aojiang
and Longgang. The plot has a total site area of approximately 50,746
sg.m. and a total GFA of approximately 151,414 sq.m., of which the
saleable area of nine residential buildings is approximately 112,255
sg.m. with 907 saleable units in total. Pre-sale of the project started
in November 2018 and construction is expected to be completed in
December 2020.
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Project Profiles (continued)
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Gulou Fuzhou Fujian - Sheng Mansion

Sheng Mansion (B%“/A£8) is located at the intersection of Wushan
West Road and Baima North Road, Gulou District, Fuzhou City,
adjacent to the municipal government in the heart of the city central
district. Surrounded by high standard education, administration,
healthcare and commercial facilities, it offers a cultural, artistic and
high-end living atmosphere. The project mainly consists of four 14-
to-17 storey buildings and commercial podium of one-to-five storeys
together with ancillary public facilities. The total planned GFA is
estimated to be approximately 43,502 sg.m., of which the residential
construction area, the commercial construction area, the ancillary
public facilities area, the underground construction area and the
empty space are approximately 28,062 sgq.m., 3,500 sq.m., 1,754
sg.m., 10,126 sg.m. and 60 sqg.m., respectively. The plot ratio is
approximately 2.4. The project commenced construction in February
2019 and is currently in the process of land leveling. Pre-sale is
expected to start in October 2019.

Gulou Fuzhou Fujian « Sheng Mansion
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Project Profiles (continued)
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Longhai Zhangzhou Fujian « Sansheng « Puyue Sea

RBEZFEMNEER o

Longhai Zhangzhou Fujian - Sansheng « Puyue Sea

Located in Binhai New Town Area of Longhai City, northwest to
the intersection of Yingbin Avenue and Binhuwei 6th Road, the
project has a planned site area of approximately 23,457 sq.m., a
total GFA of approximately 49,108 sq.m., and a GFA included in the
plot ratio calculation of approximately 30,494 sq.m.. Surrounded
by magnificent natural landscape resources of mountains, lakes and
seas, the project is positioned as a pleasant real estate development
in the modern Minnan architectural style and ideal for investment,
retirement and vacation. The project planning comprises eight
courtyard houses with 84 units in total, five western-style houses with
233 units in total and 22 shops along the commercial street with a
total GFA of 2,309 sq.m.. The project commenced construction in
August 2018, and is expected to start pre-sale in December 2019 and
be completed in June 2020 and delivered in April 2021.

Shenyang Liaoning - Yifu Project

BEEEGIREERE

Shenyang Liaoning - Yifu Project

The Yifu Land located in Shenyang is currently the Group’s commercial
property project under development. Based on the master layout plan
submitted to the relevant planning bureau in 2013, the Group plans to
develop a commercial complex with a three-level basement consisting
of retail shops, offices, service apartments and car parking spaces with
an aggregate GFA of approximately 186,065 sq.m. on the Yifu Land.

As of the date of this report, the final approval for the master
layout plan has not yet been obtained, mainly due to a number of
issues which the Group and the local government are still working
together for a resolution. The market research and consultancy
company engaged by the Group has submitted a report expressing its
recommendations and advice on the market and product positioning
of the Yifu Land. The Group has started to communicate with local
government authorities, striving to obtain approvals on project
adjustment and construction permits from the local government as
soon as practicable.
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Profile of Sansheng Group
=EERE N

As a strong supporter of Sansheng Holdings, Sansheng Group was
founded in 1988. Starting its business in the industry, Sansheng
Group is engaged in real estate development in over 20 cities with
more than 60 development projects. Through controlling and
investing in various companies engaging in education, advanced
manufacturing, pensions, healthcare and big data, Sansheng Group
has become a large-scale investment group with four business
segments, namely Sansheng Real Estate, Sansheng Education,
Sansheng Health and Sansheng Technology.

Sansheng Real Estate under Sansheng Group is principally engaged
in real estate development. With nearly 20 years of real estate
development experience, it was ranked among China’s top 48 real
estate enterprises and top ten real estate enterprises in terms of
business performance and profitability. Strategically based in Fujian,
Sansheng Real Estate developed its business in several key areas
including Great Beijing Area, Jinan and Qingdao in northern China,
Chengdu in southwestern China and the Yangtze River Delta region
centered around Shanghai, and has been seeking opportunities to
tap into other potential areas. The projects under Sansheng Real
Estate have obtained over 30 domestic and overseas major awards,
including the UN International Garden Community (B4 BIEIEEE
E#L[@), the UN-HABITAT Global Ecological Livable International
Community (BA&BIAEBRINERTEBEILE), The Asia’s Ten
Most Expensive Homes (2T AEBAZ=ZE) and the International
Property Awards as well as “Asian Quality Exemplary Real Estate (Za)M
o E S )

Driven by the industry and capital, Sansheng Group controls Sansheng
Education (Shenzhen Stock Exchange Stock Code: 300282) and Bon
Royce Property, one of the top 50 property service enterprises in
the PRC, and invested in Changelight, a LED product manufacturing
company (Shenzhen Stock Exchange Stock Code: 300102). In 2017,
Mr. Lin Rongbin, the de facto controller of Sansheng Group, became
the controlling shareholder of the Company (SEHK Stock Code: 2183).
In addition, Sansheng Group is a shareholder of “E-House China”
(SEHK Stock Code: 2048), a leading company in real estate circulation,
"B E®R”, a leading company in consumer finance, and Guodu
Securities. It is also a shareholder and a promoter of Huatong Bank,
the first privately-owned joint stock bank in Fujian.

As a comprehensive conglomerate, Sansheng Group establishes a new
brand position of “ideal place for a home with technology, education,
health and life” ( [ #5E%E - 5253278 ). Based on solid real estate
development, business operation, investment and business resource
integration capabilities, Sansheng Group is deeply involved in the
living, education, health and technological manufacturing industry
in close relation with the essence of a better life for Chinese families.
Currently, Sansheng Group has invested in several domestic pension
and healthcare management companies to provide standard and
advanced family healthcare services that are in line with international
standards for Chinese families. Sansheng Group has also cooperated
with Fuzhou Concord College of Sino-Canada (FFANEIFRER) |, one
of the top international schools in the PRC, and FFX# &3, a famous
school in Fujian, to develop its education business. Leveraging on the
abundant customer resources, excellent service network and brand
advantages of Bon Royce Property, Sansheng Group will extend its
property management service chain, and create a highly competitive
“full life cycle” service system.

In summary, leveraging its development strategy of “skilled team”,
“exquisite products” and “precise investment”, Sansheng Group
is striving to create happiness for Chinese families and become a
leading comprehensive investment group in China.
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Honors and Awards of Sansheng Group in 2018
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Sansheng Group was ranked 64th among the “2018 China’s
Top 100 Real Estate Development Enterprises” jointly issued by
China Real Estate Association and China Real Estate Appraisal
Center of Shanghai E-House Real Estate Research Institute.

Sansheng Group was ranked among the “2018 China’s Top 10
Real Estate Development Enterprises in Business Performance”
jointly issued by China Real Estate Association and China
Real Estate Appraisal Center of Shanghai E-House Real Estate
Research Institute.

Sansheng Group was awarded as “2018 China’s Top 100 Real
Estate Enterprises” jointly issued by the Enterprise Institute of
Development Research Centre of the State Council, Real Estate
Research Institute of Tsinghua University and China Index
Academy.

Sansheng Group was awarded as “China Real Estate Fashion
Awards ¢ 2018 China’s Most Influential Business Model
Award” by Guandian Real Estate New Media.

Sansheng Group was awarded as “China Real Estate Fashion
Awards ¢ 2018 China’s Best Real Estate Employers™ by
Guandian Real Estate New Media.

Sansheng Group was ranked 48th among the “2018 China’s
Top 50 Real Estate Enterprises in Comprehensive Strength” by
Yihan Think Tank.

Sansheng Group was ranked 45th among the “2018
China’s Top 50 Real Estate Enterprises in Brand Value” by
Yihan Think Tank.

Sansheng Group was ranked among the “2018 China’s Top
10 Real Estate Enterprise Brands” by Yihan Think Tank.
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Honors and Awards of Sansheng Group in 2018 (continued)
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TOP 100 ENTERPRISES OF FUJIAN

Sansheng Group was ranked among the “2018 China’s Top
500 Private Enterprises” issued by the All-China Federation of
Industry and Commerce.

Sansheng Group was awarded as “2018 China’s Top 30
Real Estate Enterprises in Brand Value” jointly issued by the
Enterprise Institute of Development Research Centre of the
State Council, Real Estate Research Institute of Tsinghua
University and China Index Academy.

Sansheng e The Puyue Bay was awarded the “2018 China’s Top
10 Real Estate Residential Projects in Brand Value” jointly issued
by the Enterprise Institute of Development Research Centre of
the State Council, Real Estate Research Institute of Tsinghua
University and China Index Academy.

Sansheng Group was awarded as “2018 China Real Estate
Value Review-Real Estate Developers with Steady Value
Performance” by the National Business Daily.

Sansheng Group was ranked 28th among the “2018 Top 100
Fujian Enterprises” jointly awarded by Fujian Enterprises and
Entrepreneurs Confederation (BEANDTHEHEPEZTHESD),
Fujian Daily (#&32 B ¥+t ) and Fujian Media Group (1824 &
HERREE).

Sansheng Education was awarded as “China’s Best
Education Investment Performance Awards-2018 Most
Influential Education Institution” by i-EDU, a sophisticated
platform in China’ s education investment field.

Sansheng Group won the “2018 Real Estate Industry Quality
Model Award” from Hexun.com.
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Chairman’s Statement
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As the first year of the official operation of Sansheng Holdings,
2018 is of great significance to the Group. In this year, Sansheng
Holdings continued to optimize the project planning with a clearer
development strategy and enhanced business structure, which
laid a solid foundation for the future development to become the
international capital operation platform and brand showcase of
Sansheng Real Estate Group.

In 2018, the real estate market in Mainland China changed
dramatically and underwent prosperous sales to sudden decline and
rapid adjustments in local markets, which brought great challenges
to the development of many enterprises. Facing the unfavorable
factors of the macro environment, Sansheng promptly responded
with its own advantages, optimized its asset structure in line with the
development direction of strategic industry portfolio, and provided a
strong capital platform support for the Company’s strategic business
development.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRE

In 2018, the 30th anniversary of Sansheng brand, Sansheng took a
new strategic stance of “upsurge at 30" ([ =& ]), and proposed
a new brand philosophy of “ideal place for a home with technology,
education, health and life” ([ S #EE @ ££KI24E8 ) and a corporate
mission of “focusing on the top concerns of Chinese families” ([ &%

PEIKEBEERE]).

Based on solid real estate development, business operation,
investment and business resource integration capabilities, Sansheng
brand is deeply involved in the living, education, health and
technological manufacturing industry in close relation with the
essence of a better life for Chinese families. From products and
services to strategies, Sansheng has accomplished its corporate
mission of “focusing on the top concerns of Chinese families”, which
enriches China’s vision of “better life” and initiate the Company’s
new strategic development.

Ranked among China’s top 48 real estate enterprises and top ten real
estate enterprises in terms of business performance and profitability,
Sansheng Real Estate Brand has powerful strengths with its rich
resources, excellent reputation, high-quality products, professional
talents and passionate corporate culture. These strengths have also
become a solid backing for Sansheng Holdings’ future development.
The Group will serve as an important carrier of Sansheng brand in
the real estate field. By actively expanding its real estate business and
acquisition of appropriate targets, the Group will strive to develop
into a leading real estate enterprise in terms of operating results,
product quality and profitability, and will maximize the returns to its
shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to convey my sincere gratitude
to all the shareholders, business partners and customers for their care
and support for the development of Sansheng Holdings. | would also
like to express my heartfelt thanks to the Directors, management and
employees for their diligence.

Lin Rongbin
Chairman

20 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TR R RS

Financial Review

Contracted sales

As of 31 December 2018, the contracted but unrecognized sales of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB1,141.8 million and the
contracted GFA of the Group was approximately 95,487 sq.m., which
arise from the contracted sales of the projects below, forming a solid
basis for the Group's future growth in recognized revenue.

Details of contracted sales in 2018

Bt %5 [0

HHHE

B2 N\HF+=-A=+—8B ' 4%
EEFIHNERAEREENSHENAARE
LA SAELAAEE ZELHEEEmME
#9/095,487 F K ERKETHHEENE
HHE  BAEERKREHERRANIERIR
HIBEERE -

—E-N\FENHEEFS

Total
contracted  Contracted
sales GFA
51 BRHE
Location/Project E/EE SHEHRE EEmE
(RMB'000) (sq.m.)
(AREFT) (FFHK)
Zhanggqiu Jinan Shandong/The Puyue Bay  [LIEERZ I /B4 /& 38,740 4,139
Pingtan Fujian/Sansheng International Coast @& 8/ =B BEE/EF (—H)

(Phase 1) 559,566 44,301
Xiapu Ningde Fujian/Binjiang International 122 =B EH /BT EIFR 112,553 15,235
Rudong Nantong Jiangsu/Puyue Mansion T &kra R 405 /EEIH AT 105,671 7,850
Pingyang Wenzhou Zhejiang/Yuefu Garden T TBM F /5 /15T E 193,260 14,624
Pingyang Wenzhou Zhejiang/Jiangcheng HLRM /)T 2

Town 132,001 9,338
Total F 1,141,791 95,487
Note: fifsE -

“Total contracted sales” include contracted sales by the Group’s subsidiaries
and joint ventures. Contracted sales data is unaudited and is based on internal
information of the Group. Contracted sales data maybe subject to various
uncertainties during the process of collecting such sales information and is provided
for shareholders’ and investors’ reference only.

Revenue

The Group's revenue mainly derived from sales of properties, with
a small proportion from investment properties rental income.
Total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted to approximately RMB934.0 million (for the year ended 31
December 2017: Nil).

The following table sets forth certain details of the revenue:

[BHHERE | BREARENHBERR LA EREN
BAHE - FOHEBBEREER  DREAKEN
MEHRE BENREZSEOHEERBERDPHFE
gggﬁﬁii CREBROHEBBRERBRRIRE

WA

AEENRATIERAEMEHE - RE/NE
DREKREMEFEEZBRA -BE_T—N\F
TZA=1T—HBLFE ARENHBARLE
MB/AREBICAET(HE_T—tF
T-A=T—HUEFE : &) -

TR BEBRANETER :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—RHLEE

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥T T % ARKETT %
Revenue from sales of properties #2445 Z A 923,765 98.9 - -
Investment properties rental income & &% 2 HEUA 10,206 1.1 - -
Total st 933,971 100.00 - -
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The revenue from sales of properties recorded approximately
RMB923.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 (for the year
ended 31 December 2017: Nil), mainly contributed by the delivered
properties in the West District and North District of Zhanggiu Jinan
Shandong.

The Group’s investment properties rental income recorded
approximately RMB10.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 (for the year ended 31 December 2017: Nil), which was derived
from commercial investment properties in Harbin and Qingdao.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales mainly represents the cost directly related to the
development of the Group’s properties. It comprises cost of land use
rights, acquisition premium, construction costs, decoration costs,
capitalized interest expenses and finance cost of advance payment.
For the year ended 31 December 2018, cost of sales amounted to
approximately RMB878.8 miillion (for the year ended 31 December
2017: Nil).

Gross profit and margin

For the year ended 31 December 2018, gross profit amounted to
approximately RMB55.2 million (for the year ended 31 December
2017: Nil). Gross profit margin was approximately 5.9% for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (for the year ended 31 December 2017:
Nil).

Net valuation gain on investment property

During the year, the Group recorded unrealized net fair value gain
on investment properties in Hong Kong, Qingdao and Harbin of
approximately RMB1.5 million. An unrealized fair value gain of
approximately RMB33.6 million was recorded in 2017.

Other loss/income

These mainly comprised net exchange loss, bank interest income,
mark-to-market unrealized fair value changes on the financial assets
and fair value changes on derivative financial instruments. The
Group's other income decreased from approximately RMB41.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to other loss of approximately
RMB43.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018. Such
decreases were mainly due to the turnaround of exchange gain of
approximately RMB12.2 million from the year ended 31 December
2017 to exchange loss of approximately RMB41.0 million in the
current year. The exchange loss was mainly due to the issuance of
bonds in an amount of USD135.0 million by the Group during the
year and the USD against the RMB appreciating by more than 5% in
this year. Besides, the Group’s mark-to-market unrealized fair value
gain on the financial assets of approximately RMB29.2 million for the
previous year changed to a loss of approximately RMB10.6 million in
the current year.
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Selling and marketing expenses and administrative expenses
For the year ended 31 December 2018, selling and marketing
expenses and administrative expenses amounted to approximately
RMB116.0 million (for the year ended 31 December 2017:
approximately RMB50.7 million), representing an increase of
approximately 128.8% as compared with that in 2017. The increase
in selling and marketing expenses and administrative expenses was
mainly due to substantial increase in the number of properties and
business scale of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
after the Group has completed the layout in all medium-sized cities in
China in 2018, resulting in increase in staff costs, advertisement and
marketing costs accordingly.

Share of profits less losses of joint ventures

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s share of profits
less losses of joint ventures amounted to loss of approximately
RMB1.5 million (for the year ended 31 December 2017: Nil).

Income tax

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group'’s income tax credit
was approximately RMB13.3 million. The income tax credit mainly
included PRC CIT and reversal of temporary differences on deferred
tax, which amounted to approximately RMB5.9 million and RMB19.4
million respectively.

The reversal of temporary differences on the deferred tax was
mainly due to the fact that the investment properties of Harbin and
Qingdao have been leased out. Therefore, the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured using fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is not applicable,
and the corresponding deferred income tax is re-assessed. The
impact of deducting items such as land appreciation tax and business
tax shall be reversed and the deferred income tax was reversed by
approximately RMB31.2 million.

Loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of approximately
RMB166.5 million (for the year ended 31 December 2017:
approximately RMB0.02 million).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, basic loss per share was
approximately RMB39.72 cents (for the year ended 31 December
2017: RMBO0.00 cents).

The higher loss in the current year was mainly due to the augment
in the Group’s scale of financing resulting in increased total interest
costs, and interest expenses rising from approximately RMB36.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately
RMB95.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018, thus the
gross profit was offset by the increase of interest costs, selling and
marketing expenses and administrative expenses during the current
year. The majority of the land development projects newly explored
by the Group were under construction and/or at the pre-sale stages
and criteria for recognition of revenue were not satisfied and certain
operating costs during the year were not offset by corresponding
revenue.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash status

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
(including fixed deposits and restricted deposits) amounted to
approximately RMB406.2 million (31 December 2017: approximately
RMB848.4 million), of which approximately 46% were held at
banks in Hong Kong (31 December 2017: 49%) and the remaining
approximately 54% were deposited with banks in the PRC (31
December 2017: 51%). The Group has unutilised credit facilities
amounted to approximately RMB3,522.6 million as at 31 December
2018 (31 December 2017: approximately RMB4,726.8 million). The
unutilised credit facilities from banks and financial institutions of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB723.7 million as at 31
December 2018 (31 December 2017: approximately RMB1,226.8
million). The Group has completed the exchange offer in November
2018 to exchange USD135.0 million of new bonds for the
floating rate secured bonds due 2018 in the principal amount of
USD135.0 million issued by the Company in November 2017, which
reflecting the market recognition of the Group in terms of its credit
qualifications, financial performance and operating capabilities.

Following the issuance of new bonds in an amount of USD135.0
million by the Group, it has sufficient financial resources and flexible
financial management policies in place to meet the needs of its
business development in the coming years.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank loans and borrowings
from financial institutions was approximately RMB2,502.4 million
(31 December 2017: approximately RMB780.5 million) and bond
payable was approximately RMB894.1 million (31 December 2017:
approximately RMB871.3 million).
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Out of the total borrowings, approximately RMB1,164.4 million
was repayable within one year (31 December 2017: approximately
RMB1,621.8 million), while approximately RMB2,232.1 million was
repayable after one year (31 December 2017: approximately RMB30.0
million).

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs mainly included interest arising from
corporate bonds, bank loans, borrowings from financial institutions
and loans from a related party, which resulted in an increase in total
interest costs as a result of the increased scale of its financing.

The Group’'s weighted average interest rate was 11.6% for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (for the year ended 31 December
2017: 7.2%), and the total paid or accrued interest expense was
approximately RMB95.0 million (for the year ended 31 December
2017: RMB36.0 million).

Gearing ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio (total indebtedness divided by total assets)
was approximately 87.6% (31 December 2017: approximately
75.6%) and the gearing ratio excluding receipts in advance and
contract liabilities was approximately 85.7% (31 December 2017:
approximately 59.9%). The Group’s current ratio (current assets
divided by current liabilities) was approximately 1.8 times as at 31
December 2018 versus approximately 1.4 times as at 31 December
2017.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s inventories with a carrying
amount of approximately RMB2,850.5 million were pledged to secure
the bank loans and borrowings from financial institution of the Group
(31 December 2017: approximately RMB1,226.4 million).

Capital expenditure
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s capital
expenditure amounted to approximately RMB4,308.4 million, which
was mainly attributable to the acquisitions of land projects located in
Fuzhou Fujian (for the year ended 31 December 2017: approximately
RMB1,218.1 million).

Material acquisition and disposal

On 3 April 2018, Sansheng Land Development Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, to acquire the entire equity interest in Systech
International Industrial Limited (the “Target Company”) from
independent third parties for a consideration of RMB205,096,600
(the "Acquisition”).
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The Target Company is principally engaged in investment holding. Its
principal asset is the entire equity interest in Wuxi Xidong Automobile
Plaza Development Co., Ltd, which holds a parcel of land situated at
Dongting Town, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, with a site area
of approximately 50,515 sq.m. and a plot ratio of 2.2 for mixed use
development (the “Land”). The development of the Land is divided
into two phases with a gross floor area of approximately 118,506
sg.m.. The first phase has been developed into commercial properties
with a total gross floor area of approximately 34,235 sq.m., of which
approximately 13,791 sq.m. had already been sold. The Vendors
have agreed to procure the sales of the remaining properties of
the first phase to designated third party(ies) prior to completion of
the Acquisition. The second phase of the Land can be developed
into commercial and office buildings with a gross floor area of
approximately 84,271 sg.m..

The above transaction has not been completed as at the date of this
report.

On 30 June 2018, Fuzhou Shengxuan Investment Limited, a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with Xiamen Yashen Property Development Limited
(the “Investor”), pursuant to which the Investor agreed to
contribute to the registered capital of Fuzhou Shengquan Property
Development Company Limited (“Shengquan”) in the amount of
RMB9,608,000, representing 49% of the enlarged registered capital
of Shengquan after the capital increase. The Investor shall also be
obliged to pay 49% of the total acquisition cost of the land, being
RMB552,720,000.

The above transaction has been completed in July 2018.

In 2018, the Group has acquired interests in a total of 10 new land
parcels. For details, please refer to the paragraph headed “Land
acquisition in 2018" in this report.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has issued guarantees to
banks to secure the mortgage arrangement of property buyers. The
outstanding guarantees to the banks amounted to approximately
RMBO.1 million (2017: approximately RMB421.0 million), which will
be terminated upon the completion of the transfer procedures with
the buyers in respect of the legal title of the properties.

The directors do not consider it probable that the Group will sustain
a loss under these guarantees as the bank has the rights to sell the
property and recovers the outstanding loan balance from the sale
proceeds if the property buyers default payment. The Group has not
recognised any deferred income in respect of these guarantees as its
fair value is considered to be minimal by the directors.
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Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries is
RMB, in which most of their transactions and assets are denominated.
The Group has exposure to USD exchange risk arising from its bonds
in an amount of USD135.0 million issued during the year. The Group
has not taken any measures to hedge the foreign currency exposure
currently but will monitor closely the situation and review such a need
from time to time.

The Group's principal activities are property development and sale,
and property investment.

The Board is of the view that the overall operation of the Group was
satisfactory and its financial position maintained stable and healthy
in 2018, while substantial property sales revenue and rental income
were achieved during the year.

With the support from Sansheng Group, the Group implemented
strategic plan orderly during the year under review, the Group
proactively selected property development projects from those cities
with a robust economy and avoided the projects from areas where
stringent real estate macro-control policies such as restrictions on
purchases and prices were in effect. The Group has obtained a
number of quality projects through acquisition and the public land
auction market, which contributed to its land bank and have laid a
cornerstone for its property development business from in the future.

During 2018, the residential properties in the West District and North
District of Zhanggiu Jinan Shandong have been delivered, and those
in the South District of Zhanggiu Jinan Shandong, Rudong Nantong
Jiangsu, Pingtan Fuzhou Fujian, Xiapu Ningde Fujian and Pingyang
Wenzhou Zhejiang have started pre-sale, and the contracted sales
amounted to approximately RMB1,141.8 million.

Property investment

The Group’s portfolio of investment properties comprises certain
properties in Hong Kong and mainland China. During the year, the
Group's investment properties in Harbin and Qingdao have been
leased out. The Group is proactively considering leasing or selling
industrial building units in Hong Kong. The Group will from time
to time review its property portfolio and make every endeavour to
increase its rental income.

SN R B
ARARRENBRAAKRAZNEKEEBEAEAR
B TBEXHMEELHUAREEFE - A
£ B A NEE1T 135,000,000 3 Tt & 25 M @ &
ELERE R o A B IR I S EUVE (]
SRONE R IE M AMB B ERBE W
BENHIAEE -

AEBETERENEABENHERMEIRE

AEER-_Z-NFHNEBRESNRNREI
MBI ERFIRE - YR FAKSAIEND
FHEWRARESHEA -

E=BREBRNXFT  ~AEEEREFANE
FaBEmMmR - £AEBBEREEE THW
MEGRYEMEERIER - #FRBRERS
[REREFZNRE - BBWEN LA
HEMSERTZEABRERE @ TAK
B LS RORDEREREBRRT
TTEEMAR -

R-ZZ-N\FR AEEURURAFDEL
ARMIERAYED RN IWREAEELSR
B IHBABNR  BERMNTE BEE
BEBATAM FEMEEEE RERMiA
BE  ROHESBORAR®K 1141888
IT o

REME

AEBOYEREASBEETUREER
TEABZYE RAFR  NREBERRR
MENBEENRERENECKEME - A%
EEMEAERGEESEENTEEMIEH
HEXHERY - AREE TR MEH
& WRDMEBEEE DRI ES @ EAKF

=R () BRAT ZB—\EEH 31



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BB LT (E)

Property development and land bank

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 14 property
projects under development or held for future development, and the
total site area of the land bank was approximately 766,997 sg.m.
and the estimated total GFA of the land bank was approximately
2,364,505 sq.m.. During the year under review, the pre-sold GFA
was approximately 95,487 sq.m.. The table below sets forth the

breakdown of property projects:

Location/Project

%/ EE
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Zhanggiu Jinan Shandong/The Puyue Bay

IWRERE L/ EE

Pingtan Fuzhou Fujian/Sansheng International
Coast (Phase 1)

BEEMNTE/ =RERERE (—5)

Pingtan Fuzhou Fujian/Sansheng International
Coast (Phase 2)

BEEMNTE/ =REAR SR (=)

Xiapu Ningde Fujian/Binjiang International

REERER BIER

Langqi Fuzhou Fujian/Future City

TRERRNNIRIE / R A

Tingjiang Fuzhou Fujian/The Puyue Bay City

BERNZI/ENER

Rudong Nantong Jiangsu/Puyue Mansion

LB BINR /EN

Changle Fuzhou Fujian/Puyue Mansion (Phase 1)

BREBMRE/ENG ()

Changle Fuzhou Fujian/Puyue Mansion (Phase I1)

RREBMEZ/ZHR(ZH)

. Longhai Zhangzhou Fujian/Sansheng ¢ Puyue Sea
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. Pingyang Wenzhou Zhejiang/Yuefu Garden

ADRM /R

. Pingyang Wenzhou Zhejiang/Jiangcheng Town
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. Gulou Fuzhou Fujian/Sheng Mansion

B 2N

. Shenyang Liaoning/Yifu Project
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Primary held by the
intended use Group
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Residential 80
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Residential/Commercial 90
FE/mE
Residential/Commercial 90
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Residential/Commercial 55
FE/mE
Residential/Commercial 100
FE/mE
Residential/Commercial 28
FE/HE
Residential/Commercial 92
FE/mE
Residential/Commercial 30
FE/mE
Residential/Commercial 30
FE/mE
Residential/Commercial 100
FE/mE
Residential 8.25
=
Residential 8.25
=
Residential 10.5
=
Residential/ 100
Commercial/Office
FE/BEIMAE
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Pre-sold GFA
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4,139
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Total site area aggregate GFA
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204,112

443,507

187,051

65,306
173,193
258,757
171,200
136,435
138,496

49,108
156,359
151,414

43,502

186,065

2,364,505
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Land acquisition in 2018

In 2018, the Group acquired interests in a total of 10 new land
parcels. The total estimated GFA of the new land acquisition
amounted to approximately 1,343,770 sq.m., of which 600,615
sg.m. were attributable to the Group’s equity interests. Total contract
consideration for its land acquisition amounted to approximately
RMB6,543.0 million, of which RMB2,420.5 million was payable
by the Group according to its equity interests in relevant projects.
Based on the Group’s attributable GFA acquired and the attributable
acquisition considerations, the Group’s average land acquisition cost
in 2018 was approximately RMB4,030 per sg.m..

Equity
Primary interest held Total
Location/Project intended use by the Group consideration
BEEFE S 1]
e /EE RERE R WEAR
(%) (RMB'000)
(AREFT)
1. Langqi Fuzhou Fujian/Future City Residential/ 100 750,000
Commercial
REBMERIR/ AR FE/E%
2. Longhai Zhangzhou Fujian/ Residential/ 100 265,000
Sansheng ¢ Puyue Sea Commercial
BREMER/ =2 o 21T FE/Ex
3. Rudong Nantong Jiangsu/Puyue Mansion Residential/ 2 367,652
Commercial
THRBIR/EHR frx/m%
4. Xiapu Ningde Fujian/Binjiang International Residential/ 55 93,000
Commercial
RREZER/BLER fFE/Ex
5. Changle Fuzhou Fujian/Puyue Residential/ 30 1,200,000
Mansion (Phase 1) Commercial
REBMRE/ZNR(—H) fFx/m%
6. Changle Fuzhou Fujian/Puyue Mansion Residential/ 30 454,000
(Phase Il Commercial
REEMRE/ZNR(ZH) ffx/m%
7. Tingjiang Fuzhou Fujian/The Puyue Bay City ~ Residential/ 28 1,128,000
Commercial
BREMTII/EER FE/Ex
8. Gulou Fuzhou Fujian/Sheng Mansion Residential 10.5 688,000
RERMSUE/ BRE frx
9. Pingyang Wenzhou Zhejiang/Yuefu Garden  Residential 8.25 804,450
LR TR/ SRFE ftx
10. Pingyang Wenzhou Zhejiang/Jiangcheng Town  Residential 8.25 792,910
LR TR THE i

6,543,012

“E-N\FHNRE

RZT—)\F KAEESHKKRBEI10EH L
THEMRER - TE D BB LS
#)731,343,770F J5 K - H o R & B i AN 4
#15600,615F 5K - AEE LRBHNA
RAREBHNRAREG6543.0887T  HASE
BRBEENEBAOBRARERNET AR
2,4205 88T - REAKREEERBENRZE
EEREEHRBRE AREER=_F—N\
FOFHLRBRANREF T AKARE
4,0307T °

Estimated  Attributable
Attributable aggregate estimated
consideration Total site area

LR

i@

(RMB'000)

(ARETT)
750,000 75,805 173,193 173,193
265,000 23,457 49,108 49,108
338,240 77,481 171,200 157,504
51,150 23,860 65,306 35918
360,000 45,476 136,435 40,931
136,200 44,462 138,496 41,549
315,840 70,618 258,757 72,452
72,240 13,882 43,502 4,568
66,367 52,180 156,359 12,900
65415 50,746 151,414 12,492

2,420,452 471,967 1,343,770 600,615

Significant Events Subsequent to the End of the

Financial Year
No significant event affecting the Group has taken place after 31
December 2018.

MEFEHERENHNEXEHS
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Outlook and Plan

Capitalizing on Sansheng Group’s brand, capital, professional
experience and its professional workforce, the Group has been
actively acquiring quality land for its land bank resources through
both acquisitions and cooperation as well as participation in public
land auctions. Meanwhile, the Group will pursue industrial and real
estate integration in order to attain significant enhancement on the
area and quality of land acquired.

The Group has established a new property development platform
through the joint venture company (the “JV Company”) established
together with Fuzhou Sansheng Property Co., Ltd* (f@MZ=EEZE
H¥EMRAF). Leveraging the resource integration, development
capabilities and industry expertise shared between both parties, the
JV Company has, following its establishment, acquired a number of
land parcels in economically vibrant regions in the PRC, such as the
West Coast Economic Zone, Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone and
Bohai Economic Rim, and commenced residential and commercial
property development there.

The Group will continue to enhance the returns from its commercial
properties and their capitalization, periodically review its property
portfolio and make every endeavor to increase its rental income.

Over the past 40 years of reform and liberalization in Mainland China,
the economy has substantially grown with broadening urbanization
and rising income of residents. The real estate market has shifted
from “satisfying the needs of living” to “pursuing a better living.”
The Group believes that, adhering to the aim of developing high-
quality products, the development of quality projects to be launched
to the market can stimulate further growth.

Looking ahead to the coming year, we believe that the macroeconomic
policies in respect of the real estate industry promulgated by the
Chinese Government will continue to maintain a regulatory direction
of “prohibition of speculation in properties,” and city-oriented
policies will be adopted within the real estate markets in different
regions. Under the volatile economic environment, the Group believes
that long-term fundamental factors that fuel the steady growth in the
PRC's property market will remain unchanged.

Accordingly, in order to develop the PRC’s property market, the
Group will closely monitor the changes in market conditions and
governmental policies, allocate resources for deeper research and
business development, and look for appropriate opportunities
through careful selection of investment choices. The Group is actively
expanding its property business and acquiring suitable targets, and on
the back of its strategic geographical layout, cultivating a professional
and highly efficient workforce, and developing of sophisticated
products and quality services. In this way the Group can maintain its
competitiveness and promising prospects as it continuously strives to
achieve excellent operational efficiency and outstanding profitability.

* The English translation is for identification purpose only.
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Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital
Assets

Save for the business plan as disclosed in the section headed
“Outlook and Plan” in this annual report, there was no other plan
for material investments or acquisition of capital assets as at 31
December 2018.

Employees

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of 333
employees, 329 of them were based in Mainland China. Staff
costs (excluding directors’ emoluments) for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately RMB27.6 million (2017:
approximately RMB10.6 million). The Group ensures that the pay
levels of its employees are competitive and in line with the market
trend and its employees are rewarded on a performance related basis
within the general framework of its own salary and bonus system.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BIE ERELSRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the third Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the “Report”) issued by Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (“Sansheng Holdings”, the “Group”
or "we”). This Report aims to outline the specific strategies of and
challenges facing by the Group in sustainable development in 2018.

Reporting Standards

This Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
(the "Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The contents of this Report are also in line
with the disclosure requirements and principles in the Guide. In order
to give readers a better understanding of the Group’s environmental
and social performance, we also disclose the environmental key
performance indicators (KPIs) of property development projects in
Ningde Xiapu, Fujian Pingtan and Jinan Zhangqiu regions.

Reporting Scope

This Report focuses on the overall performance in practicing
sustainable development and fulfilling corporate social responsibility
of the Group’s core businesses from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2018 (the “Year” or “Reporting Period”). Unless otherwise stated,
the Report covers the core business directly controlled by Sansheng
Holdings.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Reporting Language
This Report is published in Traditional Chinese and English versions. If
there is any ambiguity, the Traditional Chinese version shall prevail.

Report Feedback

For detailed information on corporate governance of the Company,
please refer to the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”
in this annual report and the official website of Sansheng Holdings
(www.sansheng.hk). We value your opinion on this Report. If you
have any enquiries or suggestions, please feel free to e-mail us at
(ir@sansheng.hk).

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

With the principle of “Stay true to the mission, dedicate to the best”,
the Group has become a benchmark in property development and
property investment. During the Year, we focused on creating value
in four major areas, including “Compliance Operation”, “Employee
Care”, "Environmental Protection” and “Community Engagement”
with a commitment to achieve the vision of “Profession makes
achievements, time witnesses value realization; operates sustainably
for becoming a one-century enterprise”.

Compliance
Operation
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Corporate Social Responsibility Steering Group

The construction projects of Sansheng Holdings lead green
development. In order to ensure the fulfillment of social responsibility
in every operation link, we set up a corporate social responsibility
steering group to provide further guidance and practices. The Board
of directors of the Group are fully responsible for the decision-
making regarding the ESG strategies, reporting and assessment and
identifying related risk management and internal control system to
improve overall environmental and social performance.

Major responsibilities of the corporate social responsibility steering
group are as follows:

o Identify environmental, social and governance issues that are
relevant and significant to the Group’s operation and/or affect
shareholders and other important stakeholders;

o Maintain the operation of the corporate social responsibility
management system and enhance employees’ awareness of
corporate social responsibility;

o Promote implementation of various environmental, social and
governance policies in all departments;

o Ensure that the Group is in compliance with requirements under
relevant laws and regulations, and supervise and respond to the
latest environmental, social and governance issues; and

o Make relevant recommendations to the Board as and when
appropriate to enhance the Group’s environmental, social and
governance performance

COMPLIANCE OPERATION

Anti-corruption

Since its establishment, guided by the win-win operation principles
of honesty and trustworthiness, integrity and law compliance and
mutual benefit, the Group strictly abides by the laws and regulations
of the Anti-Corruption and Bribery Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China,
with zero-tolerance for all forms of corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering. We have formulated the “Audit and
Supervision System of Sansheng Holdings”( { = B4Rk R85
REH|E) ), “Conflict of Interests Reporting System of Sansheng
Holdings" ( { =B Fz=BEZRARSIE) ) and “Integrity Operation
Commitment” (FRZALZEFHE) ), and publicized the relevant
systems in the office system (“OA system”). When carrying out major
engineering projects, companies and suppliers that have established
cooperative relationships with Sansheng Group must sign the
“Integrity Operation Commitment” ( {FEZ4E&HF2E) ), and both
parties must perform the contract terms and assume responsibility
according to the laws to protect the rights and interests. In addition,
we takes serious attention to internal staff's understanding of the
regulations, the audit department for risk internal control regularly
conducts trainings required by systems to remind employees to follow
the code of conduct. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
experience any cases involving corruption litigation.
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Customer Privacy

As the Group’s business involves property sales, we attach great
importance to customer privacy and the procedures for regulating
the customer data handled by sales teams, and has formulated the
“Management on Strengthening the Confidentiality of Mingyuan
System Customer Data” ( ERIRARZESEFERMRER
EIE) ). The marketing department of the Group manages the
information of customers in the system. Employees who need to use
customer information for work are required to make an application
in the OA system with specified information, such as purposes and
related projects. The export of related information is subject to the
approval by different levels. The “Management on Strengthening the
Confidentiality of Mingyuan System Customer Data” ( {B#RIN54RH
REGBEFERMRZREIR) ) also states that employees need to
delete the file in time after use, so as to avoid leakage of customer
data.

We also focus on the impact of former employees on the customer
source, and specially formulated the “Management and Handling
of Customer Data Transfer by the Marketing Department” ( (%3
RIER LR R PERBRHEIEIIE) ). Before handling the
transfer procedures, property consultants must sign confidential
“Commitment Letter” ( {F&&F&EK) ) and assign the customers
they served to other property consultants in accordance with the
“Customer Information Transfer List for Former and Designated
Employees of Project Marketing Department” ( (T8 B 4§25 8 Bk R
AEEFERZEBE) ) to ensure the confidentiality of customer
information.

Customer Feedback

While valuing feedbacks from customers, the Group is committed
to creating high-quality property projects and services by adopting
a customer-oriented model, to create a better living atmosphere
for customers and provide a comfortable living experience. We
have formulated “Reception and Handling Process for Major
Customer Events of Sansheng Group”( { ZBEBEARFEMHE
FERIERTE) ) and “Complaint Reception Process for the Group's
Headquarters”( (R E@HIZFZEFFRIE) ) to standardize the
processing of enquiries and complaints. We also promise to make
timely and appropriate responses to feedbacks and complaints in
order to improve customer satisfaction and implement the service
tenet of “Exquisite living for rich life”.

We have a customer service platform in place to provide consultation,
complaints, maintenance and property service supervision services.
We are dedicated to solving problems for our customers through
customer service email and online messages to lend an ear to real
opinions and suggestions. In addition, the owner can complete the
delivery satisfaction evaluation form after acceptance and home
inspection to conduct evaluations on overall property delivery,
property quality and delivery services, which will help the Group to
gain further improvement and growth. During the Year, the Group
delivered a total of 16 projects involving over 4,000 customers.
We achieved encouraging result that the customer satisfaction rate
of overall property delivery, property quality and delivery service
evaluations were 98%, 97% and 99%, respectively.
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Group Promotion

In compliance with laws and regulations on intellectual property
rights, such as the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Rules for the Implementation of the Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Regulation on the Customs Protection of
Intellectual Property Rights and the Advertising Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Group is committed to safeguarding the
intellectual property rights, patents and copyrights of the Group
and its partners, and ensures that the design and production of the
Group’s promotion contents (including advertisements and sales
brochures, etc.) have been reviewed within the Group, so that the
public can receive complete, true and accurate product information
without involving any behaviors that deceive consumers, including
misrepresentation of gross floor areas or exaggerating merits of the
property.

Supply Chain Management

Sansheng Holdings attaches great importance to suppliers involving,
engineering construction and procurement of materials and
equipment, with an aim to build an “Open, fair and impartial”
procurement tender platform. When selecting suppliers, the Group
follows the tender process of the “Management Measures for
Tendering and Procurement” ( {FRIZHREEIENZE) ), which
stipulates that only on the approved list are eligible for participating
in the tender activities, and provides various guidelines for bidding
methods and their management methods. In addition, we also follow
the “Management Measures for the Inclusion of Suppliers into the
Approved List” ( (#£75 AEEEHE) ) and take the following steps
to regulate the inclusion:

Initial
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Supplier Inventory Check

Through the annual evaluation of suppliers, the Group assesses
whether the listed suppliers can meet the requirements for projects
under construction in the coming year and ensures that there are
sufficient qualified suppliers in each category. In addition, the Group
will remove suppliers with poor performance from the new annual
supplier list. The Group’s Supplier Management Department prepares
a report based on the check situation to set basis for the annual
inspection plan.

Supplier Information Collection

The Supplier Management Department publishes the tender
information on the Company’'s website and the official WeChat
platform, with specifying corporation qualifications and experience
requirements. Suppliers on the approved list are required to submit
the corporate profile, qualifications, performance of the previous
projects and those under construction and certification materials,
management information, financial conditions information and honor
information, for further qualification review.

Initial Qualification Review

Further inspection steps are subject to the Supplier Management
Department’s preliminary inspection on whether the supplier meets
the requirements of the Group by telephone, online inquiry, third-
party consultation and interview. The Department completes the
“Supplier Information Collection and Initial Qualification Review
Form” ( (A ERKERERYIZER) ) with signature, which is
subject to the review and signature confirmation by the competent
personnel of the responsible department to ensure the accuracy of
information.

Supplier Inspection

We conduct on-site or interview investigation for the suppliers who
have passed the initial qualification, and complete the “Supplier
Survey Report for Inclusion” ({(#tHFAEEZERRE) ). The
information needs to be completely preserved to ensure traceability in
the later stage. The report includes the supplier’s quality level, safety
and civilized construction, appearance quality, management model,
performance and credit and performance of contracts capability
during the inspection. In addition, we place greater emphasis on
green and responsible procurement to reduce the impact on the
environment; take into account the good performance of corporate
governance, labor conditions and ethics, and work with suppliers to
achieve a sustainable supply chain.
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Inclusion Evaluation Meeting

The Management Department convenes the working group members
and the inspectors to participate in the inclusion evaluation meeting
to discuss whether the suppliers meet the conditions of inclusion
according to their performance in the “Supplier Survey Report for
Inclusion” ( {757 AJEZEMRE) ) and “Supplier Evaluation Score
Sheet” ( (T ZBRFFHEKD ).

EMPLOYEE CARE

The Group has always adhered to the human resources management
spirit of “Co-creation, Common Progress, Intergrowth and Sharing”,
and is committed to providing employees with a platform to develop
their careers, in order to promote integration of the Group and its
employees. We have compiled the “Employee Handbook of Sansheng
Real Estate Group” ((=mithESESTFM) ), the “Employee
Performance Appraisal Program” ( (B THEMEZFZE) ) and the
“Welfare Management System” ( {i&FIEEHIE) ), which sets out
the recruitment system, standards, processes, employee benefits,
welfares and employee training programs.

Fair Recruitment

Sansheng Holdings strictly comply with the laws and regulations,
including the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Labour Contract Law, the Law on the Protection of Minors and the
Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour. We prohibit employment
discrimination. exploitation of forced labour, and employment of
child labor. We also adopt a zero-tolerance attitude towards any
form of discrimination or harassment behaviors. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not experience any non-compliance cases in
employment of child labour or forced labour.

Sansheng Group always believes that “Talent is the cornerstone of
enterprise development”. Through “Talent Supply Chain Management”
(CAAHAESEEIE) ), we conduct evaluation, planning, and
performance analysis to estimate the future talent demand of the Group.
According to our needs, we will hold the “Youth and Dreams” campus
recruitment activities every year, to actively recruit outstanding fresh
graduates from universities across the country. We also supplement and
expand the pool of talents by headhunting and exploring top talents
in society. During the recruitment process, we take into account the
recruitment cycle, the appropriate employment rate and the extent of
the talent pool, and evaluate candidates according to their education
background, experience and skills, in regardless of gender, age,
nationality and race in a dedication to providing equal job opportunities
and creating a harmonious, fair and inclusive working environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE g keams (B)

Employee Benefits

The remuneration package is an important investment of the Group
in human resources. We regularly review the policies of remuneration
and benefits to attract and retain talents. We adjust the salary and
remuneration of employees per annum according to the market pay
rates, price index, development and changes. In addition, the Group
has developed the “Employee Performance Assessment Plan” ( (&
THEBEZTTER) ). We regularly conduct performance appraisal
for employees, evaluating their performance and determining the
amount of annual performance bonus based on the performance
assessment results to reward contributions and efforts.

As the Group is deeply convinced that employee benefits are an
incentive and condolence to employees, we have formulated
“Welfare Management System” ( (Z@FIEIEHIE) ) to vigorously

EEREA

FHEMNERAEEHANERT —HER
FEEA - 3R APIE B R AT 3 2 48 A RO BUR - A
Wl L BE AT - K RIETEHFHE K
FomERE BRECEBENEFEYHE
THEITTEFHMMAOEE - UL KEGIET
(BTHEMEZRAR) THR/BTHETEN
EiZ MEETERBLEZERSBTH
ESNFREXRSSHE  DOEMMBESR
BAAIZ ] o

SEAEREI®MESRTE T —EABMA
A RHlE TCRAEESNE) REEESR
THEBYREAZENEN 25

provide employees with benefits including:

Paid annual leave (adjusted by seniority), paid sick leave, compassionate leave, maternity leave/
abortion leave, marriage leave, paternity leave, breastfeeding leave, work injury leave, casual
leave, bereavement leave and home leave etc.

BHFRORFERE) AFHRRE =R ERRER B8R RBER WHAR - ITER -
=R BBREERERS

“Five insurances and one fund” - including endowment insurance, unemployment insurance,
employment injury insurance, medical insurance, maternity insurance, commercial insurance
and housing provident fund

[Elg—% - BEEERE - KERR - THRR

Vacation Rights
RAERRERI

Legal Welfares
EEMER

BERR - £5RR - BERRIER

General Welfares

B AEER

The Group provides general and uniform benefits for all reqular employees — including meal
subsidies, high temperature subsidies, holiday gifts, condolence solatium (including marriage,
maternity, and bereavement solatium), birthday vouchers, annual physical examinations,
annual travel, Women'’s Day gifts, Children’s day gifts, film tickets for staff etc.
SEREREABTRHMNERE - S—EOREN - BEEEME - SEMA - HARE -
e (BIELE - £5 BEEMS)  £HEF5  FERR  FEIRE  HaEEY -
REHCYNEIBTS

Job Welfares
B EE A

The Group provides targeted and personalized benefits for employees in different positions
and jobs — including housing purchase discount, car purchase subsidies, transportation
subsidies, communication subsidies, night work allowances, and relocation dispatch benefits
etc.

KERTRBS - TR E TREMSTENE - @A EERN - BREREESR - BERE) -
ZimAAL - BEMAL - RELEMR RERERNE
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Training and Development

With an aim to gather talents in the world and a vision of cultivating
high-quality talents, the Group adopts a “Three-dimensional” talent
training program and strives to improve the talent training system
to enhance staff performance and enrich their knowledge and skills,
maintaining the Group’s competitiveness.

IR

AEBERA BN ATEETR  NER
ATNRAIBER TESREAT RER
HAOTEATEIEER - AR ANER
TEHMBREE  #HRERHEFET -

Tiger Leader Plan [RIF5 &

* Senior Management S E&EIE A8

Tiger General Plan E#5 &
* Project Managers 18 B #84%18

Tiger Warrior Plan [RZE & &l
 Middle-level Management R EEIE A B

Tiger Wings Plan [R5 2

“Three-dimensional” Talent Training Model

[V | AFBEEX

Sansheng “Tiger Junior (‘) 2BX) ” Training Camp

In July 2018, Sansheng Holdings held a training camp for 20 days,
bringing together more than 40 new employees from different cities
and different academies to form a team named “Tiger Junior ( [/)»
B )". The new employees have received professional training
such as corporate culture introduction, capital investment and
capital finance, laying the foundation for rapid integration into the
workplace. Sansheng Tiger Junior Training Camp is an important part
of “Tiger Wing Plan” ( [[RE5FZE] ) which is also known as “Elite
Tiger with added strength” ( [$3#5237%3 ] ) plan in Sansheng Talent
Training System, with an aim to improve the self-management ability
of new employees and allow them to obtain in-depth understanding
of the operation model of Sansheng, thus completing the transition
from campus to workplace, and helping corporate freshmen to
achieve professional development quickly. In addition, the Group’s
senior management will continue to follow up the training and
growth of Tiger Junior and provide appropriate support.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

BRI -

Tiger Warrior Plan

The Group also organizes a series of training programs for middle-
level managers, which are as follows:

Training Phase

R B BR

e lkER

&5 (E)

REE
AEETATEEREEAS — R EIIE
g FREmT

Training Content
BFIRE

Strategic Leading
B 5|

S
o)
49

8°0

Real estate project life cycle simulation activities

IR B 2 4 B RER

Core competitiveness building and strategy implementation for real estate enterprise
PR EZ DT TS RS E b

Analysis and forecast of real estate market situation

PEH EE TS T 25 5 A7 ER TR A

Operation

Orientation
mgEm

Real estate core business logic cognitive activities

P EE R D A R $E R AR AR

Cost management exercise from the perspective of financial operation

ISR ER AR AR B IR ER

Refined management of real estate projects

FEihE TR E R

Market and product strategy analysis of real estate innovation marketing and
benchmarking enterprises

Po b EE Bl & 3H MR IR S A T35 I B SR B 9 AT

Customer value enhancement — real estate customer relationship management

BEPBERT-FHEZFBHEER

Organizational
Development

HERRE

i3

Outstanding leadership
SMEES

Management awareness inspiration
AEEE R

Management behavior practice
ERTRER

Management behavior reflection
ERITRRE

During the training, employees are required to complete challenging
tasks (including task development, solution coaching, program
review), and conduct exercises through the rotation work mode.
Moreover, the management uses tracking and evaluation methods
to examine whether employees can apply what they have learnt in
the training, and improve the content of future training based on the
results of the assessment.

Helh - B TR TR ARBIENERE (RIGE
IR~ R RWE - HRFE)  WEB
WEOTFRABRER EEEE KA
BMEZN T AERE I RREEEIITE
A RAETeREZNERTERRE
AR °
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Health Culture

Sansheng Holdings attaches importance to the health and safety
of its employees, in particularly the construction safety. We strictly
comply with relevant laws and regulations, such as the Law on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases of the People’s
Republic of China, Provisions on the Supervision and Management
of Occupational Health at Work Sites, and Regulation on Work-
related Injury Insurances to ensure that employees enjoy safe and
healthy working conditions. During the Reporting Period, the Group
experienced no accidents resulting in work-related injuries or fatalities
due to work occurred, and no project was rejected for safety reasons.

We have implemented the following health and safety measures:

o Provide vocational risk training and assessment for new
employees;

o Identify job types for site employees and provide them with
work injury insurance, accidental injury insurance and annual
physical examinations;

o Consider the valuable opinions of employees on site safety in
the satisfaction survey and take improvement measures;

. Establish obvious signs;

o Plan sound escape routes;

° Conduct emergency drills on a regular basis;

o Arrange safety inspections for office areas and construction
sites, and take corrective and preventive measures on a regular

basis;

o Record health and safety incidents and their causes by formal
monitoring and reporting procedures
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE g keams (B)

While promoting business development, the Group also attaches
great importance to the sustainable development of the operating
regions. The Group deeply understands that the development and
operation of the property would generate greenhouse gases (GHG)
and waste, and consume energy, water and other natural resources,
having impacts on the environment. Therefore, we actively implement
sound environmental management.

This Year is the first year of construction of the Group’s three major
projects in Ningde Xiapu, Jinan Zhanggiu and Fujian Pingtan. As the
construction projects involve different contractors and the number of
workers fluctuates, the environmental data intensity of the following
items will be calculated in per square meter of floor area. In the
coming years, we will also use a consistent disclosure method for
meaningful comparisons.

Green Building

In the process of project development, construction management,
property management and daily operations, while considering the
basic conditions of real estate such as comfort, location and interior
design, we also actively promote the sustainability of buildings. In
addition, we strictly abide by the environmental protection laws of
the operating areas. There have been no breaches of environmental
protection regulations or major accidents affecting the environment
and natural resources during the Year.

Development and Design

We actively practice environmental protection and energy
conservation during the project development process, and make
material application and waste management more efficient according
to the standards of Fujian Green Building Design Standards, Building
Lighting Design Standards and Civil Building Design General Rules.

Environmental Impact Assessment

We strictly abide by the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Environmental Impact Assessment. Before designing a new project,
we conduct an environmental impact assessment on the construction
site and surrounding areas, and estimate the ecological changes,
biodiversity and pollution caused by the construction during the
development. We also predict, analyze and evaluate potential
negative impacts.

Material-saving Design

In order to minimize the amount of waste generated during the
development of a project, we must have a detailed planning and
codes of practice, and treat the optimization of structural design
as the key link. Based on the characteristics and requirements of
the buildings, and subject to national and local regulations and
requirements regarding structural safety, we reduce structural
economic indicators (steel bar content and concrete content)
effectively through building materials selection, reasonable
structural arrangement, accurate structural calculation and internal
force analysis, and strict and detailed reinforcement design and
construction, thereby saving building materials and reducing resource
consumption.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE g keams (B)

Indoor Environment

According to the requirements of Green Building Evaluation Criteria
and Design Standard for Energy Efficiency of Public Building, we
make full use of natural lighting for the building design, adopt
insulation structure for heat preservation, heat insulation and sun
protection, and equip roof and exterior walls with sufficient thermal
insulation performance to reduce the electricity demand of the
buildings. In addition, we are committed to meeting the natural
ventilation requirements with the design of ventilation opening and
ventilation paths of residential rooms, enhancing natural ventilation
during the summer and transition seasons and further reducing the
need for heating and cooling systems.

Construction Management

During the construction process, we strictly abide by the Construction
Practice Standards and various construction plans made at the
design stage, and strive to reduce emissions of various pollutants.
In addition, we have also formulated the “Administration Measures
for the Engineering Assessment and Flight Inspection” ( { T2&E(4
MFRATIHREERINE) ) to standardize the quality inspection and
evaluation of projects under construction, so that we can identify
problems and eliminate quality and safety risks in a timely manner.
We have strict regulations in place on exhaust management, noise
management, sewage treatment and waste management to reduce
the impacts on the environment, society and households.

Exhaust Management

In order to reduce air pollution, we carry out hardening treatment at
the construction sites, and perform wet drilling, washing dust away
from rock crevices with high pressure water in the drilling process
and reducing dust flying by sprinkling water from automatic spray
heads. Vehicles transporting bulk materials are covered with tarpaulin
to keep the construction site clean and tidy, and avoid transporting
sediments out of the construction sites.

Noise Management

In order to reduce nuisance caused to the nearby residents during the
construction process, we have developed a large-scale construction
noise management system to ensure that the noise level complies
with the requirements of national standard Environmental Quality
Standard for Noise. We also optimize the design of the general
layout, building disposition and noise barrier based on the result
of acoustical sensing and forecasting conducted during the layout
design and construction stage. In addition, we strictly control
the operating time of construction sites. If night-time operation
or continuous operation is required due to technical or special
requirements, a night-time construction permit would be obtained.
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Sewage Treatment

We set up sewage treatment facilities, such as septic tanks and
sedimentation tanks, and ensure that application for wastewater
discharge permits has been made to the relevant departments prior
to the discharge of wastewater at the construction sites. If applicable,
the construction site would operate the sewerage system and the
stormwater collection system independently. The industrial sewage
would be discharged together with the municipal sewage and
would not be directly discharged to the nearby land or river resulting
in environmental pollution. Sewage treatment is operated by the
designated team. We also regularly monitor the wastewater discharge
at the construction site to ensure that we comply with the related law
and regulation. During the Year, the sewage discharged during the
operation of the Group’s three major projects in Ningde Xiapu, Jinan
Zhanggiu and Fujian Pingtan was 21,261.70 m?, and the sewage
discharge per square meter of floor area was 0.06 m*. We will
monitor the sewage discharged during the operation of the projects
in the coming years.

Waste Management

The Group strictly manage construction waste generated during the
construction process. We properly collect, store and dispose of the
wastes in accordance with the requirements of each city. According
to the “Dangerous Goods Management Operation Guideline”
((ERMEIBIEEIEEE) ), we properly collect and manage the
hazardous chemical wastes generated during construction, such as
waste oil, waste gasoline and diesel, and containers for detergents,
methanol and paint, without arbitrary abandonment or release to
the nature to avoid environmental pollution. Sites are equipped
with waste separation facilities, to process some of the recyclable
construction waste into building materials by brick-making machines.
In addition, we classify the wastes as to conduct recycling and dispose
of non-recyclables properly. During the Year, a total of 60,400.00kg
of non-hazardous waste and 21 pieces of used ink and toner
cartridges were generated, and 185 reams of paper was consumed
at the construction sites of the Group’s three major projects in
Ningde Xiapu, Jinan Zhanggiu and Fujian Pingtan. We will continue
to monitor the non-hazardous waste and hazardous waste and paper
consumption in the coming years.
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Low-carbon Operation

As a responsible property developer, we actively pursue low-carbon
operation and mitigate climate change. In line with the national
climate change strategy proposed by the Report of the 19th National
Congress of the Communist Party of China and China’s Policies and
Actions for Addressing Climate Change 2018, we have conducted the
first carbon audit for the Group’s three major project sites in Ningde
Xiapu, Jinan Zhanggiu and Fujian Pingtan pursuant to “Greenhouse
Gas Protocol” developed by the World Resources Institute and
the World Business Council for Sustainable Development and the
ISO14064-1 set by the International Standards Organization. The
GHG emissions during the Reporting Period are summarized as
follows:

Kz EE

ERARTMMERRAE  RABEEHETE
MEE BEREEL REABEKEY
(TR E ) B o B 5 SR {6 52 O KSR £

IR IR Rt RE R FT ATt R el HE R
TRESeAEN(EERERERTE R
Bl AZ L BB ET EC1SO14064-1) * B IR
AEEUNEZER ERELREEZTE
—AEZEE THETEE R RESUE
B o WEHRAEEREE ST

Environmental Performance Unit 2018
BRIERR By 2018 &

GHG emissions
BERBHENE

Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1)

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO,e)

HEOAEREBHA (1)

GHG removals from newly planted trees (Scope 1)
REFAPTRDE R E RS (Hi51)
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)

EIOR = R BB ($605 2)

AR RES
tonnes of CO,e
AE_SrIRE S

tonnes of CO,e
AE_ErIRE S

Other indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3)
Hib R E RSN (HE3)

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 & 3)
BEREHNAE (H51,28&3)
GHG Emissions Intensity
BERBHHEE

Per square meter of floor area

(Scope 1,2 &3)

FY A RERMEE (FER1,28&3)

tonnes of CO,e

tonnes of CO,e

Scope 1: Direct GHG emissions generated from sources owned and controlled by
the Company.

Scope 2:  GHG emissions indirectly generated from electricity generation, heating
and cooling or steam purchased by the Company.

Scope 3: GHG emissions that are not owned or directly controlled by the
Company but are indirectly generated from sources related to the
Company’s business activities.
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As the construction of the three major projects were not yet
commenced in the previous year, the environmental KPIs reported in
the previous year only covered the offices of three projects in Pingtan,
Zhanggiu and Shenyang. In the future, we will continue to conduct
carbon audit annually and expand the reporting coverage. According
to the results of the carbon audit, the Company’s GHG emissions
include direct emissions and removals (Scope 1) and indirect emissions
(Scopes 2 & 3). The GHG emissions were associated with the fuel
consumption of vehicles under the name of the Company (Scope 1),
energy consumption (Scope 2), water consumption, waste landfill and
paper consumption (Scope 3) during operation, etc.

With an understanding of the GHG emissions, we are able to
effectively improve measures on energy efficiency, water resource
management, waste management and paperless office in property
management and daily operations. Some examples are as follows:

Electricity Saving and Energy Conservation

In order to strengthen employees’ awareness of environmental
protection, we strictly require employees to turn off energy
equipment such as lighting, computers, and air conditioners when
they leave the office. Depending on factors such as people flow,
working days and rush hours, the number of operating elevators
would be adjusted. The air-conditioning system automatically
switches between the main unit and its sub-units according to the
electricity load system to improve energy efficiency. In addition, we
closely monitor and analyze the energy consumption patterns of
the Group's properties. Energy-efficient LED luminaires are used in
all of our office, and multiple lighting systems with independent
control switches are installed in different lighting areas to allow
employees to turn off unnecessary lighting systems with more
flexibly, presetting various lighting programs to ensure the proper
use of lighting resources and reduce waste of electricity. We also
provide electric vehicle charging services in the parking lots to
support the development of electric vehicles and save fossil energy,
thus reducing GHG emissions. During the Year, the total amount of
energy consumption during the operation of the Group’s three major
projects in Ningde Xiapu, Jinan Zhanggiu and Fujian Pingtan was
2,517,197.00 kWh, and the energy consumption per square meter
was 6.82 kWh. We will continue to monitor the energy consumption
during the operation of the projects in the coming years.
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Water conservation

Although the Group is not in a high water consumption industry, it
is committed to cultivating good water using habits in employees.
In order to reduce wastage of water resource, we control the water
flow according to office hours, and regularly conduct leakage test
on hidden pipes and check if there is any overflowing problem in
the water tanks. We regularly check the readings on water meter to
ensure the normal operation of the equipment and prevent water
leakage. During the Year, the total amount of water consumption
during the operation of the Group’s three major projects in Ningde
Xiapu, Jinan Zhanggiu and Fujian Pingtan was 60,751.00 m?, and the
water consumption per square meter was 0.16 m3. We will continue
to monitor the water consumption during the operation of the
projects in the coming years.

Precious Resources

The Group promotes office automation through replacing the paper-
based office administrative system with an electronic one in order
to cherish the earth’s resources, improve the work efficiency and
reduce the administrative cost. We encourage our employees to use
electronic communication technology to transfer information so as
to reduce the paper consumption. For files that must be printed,
employees reuse papers or adopt double-sided printing. In addition,
we give priority to the purchase of reusable, refilling or recyclable
products to reduce the use of disposable and non-recyclable
products. In terms of event planning and management, we purchase
utensils with less packaging to reduce waste.
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COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Sansheng Group, as a parent company of the Group, has established
the leading role of committing to public welfare and shouldering
the corporate social responsibility. Over the years, contributions
have been made to poverty alleviation, student assistance and care
for disadvantaged groups. Since 2015, Sansheng Group has been
awarded “2018 Responsible Brand Award” for four consecutive
years, by generously donating and organizing the following charity
activities during the Year.

Public welfare brand “Love Guards”

With determination, Sansheng Group has proceeded “Making a
difference in life with life” and created a public welfare brand named
“Love Guards”. Sansheng Group has participated in or founded
more than 300 public welfare projects to date. In 2018, Sansheng
Group continued to convey the spirit of great love through pragmatic
actions. Public welfare festivals, visited poor families, assisted in public
health and welfare have been held, and to make donations for poor
students, take up corporate social responsibility and disseminate
the positive energy of “Sansheng” brand. In order to demonstrate
care for women'’s health and people’s livelihood, Sansheng Group
has donated RMB200,000 to the Fujian Women and Children’s
Development Foundation.

Student Assistance and Welfare

During the Year, Sansheng Group launched various student assistance
and welfare activities in order to improve the development of basic
education and enhance the quality of science education in the
cities. Sansheng Group donated RMB23 million to set up education
fund for the Affiliated High School of Fujian Normal University, and
encouraged merchants of Fuzhou to promote a number of public
welfare activities such as the township revitalization strategy. In
addition, we brought the “Love Guards” charity to the Ershilidian
Town Central Primary School in Hutubi County, Xinjiang, and
donated more than RMB100,000 to that school to establish the
“Sansheng School”, which is dedicated to traditional culture
education.
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Targeted Poverty Alleviation

Under the theme of “Public Welfare in Warm Winter”, the Sansheng
Group responded to the call of the central government and focused
on precise poverty alleviation to practice corporate social responsibility
with practical actions. Staff representatives of Sansheng Group visited
the Group's target of precise poverty alleviation, Minging County.
They visited poor families and encouraged them to strive for achieving
continuous self-improvement. In addition, they also sent gifts such
as rice, cooking oil, quilts, warm packs for children and warm
condolences.

| B 3

Y,
A RN Y AN

Looking forward, we will follow the steps of Sansheng Group and
continue to assume the role of public welfare practitioner and
communicator, gradually implementing the corporate belief of “Be
with warmth, quality and responsibility”, inspiring more people to
participate in public welfare activities through practical actions, and
making more contributions to the community.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
R -2 RERSME (B)

APPENDIX I: SUSTAINABILITY DATA fHsg— : WISERESERE

STATEMENTS

Environmental Performance i 2018

RIBERR D 2018 &

GHG Emissions

BEREHRE

Direct emissions (Scope 1) tonnes of CO,e 110.50

HEAERBYR(HE1) ABE_E(tiRE S

GHG removal from tree planting (Scope 1) tonnes of CO,e 59.32

EEARTR O REERETRE (8 1) NHE_EfbiRE S

Indirect emissions (Scope 2) tonnes of CO,e 2,042.05

50 = RS (8685 2) AHE_EftiRE S

Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) tonnes of CO,e 40.72

H a0 R = RS R (#853) N _EftiRE S

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 & 3) tonnes of CO,e 2,133.96

BERBENAS (H51,28&3) AHE_E(LiRE S

Total GHG emissions intensity (per square meter of floor tonnes of CO,e/square meter 0.01

area) R —ULiRE &/ FHK
HRERBHRGRE (BF A KEHEERE)

Fuel Consumption

Gasoline consumption by the motorcade litre 25,000.00

BRERNTUHE nF

Diesel consumption by the motorcade litre 20,000.00

BRERNERE nFH

Energy Consumption

BRI FE

Total energy consumption MWh 2,517.20

REES KL

Total energy consumption intensity (per square meter of MWh/square meter 0.007

floor area) JKELBE /52K

BFEERE (BFIOKEEEE)

Water Consumption

IKGEH FE

Total water consumption m?3 60,751.00
BRKE AV
Total water consumption intensity (per square meter of floor ' m3/square meter 0.16
area) SLHTRIFR R

BFEKGRE (B F T KIEEEE)

Hazardous Waste

BEEREY
Total hazardous waste piece (used ink and toner cartridges) 21
BERRNEE 1 (B2 - BEHHR)
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Environmental Performance

RIRKRE

Non-hazardous Waste

Total non-hazardous waste
BEBEEYRE

Paper consumption

ARAROBRE

Social Performance

HERE

Total number of employees

BEAR

Total number of employees

REAH

Total number of female employees

LIt EBHEE

Total number of male employees

SMEBHEH

Total number of employees (by position)
EEAHERUYERES)

Short-term contract/part-time employees
EHEH/FBET

Junior employee
YIRET

Middle management

RERE

Senior management

BRERE

Total number of employees (by age group)

EEAY (RFRERNED)

Below 30
30T

30-50
30-50 5%

Above 50
503 £
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2018
2018 &

tonnes 60.40
NI

ream 185
AN

2=

no. of people 333
AEL
no. of people 170
AEL
no. of people 163
AE
no. of people 130
AH
no. of people 184
AH
no. of people 15
AH
no. of people 4
no. of people 147
AL
no. of people 176
AL
no. of people 10
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE g keEams (B)

Social Performance Unit 2018
HERR By 2018 F &
Total employee number (by geographical region)
EELH(RHEEE D)
Total number of employees in the Group headquarter no. of people 57
SEREE B EE
Total number of employees in southern Fuzhou no. of people 74
BN R e B AR
Total number of employees in northern Fuzhou no. of people 51
BNt e 5 28 AL
Total number of employees in Ningde no. of people 38
E{RES A
Total number of employees in East China no. of people 39
ERESRB
Total number of employees in Jinan no. of people 64
R E A N
Total number of employees in Shenyang (including Harbin) | no. of people 6
BS (ERRE) BEEAH
Total number of employees in Hong Kong no. of people 4
BEREAH
Percentage of employees participating in training (by gender)
SHEEJINES R D (RERIES)
Female employee % 91.18
ZtEE
Male employee % 78.74
FHEEES
Average number of training hours completed per employee (by gender)
BEEETRIIN TR (ZURE )
Average number of training hours completed per female hour 25
employee AN
BARRIE S FIHEIR S
Average number of training hours completed per male hour 25
employee AN
BR B MRS FIHEIR S
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Social Performance 2018

HERE 2018 &

Average number of training hours completed per employee (by position)

BRESEXZINFHIRH (ERAFEE D)

Average number of training hours completed per short-term | hour 12
contract/part-time employee /|\B

BREEBREK/FBE TR T FHEIIRE

Average number of training hours completed per junior hour 32
employee /B

BRYKRE TS

Average number of training hours completed per middle hour 38
employee /N

BEPRE TR

Average number of training hours completed per senior hour 54
employee /N

BESKRE T FHE IS
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE -

e kERRE (F)

Appendix II: HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Index R = - EEB AR RH(REK
e RELHREESDRSI
Indicator Content Related Section
EBEAR MERAEE
A. Environmental Category BRiE &1 1E
A1:  Emissions BEi 4 Care for the Environment —
General Disclosure —fi% 3% 72 Green Building; Low-carbon
Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant Operation
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer BRRR-GERE  ANEE
relating to waste air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
EEBERRRERBHN  MKRTHEOHS  EEREEFE
RPNELESH : (QBR » k(b)) BTHETAREARENMH
BER KR PIEERS o
A1.1  The types of emissions and respective emission data. Care for the Environment —
PenTE s R AR B P EUR - Low-carbon Operation;
Sustainability Data Statements
%hﬁ—
B E A RERREEE
A1.2  Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity. Care for the Environment —
MERBBAHNEREE ° Low-carbon Operation; Sustainability
Data Statements
B
EiEE  AIFHERRENHE
A1.3  Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. Care for the Environment —
FEAEEREREVRERTE Green Building; Sustainability
Data Statements
BREE -
MERE  TRHBERREHNEBE
A1.4 | Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. Care for the Environment —
FMEAREEENMRERTE - Green Building; Sustainability
Data Statements
BB —
meERE RBERENEE
A1.5 | Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. Care for the Environment —
R RPN E R B R FTIS AR o Low-carbon Operation
EERE —(EiREE
A1.6  Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Care for the Environment —

handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HIEEBEEREEREMN L  BIEEELEENRBEME
KR o

Green Building
BERIRE - ERE

=Rl (RE) BRAR ZB—I\FFR
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Indicator Content Related Section
EERE EREAER

A2 :

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3
A2.4

A2.5

A3 :

A3.1

60

Use of Resources &R & H

General Disclosure—#& 3% 52

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

BREREIR (BFREER  KREMERM ) HBK -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total and intensity.

BREE DM ER /R REEER(INE - [RSUH)BREERTE -

Water consumption in total and intensity.
RFEKERER -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and result achieved.
i pE R At B R TSR -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is
fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

e it SROER G R KOIR AT B (AT B - DA R BB T AR 7K R aR A8 S P
TR -

Total packaging material used for finished products and with
reference to per unit produced.

HRBARBREMBNRENBEEEMIGE -

Environment and natural resources BiE R X RER
General Disclosure—f& % 5%

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

EEITABRBERARERERERTZENEEK -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the action taken to
manage them.

HEB ETDEHREMRRERNEAFERECENEEGH
FEMITE o
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Care for the Environment —
Green Building; Low-carbon
Operation

BEE -

e KR E

Care for the Environment —
Green Building; Sustainability
Data Statements

T -

MERE  IRERRANBE

Care for the Environment —
Green Building; Sustainability
Data Statements

BEES -

MBS IREEREMBE

Care for the Environment —
Green Building
FHIRE - GOEE

Care for the Environment —
Green Building
EHIRE - GEOEE

Not applicable, as the Group's
operations do not involve
packaging materials

TEA  AKREEBTERBEMF

Care for the Environment -
Green Building; Low-carbon
Operation

TR —

e EKREE

Care for the Environment —
Green Building; Low-carbon
Operation

TR

e KiREE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE w2 RERSME ()

Indicator Content Related Section
EERE EREAER

B. Social Category i & &1l

B1: Employment {E{& Employee Care —
General Disclosure — &% & Fair Recruitment; Employee Benefits
Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant ETEE—
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the NEFREE - BEEA

issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
BHRFMERE BEREA TEHE - RE - TEKS
Zotft ~ RIEARIA R BB MR ¢ (a)BER + M(b) BT
BT AR ERZENHEBERRROINER

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and Sustainability Data Statements
geographical region. EEREREEANBE
RMER - EREEL - FRAR RMEE M IE BB -

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical This data will be disclosed in the
region. future
IR - FRRERIRNEEI D HEE MK - UL A R R AE 4R R

B2 :  Health and Safety @ FEEZ 2 Employee Care — Health Culture
General Disclosure —#& % & ETHWE —REXt

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
FHRELZE2THERBENRERERE#EBEMEEN - () B5K
K (o) BFHET AR ERTENERERLROINEF -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Employee Care — Health Culture
ETEBEMILTHABRLEE - STRE @Rt

B2.2  Lost days due to work injury. Employee Care — Health Culture
HITBERXTEEE - BTME R

B2.3  Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, Employee Care — Health Culture
how they are implemented and monitored BTHE —REX
R PR ANV I SR R R 2 248 e - DA RABRARRIT REE R 0% -

B3:  Development and Training % /& K& %3l Employee Care —
General Disclosure — &% &= Training and Development
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for BTHE -BIIEE

discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

BRARITEEEIT LIERE M M B MR ER - #R 5 5E

E
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee Sustainability Data Statements
category (e.g. senior management, middle management). AREERENEE

BRI LEEERN (NEREREE  PREEES)SDNZI
BEADL -
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e lkER®RE (B)

Indicator Content Related Section
EEAR ERAER

B3.2

B4 :

B4.1
B4.2

B5 :

B5.1

B5.2

B6 :

B6.1
B6.2

B6.3

62

The average training hours completed per employee by gender
and employee category

RERREEEFNED - BHEBTHZ NI -

Labour Standards % T %8|

General Disclosure —#& % 5%

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

R IEETRHETH (o)X - R(b)EBFHEITARE
FENHBER AT ER -

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid
child and forced labour.
AR ST BRI E B S E AR R ZE T R o&hll 85 T o

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.

i IR E RIS ERR B RIS PRI P R,

Supply Chain Management £ ES &

General Disclosure — A& 3% 5&

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain.

EEEERAIRE R SRR -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

miEE D HEHEE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.

AR BHEERNED - mHERTTHBEGI A e 2
B UARABREHNRITRERETE -

Product Responsibility & R = 1T

General Disclosure —fi& 3% 5

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

BHMREESRMBRBONRERREZS  BE  SHEILEEER
ARFERTTER - (a) B - k(b)) BTHETABERZENNA
BEREIROIRE R -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.

EEXCEXERAHTAL L BEREHMACKNE DL
Number of products and service related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.

BRI E RIS R IR BB AR B 7% -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
il R A N (R KNG EE R R A 1E D) ©
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Sustainability Data Statements

ARERRENRE

Employee Care — Fair Recruitment
ETHE - RAFHEE

Employee Care — Fair Recruitment
BTIME - RVHEE

Employee Care — Fair Recruitment
ETHE - AFHRE

Compliance Operation —
Supply Chain Management
RELE —HEEERE

This data will be disclosed in the
future

L BRI S O AR R A L 3 R

Compliance Operation —
Supply Chain Management
RELE —HEEERE

Compliance Operation —
Group Promotion
REKE -KEEF

Employee Care — Health Culture
STRE @Rt

Compliance Operation —
Customer Feedback

REgE-—8FPER

Compliance Operation —
Group Promotion

REKE - KESE
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Indicator Content Related Section
EERE EREER

B6.4  Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. This will be disclosed in the future
BB SRTERENERBDKIRF - REBBHRARRIELIREE

B6.5  Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how Compliance Operation —
they are implemented and monitored. Customer Privacy
AU B & ERRE RALBBR - LA RABBEIT REER % o REKE —RTPRIL

B7 :  Anti-corruption X &5 Compliance Operation — Anti-
General Disclosure — &% 52 corruption
Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant IREE L — BB

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BREEDIEBRRR - 1R - RFFRORREN ¢ (a) BUR + M(b) E<r Y
BT ABERZENEBERRRPINER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Compliance Operation — Anti-
brought against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting corruption
Period and the outcomes of the cases. HELE-RBER

RERPAHETASXHEEEREYCEENESHARTD
218 MAFAAER -

B7.2  Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Compliance Operation — Anti-
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored corruption
FE T # e e R B IRAR - LA AR T REER 5% o RELE - RBER

B8 : | Community Investment #t B#% & Community Engagement —
General Disclosure —fi&# 5 Public welfare brand “Love Guards”;
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs Student Assistance and Welfare;
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its Targeted Poverty Alleviation
activities take into consideration the communities’ interest RS - N Mg

BRANGE2EXBEREEMELBRENBEREZR IS [BEE PERHE  BEKE
Z AL A A BUR

B8.1  Focus areas of contribution (e. g. education, environmental Community Engagement —
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). Public welfare brand “Love Guards”;
EIEEEE (UHE  BREEE A THER2F b B Student Assistance and Welfare;
B)- Targeted Poverty Alleviation

M m 2 — N as Gm R
[REE]: BB Re  BEKE
B8.2  Resources contributed to the focus area. Community Engagement -
EEIRBEMBBEIR - Public welfare brand “Love Guards”;

Student Assistance and Welfare;
Targeted Poverty Alleviation
RS HE— N mhE

[REE ] BBRE  WEKA

SRR (EE) ARAT ZB—I\EER 63



Corporate Governance Report
BRELWE

Corporate Governance Report
The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company fully recognizes the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed to
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading the
Group to attain better results and improve its corporate image with
effective corporate governance procedures.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “Corporate Governance
Code") as its own code of corporate governance.

The Directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge, the Company has
complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code for the year ended 31 December 2018, except the following
deviation:

Mr. Lin Rongbin, the chairman of the Board and Nomination
Committee was not able to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 21 May 2018 due to other important business
engagement. He had delegated Ms. Cheng Xuan, the executive
director and the chief executive officer of the Company to chair and
be available to answer questions at the annual general meeting.

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own internal code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. After
specific enquiries by the Company, all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards of dealing as set out in the
Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2018.

To comply with the code provision A.6.4 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the Company has also established and adopted
a code of conduct regarding its employees’ securities transactions,
on terms no less exacting than the standards set out in the Model
Code, for compliance by its relevant employees who are likely to be
in possession of inside information in relation to the Company or its
securities because of their offices or employments.

The Company was not aware of any incident of non-compliance

with the Model Code by the Directors and the relevant employees
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Board of Directors

Corporate strategy

The primary objective of the Company is to enhance long-term
total return for the Shareholders. Please refer to the section of
“Chairman’s Statement” in this annual report for the basis on which
the Group generates or preserves value over the longer term and the
strategy for delivering the objective of the Group.

Board composition

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lin Rongbin (Chairman)’
Ms. Cheng Xuan (Chief Executive Officer)'!

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xiao Zhong
Mr. Xu Jianwen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Pan Dexiang

Mr. Yuan Chun

Mr. Zhong Bin

Note:

1. Mr. Lin Rongbin is the spouse of Ms. Cheng Xuan.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) with any other Directors.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has at
all times met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise, and independent non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board of the Directors.
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Board Meetings, Board Committees Meetings and Annual

General Meeting

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the operation and
financial performance of the Group as well as its overall strategies.
Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means

of communications.

The Board should meet regularly and Board meetings should be held
at least four times a year. At least 14 days’ notice of all regular Board
meetings is given to the Directors who are given the opportunity to

include other matters in the agenda of meetings.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board held 5 meetings.

The attendance records of the individual Directors at the meetings
of Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and the general meeting for the year ended 31 December

2018 are set out as follows:

EERUARRRE

ExEeE

EHER
FAE
EFUEHAE AR EENBELIHE

W UARGIEEREER EEARIANE
FRATA2E -

- Eﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂlioﬁiﬁﬁ*é MR E
@&

FERR - MAEFETHERYERNES
THsLtOXBEM E%?Biv*ﬁ_%%”*ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ
ERLUNT

BE-T—\F+-A=t—RILFER:
ERWEETSREM -

BE_T-/\F+_A=1t—"BLFERN-

Exg BELZZEBES KREZEC FMZ
BEgga RBERAGNERES L F TR
FIEn

No. of Meetings Attended/Held

HE/BTERRE
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual
Board Committee ~ Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting
£ M £2 e
Name of Directors EzEl Ezged 2ZEEed¥ 2 ZEe8d 2 ZEggd BEAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lin Rongbin (Chairman) MEERE(ER) 5/5 - - 171 01
Ms. Cheng Xuan (Chief Executive Officer) T2l (170483, 5/5 - 1N - 11
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Xiao Zhong EREE 5/5 - - - 1
Mr. Xu Jianwen FRl s 5/5 - - - 0N
Independent Non-executive Directors B HHTES
Mr. Pan Dexiang EEEEE 5/5 22 71 1N 17n
Mr. Yuan Chun rELE 4/5 212 - 11 1
Mr. Zhong Bin ks 4/5 22 101 - N
Except for the annual general meeting, the Company did not held any ~ FREXERBEF R &I - ARARBE T — )\

other general meeting during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company on 2 June 2017 for a term of three years
commencing from 11 May 2017. Each of the service agreements may
be terminated by not less than one month’s notice in writing served
by either party on the other.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors was appointed to the Board pursuant to the respective
letters of appointment dated 2 June 2017 for a term of three years
commencing from 11 May 2017. Each of the letters of appointment
may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are governed by the articles of association. The
Board, with the recommendation of the Nomination Committee, is
responsible for reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment
of Directors, monitoring the appointment of Directors and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The articles of association provides that any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting, or as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
such meeting.

In accordance with the articles of association, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being or, if the number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The shareholders may, at any general meetings convened and held
in accordance with the articles of association, remove a Director by
ordinary resolution at any time before the expiration of his/her term
of office notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Company’s
articles of association or in any agreement between the Company and
such Director, but without prejudice to any claim for damages under
any such agreement. A vacancy on the Board created by the removal
of a Director may be filled by the election or appointment by ordinary
resolution of the shareholders at the meeting at which such Director
is removed.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the financial
statements of the Group are published in a timely manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the financial statements of the Company on
a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor
on the financial statements of the Group are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

Responsibilities of and Delegation by the Board
The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
overseeing the Group's strategic decisions and monitoring business
and performance.

The management, consisting of executive Directors, along with other
senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing
the strategies and directions as adopted by the Board from time
to time, and conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group.
Executive Directors and senior executives meet regularly to review the
performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole, coordinate
overall resources and make financial and operational decisions. The
Board also gives clear directions as to their powers of management
including circumstances where management should report back,
and reviews the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group. A
memorandum on respective functions of the Board and management
of the Company has been established in writing.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Pan Dexiang, Mr. Yuan Chun and Mr. Zhong Bin, being
independent non-executive Directors, have made confirmations
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that Mr. Pan Dexiang, Mr. Yuan Chun and
Mr. Zhong Bin meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent to the Company in
accordance with the terms of such guidelines.
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Continuous Professional Development

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged trainings for Directors in the form of provision
of training materials and consultation. All Directors have provided
their training records to the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, all Directors, including Mr.
Lin Rongbin, Ms. Cheng Xuan, Mr. Xiao Zhong, Mr. Xu Jianwen, Mr.
Pan Dexiang, Mr. Yuan Chun and Mr. Zhong Bin, had been given
and had read relevant guideline materials regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of interest and business
of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the chairman (“Chairman”) and the chief executive
officer (“Chief Executive Officer”) of the Company are held
separately. The role of Chairman is held by Mr. Lin Rongbin, and
the role of Chief Executive Officer is held by Ms. Cheng Xuan. The
Chairman provides leadership and governance for the Board so as to
create the conditions for the effective performance of the Board as a
whole and effective contribution by individual Director and to ensure
that the Board performs its responsibilities and all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chief
Executive Officer has the delegated power to manage the Company
and to oversee the activities of the Company on a day-to-day basis.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer is defined and established in writing.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors and their corporate governance
duties include:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iiiy  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v)  to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report under the Listing Rules.

The Board has reviewed the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and this corporate governance report.
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Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, and has delegated various responsibilities to the
committees. All the Board committees perform their distinct roles
in accordance with their respective terms of reference which are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and paragraph C.3 of the Corporate Governance Code. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are, but not limited to, to assist the
Board in providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, the internal controls and risk management
system of the Group, to oversee the audit process and to perform
other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely Mr.
Yuan Chun, Mr. Pan Dexiang and Mr. Zhong Bin, the independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Yuan Chun is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee held
two meetings. It had reviewed and discussed the interim and annual
financial statements, the interim and annual results announcements
and reports, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems and the internal audit function of the Group and
made recommendations to the Board regarding the re-appointment
of auditor.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1
of the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are, but not limited to, to evaluate and
make recommendations to the Board regarding the remuneration
packages and compensation of the executive Directors and senior
management. In addition, the Remuneration Committee conducts
reviews of the performance, and determines the remuneration
structure of the senior management of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Pan Dexiang and Mr. Zhong Bin, the independent non-
executive Directors, and Ms. Cheng Xuan, the executive Director. Mr.
Pan Dexiang is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting. It had reviewed the Company’s remuneration
policies and structure and the remuneration package for Directors
and senior management.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5 of the
Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are, but not limited to, to formulate nomination policies
for consideration of the Board, implement the nomination policies
laid down by the Board, and make recommendations to the Board to
fill vacancies on the same.

According to the nomination policy of the Company, the Nominating
Committee considers, among others, the following factors when assessing
candidates, and makes recommendations on the appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board:

(@) Integrity;

(b)  Achievements and experience in property development, property
investment, real estate business and other related industries;

(0 Commitment in respect of sufficient time, interests and attention
to the business of the Company; and

(d) Diversification of the Board in all aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board shall be made
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and other
applicable rules and regulations.

The chairman or secretary of the Nomination Committee shall
convene a meeting, and invite nominations of candidates from Board
members (if any), for consideration by the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee may also nominate candidates for its
consideration. For the appointment of any proposed candidate to
the Board, the Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of such candidate and make recommendations
for the Board’s consideration and approval. For the re-appointment
of any existing member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation, for the proposed candidates to stand for re-election
at a general meeting. The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for
election at a general meeting.
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The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Lin Rongbin, the Chairman and executive Director, and
Mr. Pan Dexiang and Mr. Zhong Bin, the independent non-executive
Directors. Mr. Lin Rongbin is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting. It had reviewed the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors, the structure, size and composition of the
Board, the Board Diversity Policy, and the retirement and rotation
plan of the Directors and assessed the independence of each
independent non-executive Director.

Board Diversity

With a view to enhancing the Board effectiveness and corporate
governance, the Board should include a balanced composition of
executive and non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) so that there is a strong independent element on
the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy with measurable
objectives. Selection of candidates is based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. The Nomination Committee and the Board will
review such measurable objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards achieving
those objectives.

Having reviewed and considered the above measurable objectives,

the Nomination Committee and the Board consider that the existing
composition of the Board is diversified.
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Remuneration of the Members of the Senior Management by
Band

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in Note 7 to
the audited consolidated financial statements. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Company has one senior management.
Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
remuneration by band for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set

REMARE D 2EREEBREFMN

EFEFIARBHANCERR OB RERME
70 BAESZI_E \$+ A=+t—HI%
B ARARAE—RSRERE - REBELE
E?/EFFEJJ%B.LSEX BE—F\F+-A
=t — R FERFERE D 2 FHHE T

out below: wmr
Number of
individual
Remuneration band ErENAE B A
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 # 7T & 2,000,000 75 7T 1
External Auditor’'s Remuneration S0 08 % BB Bl &

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the remunerations paid or
payable to the external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit

BE T \F+_A=+—BHLFE 5
[A) AN 52 1R (B At AR 1% S FE AT RIS T =X

services provided to the Group are set out as below: FERTONIEAZEREN 2 Bl Z AN T -
Fees payable or paid
ERSEAHNER
2018 2017
—E-N\EF =—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT | AR®TT
Services rendered for the Group mAEER AN RE
Audit services Ei RS 1,280 933
Non-audit service IEEETARTS 780 1,109
Total Fees BER 2,060 2,042
The Audit Committee was satisfied that the non-audit service BEZZEBEEM - —F— \FRIFFRY
in 2018, which is a review on the interim financial information (BIEFH G EHEE MUK ER 2 &=
performed by KPMG, did not affect the independence of the auditor.  B) WA EZEMMAEH 1L -
Internal Controls and Risk Management 3 5B $2 5l e Jm Bz i \
The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining ZEF&& FEEEME - M LEERERA

the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal controls systems. As such,
the Board not only sets and communicates the Group's strategies
and objectives but also oversees the Group’s risk management and
internal controls systems on an ongoing basis, and to ensure that
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal controls systems has been conducted at least annually. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
A defined management structure with specified limits of authority
and responsibilities is developed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, maintaining proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publications, and complying with applicable laws, rules and
regulations.
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The Audit Committee plays a vital role in overseeing the risk
management and internal controls systems on behalf of the Board.
The Audit Committee reviews, on at least an annual basis, the
Group's risk management and internal controls systems.

The Audit Committee, together with the Board, have performed an
annual review for the resources, staff qualification and experience,
training program and budget of the Group’s accounting, risk
management, internal audit and financial reporting functions, and
considered them to be adequate.

The Group also regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information to ensure that inside information remains confidential
until the disclosure of such information is approved, and its
dissemination effectively made. The Company understands its duties
under the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO"), and adheres to the important principle of timely publication
of the inside information.

The Company has established an inside information handling team to
identify, evaluate and report to the Board about any potential inside
information. The Company is required to disclose inside information
as soon as reasonably practicable in accordance with the SFO and the
Listing Rules. The Company strictly complies with the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission when handling and disseminating of inside information.
The Company also strict prohibits on the unauthorized use of
confidential or inside information. The Board will determine further
escalation and appropriate handling the dissemination of inside
information.

The Group has established an organizational structure with
defined levels of responsibility and reporting procedures. Monthly
management accounts are available for review by the senior
management and the Board (in a concise format of a monthly report)
for monitoring the Company’s financial and operating results. The
management, supported by the operations units and the internal
audit team, are responsible for formulating, implementing and
monitoring sound risk management and internal controls systems,
and reporting to the Board and the Audit Committee on the result of
risk assessment, as well as the assessment of the effectiveness of risk
management and internal controls systems.

The internal audit team has been supporting the Group’s internal
audit function. The internal audit team has conducted a review on
the effectiveness of the major aspects of the Group's internal control
system for the year ended 31 December 2018. Such review covered
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and it did not reveal any significant defects. The internal
audit team has reported its major findings and areas for improvement
to the Board. Relevant recommendations made by the internal
audit team have been properly followed up by the Group to further
enhance its internal controls policies, procedures and practices.
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In addition to the assessment and review of risk management and
internal controls undertaken internally, the half-yearly review and
annual audit conducted by our external auditor, aim to provide
assurance that the Group’s financial statements are prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
the Group's accounting policies and applicable laws, rules and
regulations, will also provide to certain extent independent checks on
the Group's internal controls system.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has conducted
a review on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
controls systems of the Group, and considered the design and
operation of the risk management and internal controls system to be
effective and adequate in all material aspects.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Cheng Ching Kit (“Mr.
Cheng”). Mr. Cheng was appointed in replacement of Ms. Ko Nga
Kit as the company secretary of the Company on 7 June 2018. Mr.
Cheng is an assistant manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group
(Hong Kong) Limited, a professional services provider specialising in
corporate services, and his primary corporate contact person at the
Company is Mr. Xiao Zhong, one of the Directors.

Mr. Cheng had taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training on review of the Listing Rules and other
compliance requirements during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend the general
meetings of the Company. Directors, chairman of each of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
(or a delegated member of the Committee), chairman of the
independent board committee (if any) and management will attend
the annual general meeting to answer queries about the Group’s
business.

The Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting and for Putting
Forward Proposals at General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the shareholder(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the Company.
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The above written requisition shall be addressed to the Company’s
head office at Room 3207, The Gateway Tower 6, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

There are no provisions in the articles of association or the Cayman
Islands Companies Law for shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the above procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting.

The Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a
Person for Election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 85 of the articles of association, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended
by the Board for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting unless a notice signed by a member (other than
the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at
the head office at Room 3207, The Gateway Tower 6, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong or at the Share Registrar at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong within the seven-day period commencing the day after
the despatch of the notice of the meeting for such election (or such
other period, being a period of not less than seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of such
meeting and ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such
meeting, as may be determined by the Directors from time to time).

Investors’ Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company holds general meetings which offer a valuable forum
for dialogue and interaction with the management. Shareholders are
encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies
to attend and vote at general meetings for and on their behalf if they
are unable to attend the general meetings in person. Shareholders
may also put forward their enquiries at the general meetings of the
Company. The Board members, chairmen or members of respective
Board committees, external auditor of the Company and such other
person as the Board deems appropriate shall attend the general
meetings of the Company to respond to questions addressed to the
Company.
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Shareholders, investors and members of the public may send their
enquiries about their shareholdings to the Hong Kong Share Registrar
and Transfer Office of the Company. The contact details for the Hong
Kong Share Registrar and Transfer Office are as follows:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2865 0990

Email: hkinfo@computershare.com.hk
Website: www.computershare.com

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in
writing. The contact details are as follows:

Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.
Room 3207

The Gateway Tower 6

Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 3580 6003
Email: ir@sansheng.hk

Constitutional Documents
For the year ended 31 December 2018, there has been no change in
the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Rongbin (##%5&) (alias Lin Rongxin) (“Mr. Lin"), aged 50, is
the chairman of the Board, an executive director and the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Lin currently holds the following positions in the following
companies: chairman and president of Sansheng Group Company
Limited* (=25 EHPR 72 F]), general manager of Fuzhou Sanwei
Rubber & Plastic Chemical Co., Ltd* (f&/N=E%B{t THR A A),
chairman of Quanzhou Dongbai Real Estate Development Company
Limited* (RMEBFEMHEMRZEAGMRAF]), chairman and general
manager of Fuzhou Oriental Sunrise Golf Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.* (BMEFBESBREMEFREARADA]), chairman
and general manager of Fujian Wuhe Construction Development
Company Limited* (BREAMZERERERA and chairman of
Fujian Bourne Property Management Co., Ltd * (BRILBMEE
BIRMA AR AR]). He is also the chairman and general manager of
Fujian Sansheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (f@iZ2=EE
i‘@?ﬁ-ﬁ?’éﬁﬁﬁ A]) and executive director and general manager of
Fuzhou Sansheng Investment Co. Ltd.* (f@/N=EXIHEFR AR, i
which he is responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
operations of the companies, including land acquisition, financial
management and business development. Mr. Lin is also the director
of Mega Regal Limited and Modern Times Development Limited.

Mr. Lin has extensive experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.
He completed advanced business administration course in real estate
(BEHARESH TSR AERRE) from Tsinghua University in
2005, and was awarded the title of senior economist in 2006.

Mr. Lin is also a member of the 12th Fujian Province Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, the vice
president of China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce* (2
HEME), the vice president of Fujian Federation of Industry and
Commerce (General Chamber of Commerce)* (f@E%& LEEKA
@ (#r€)), a member of Fifth Board of Directors of China Society
for Promotion of Guangcai Program* (FEIE BXRESERE
IE=E), the honorary vice president of Fourth Board of Directors of
Fujian Society for Promotion of the Guangcai Program* (f@i&%& X%
FERESFNEHEES), the president of Third Board of Director
of Fuzhou City Quanzhou Chamber of Commerce* (#&/HmH R
SE =¥ EF), the chairman of China Fujian real estate alliance*
(P ERPEHEREE), the vice chairman of Fujianese Entrepreneurs
Culture Development Foundation* ({2 2%& BB LEEELE) and
Honorary President of Second Board of Fujian Province Chamber of
Commerce for Privately Owned Enterprise* (£~ EfaE2E REE
AETLRESR)

Mr. Lin is also a director of all the non-PRC subsidiaries of the
Company, and a director of Fuzhou Shangsheng Investment Co. Ltd*
(@M _EBITE B R ARF]), Fuzhou Shouyao Investment Co. Ltd* (&)
BRI E AR AR]), Fujian Shengxuan Investment Co. Ltd* (2R ET
& BRAT]), Zhanggiu Zhengda Tianyuan Development Limited*
(EEERKBEEEAER AR and Pingtan Yanggung Guohang Land
Limited* (‘FZ5 7 EIM B HBFR A F]), which are PRC subsidiaries of
the Company.

Mr. Lin is the spouse of Ms. Cheng Xuan, an executive director and
the chief executive officer of the Company.

*  The English translation is for identification purpose only.
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Ms. Cheng Xuan (f3f) (“Ms. Cheng”), aged 50, is an executive
director and the chief executive officer, and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company.

Ms. Cheng held the position of deputy general manager at Fuzhou
Oriental Sunrise Golf Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (f&/ME=
FBHERREHEMZEARAR) from 2003 to 2006. She is
currently a vice president of Sansheng Group Company Limited*
(ZBREEHBRAF]), the supervisor of Fujian Sansheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.* (RE=EEMERZEABRAF]), a director
of Fujian Bourne Property Management Co., Ltd.* (f@i2{ABRYEE
BRDAEMR AR and a supervisor of Fuzhou Sansheng Investment
Co. Ltd.* (f@IN =B EBR Q7). She has been principally involved
in domestic and foreign real estate development of such companies,
and other aspects which mainly include branding strategic planning,
marketing management and cost management. Ms. Cheng has
extensive management and operation experience in the PRC real
estate industry. She obtained certificates of completion of Executive
Management program in Business Administration of Real Estate (5
MEFESMTIEER) in August 2006 and Doctor of Business
Administration program (LEEEE L ORIEMEDT) in February
2008 from HKU SPACE & Fudan University, Shanghai and Advanced
Modern Economics Management Course (GRAUASZEE 1 & A AHE )
from Tsinghua University in July 2006. Ms. Cheng was awarded the
title of senior economist in 2007.

Ms. Cheng is a member of Thirteenth Standing Committee of the
People’s Congress of the Fujian Province* (fB22& %+ =B AARKEK),
the vice president of China Association of Women Entrepreneurs*
(PELZPEZRHE) and the president of Ninth Board of Director
of Fujian Provincial Woman Enterprisers Association* (&4 &
X eFNIEEES). She was the president of the Chamber of
Commerce of Fuzhou City’'s Women Entrepreneurs* (&1 Z {25
&) in June 2012.

Ms. Cheng is also a director of all the subsidiaries of the Company,
legal representative of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company, and the
company secretary of Fu Sheng Services Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Ms. Cheng is the spouse of Mr. Lin Rongbin, the chairman of the
Board and executive director of the Company.

*  The English translation is for identification purpose only.
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Non-executive Directors
Mr. Xiao Zhong (H®) ("Mr. Xiao"”), aged 52, is a non-executive
director of the Company.

Mr. Xiao has been appointed as deputy general manager of Fujian
Sansheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* ({82 =EEHER
AR AR since May 2007 and is currently a vice president of
Sansheng Group Company Limited* (=85 B R A 7)), in which he
is principally involved in the management of its investment and risk
control. Mr. Xiao has extensive experience in real estate investments
and merger and acquisition projects. Prior to joining the said
company, Mr. Xiao was a practicing solicitor in the PRC.

Mr. Xiao obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Engineering in July
1987 and a Master's Degree in Engineering in January 1990 from
Donghua University (formerly known as China Textile University). He
also obtained the Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate Finance and
Investment Management from the University of Hong Kong in April
2014.

Mr. Xu Jianwen (FF&I3) (“Mr. Xu"), aged 38, is a non-executive
director of the Company.

Mr. Xu is currently the chief compliance and risk officer of Dongxing
Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Xu obtained
a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws from the Sun Yat-Sen University in June
2005, and a Master’s Degree of Common Law from the University of
Hong Kong in November 2007. He has extensive working experience
in the financial industry. He worked in several financial institutions,
including China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited, China
Securities (International) Finance Holding Company Limited and
Southwest Securities (HK) Financial Management Limited, at which
he is principally involved in the management in the aspects of legal,
compliance and risk control.

Mr. Xu was awarded with the Legal Professional Qualification
Certificate in the PRC in February 2009.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Pan Dexiang (GBE#) (“Mr. Pan"”), aged 64, is an independent
non-executive director, the chairman of the remuneration committee
and a member of the audit committee and the nomination committee
of the Company.

Mr. Pan obtained a Bachelor's Degree in economics from Xiamen
University in January 1982. From February 1982 to June 1999, he
worked initially as an officer and served several positions including the
deputy head of the planning department, the deputy president of the
Xiamen City branch, with the last position as the deputy president,
at the Fujian Branch of Agricultural Bank of China. From March 2000
to May 2010, he acted as the president at the Fuzhou branch of
China Merchants Bank. He then acted as the chairman of the small
enterprise credit center of China Merchants Bank in May 2010.

Mr. Yuan Chun (R%) (“Mr. Yuan"”), aged 49, is an independent

non-executive director, the chairman of the audit committee and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company.

*  The English translation is for identification purpose only.
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Mr. Yuan has extensive experience in equity investment, corporate
finance and investment banking. He is currently a Partner of
Greenwoods Private Equity Funds. He was an executive director and
the chief executive officer of China Development Bank International
Investment Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1062).
Mr. Yuan joined China Development Bank International Holdings
Limited (“CDBIH") in April 2013. Prior to CDBIH, Mr. Yuan held
various senior positions in several financial institutions. From August
2004 to July 2008, he worked as a director of the China marketing,
global banking and markets department at HSBC Markets (Asia)
Limited. From July 2008 to August 2011, he worked as the managing
director, head of asset sales in China of the financial markets division
at ING Bank N.V. From September 2011 to March 2013, he worked
as the managing director at Reorient Global Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Reorient Group Limited (now known as Yunfeng
Financial Group Limited, Stock Exchange stock code: 376).

Mr. Yuan obtained a Bachelor's Degree in economics from Peking
University in July 1992 and a Master’s Degree in international finance
from Graduate School of the People’s Bank of China* (FEI ARER
1THE1TERAIZEAT) in February 1995. He also obtained a Master of
Business Administration from INSEAD in December 2001.

Mr. Zhong Bin (##¢) (“Mr. Zhong”), aged 47, is an independent
non-executive director, the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company.

Mr. Zhong graduated from Sichuan University in July 1993. He has
been the independent non-executive director of Modern Land (China)
Co., Limited (Stock Exchange stock code: 1107) since January 2017.
Prior to August 2017, Mr. Zhong had been the secretary general of
China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce (“CRECC") (BEtEHbE
g, formerly known as 2B T HFEHERE) as well as the joint
secretary general of the financial working committee of CRECC. Mr.
Zhong participated in a series of real estate projects led by CRECC
and accumulated extensive practical experience in that field. The
said real estate projects included the establishment of green real
estate fund, tourism industry fund and senior care community fund.
Mr. Zhong also participated in the initial preparation of the Elite
International Investment Fund. He was also invited to give lectures
at different universities in the PRC including but not limited to
School of Management of Xiamen University, Guanghua School of
Management of the Peking University and Zhejiang University.

Senior Management

Ms. Cheng Xuan (#3) is our executive director and chief executive
officer. For Ms. Cheng'’s biography, please see "Executive Directors”
above.

*  The English translation is for identification purpose only.
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Directors’ Report
EFEERE

The Board presents their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in property development and
property investment. Particulars of the Company’s significant
subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Operating Results

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 99 to 100 of this annual report.

Financial Summary

The financial summary of the Group from 2014 to 2018 is set out in
the section headed “Five-Year Group Financial Summary” on page
211 of this annual report.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group for the year and a discussion
on the Group's future business development, the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and significant events of the Group
subsequent to the financial year under review are provided in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 24 to 35. An
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the “Five-Year Group
Financial Summary” on page 211.

Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
relationships with key stakeholders, and compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations are set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 36 to 63 of this annual report.

Final Dividend
The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).
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Directors’ Report (continued)
BEEEHE(H)

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to
Shareholders to be its goal. The Board of the Company will determine
the dividends (if any) for the Company’s shares on a per share
basis. The declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of the
Directors, and the determination as to the declaration of dividends
and the amount of dividends actually declared and paid will depend
on various factors, subject to the Company’'s compliance with
Cayman Islands Companies Law, its articles of association and other
relevant laws and regulations, including:

o the Group’s general business conditions;
. the Group'’s financial results;
o the Group’s capital requirements;

o payment by the Group’s subsidiaries of cash dividends to the
Company;

o the Group’s future prospects;
o interests of the Shareholders; and
o any other factors which the Board may deem relevant.

Going forward, the Company will re-evaluate its dividend policy in
light of its financial position, capital requirement and the prevailing
economic climate. If any dividend is to be declared, it will be made at
the discretion of the Board as mentioned above.

Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Monday, 20 May 2019, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Wednesday, 15 May 2019 to Monday, 20 May
2019, both days inclusive. During the above period, no transfer of
Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the right to attend
and vote at the annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificate(s) and transfer form(s) must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer
Office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 14 May
2019.

Subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s significant subsidiaries are set out in
note 14 to the audited consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Major Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue attributable to the
largest customer of the Group amounted to approximately 1.62%
of the total revenue of the year and the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s revenue of the
year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the largest supplier of the
Group accounted for approximately 38.68% of the Group’s total
purchase and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 49.43% of the Group's total purchase.

Directors’ and Shareholders’ Interests in
Suppliers and Customers of the Group

The Directors, their close associates and the Shareholders (who to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issued
shares of the Company) did not have any interests in the five
largest customers and suppliers of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Property and Equipment

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 11 to
the audited consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 27(c) to the
audited consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Details of the Company’s reserves available for distribution to the
Shareholders, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Cayman Islands Companies Law, as at 31 December 2018, are set out
in note 27(e) to the audited consolidated financial statements.

Borrowings

Details of the borrowings of the Group are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report and notes 21 and 25 to the audited consolidated financial
statements.

Bonds

Details of the corporate bonds issued by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 22 to the audited
consolidated financial statements and in the announcements of
the Company dated 30 October 2018 and 13 November 2018
respectively.

Taxation

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares. If the
Shareholders are in any doubt as to the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their tax
adviser.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
BEEEHE(H)

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association, or the law of Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company is incorporated, under which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

Charitable Donations
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has no
charitable and other donations.

Directors
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to
the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lin Rongbin (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Xuan (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Xiao Zhong
Mr. Xu Jianwen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Pan Dexiang

Mr. Yuan Chun

Mr. Zhong Bin

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the articles of association, Mr. Xiao Zhong,
Mr. Yuan Chun and Mr. Zhong Bin will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or letter of
appointment with the Company on 2 June 2017 for an initial term
of two years commencing from 11 May 2017, which is renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year. Each of the service
contracts or letters of appointment may be terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Report (continued)
BEEEHRE ()

Confirmation of Independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Transactions, Arrangements and Contracts of
Significance

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Permitted Indemnity
Provision” and “Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this directors’ report, and the revolving facilities
(the “Revolving Facilities”) in an aggregate principal amount
of RMB4,500,000,000 provided by EMNZEBEBEXERAA, a
company beneficially owned by Mr. Lin Rongbin and Ms. Cheng
Xuan, the Directors, on 18 August 2017 and 28 September 2017,
no transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December
2018 or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2018. In
addition, no contract of significance between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
was made.

Details of the above Revolving Facilities are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

There was no competing business of which a Director of the
Company had an interest which is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and operation of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Remuneration of Directors

In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code, the Company
has established the Remuneration Committee to formulate its
remuneration policies. Directors’ remuneration is subject to
Shareholders’ approval at general meetings. Other emoluments are
determined by the Board with reference to the Directors’ duties
and responsibilities, the recommendations of the Remuneration
Committee and the performance and results of the Group. No
Director, or any of their respective associates, was involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid

individuals during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
note 7 to the audited consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
BEEEHE(H)

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto. There is appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT
No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company, or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Share Options

There is no share option scheme adopted by the Company. No
options of the Company were granted or subsisted at any time during
the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests

As at 31 December 2018, the Directors’ and the chief executive’s
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long position in shares of the Company b NN )

Number of Percentage of
Name of director Nature of interest shares held issued shares

e BITRSG

EEHNE ERME BHERGOEE ZEZDE
Mr. Lin Rongbin Interest of controlled corporation 310,137,427' 73.99%
MEESE RS AR R
Ms. Cheng Xuan Interest of spouse 310,137,427? 73.99%
[E3 o iy Er ey
Notes: MIaE -
1. Mega Regal Limited (“Mega Regal”) is the beneficial owner of these Shares 1. Mega Regal Limited([Mega Regall) &%

and is wholly-owned by Modern Times Development Limited (“Modern
Times"), which is in turn wholly-owned by Mr. Lin Rongbin (“Mr. Lin"). By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lin is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
Shares in which Mega Regal is interested in.

2. Ms. Cheng Xuan (“Ms. Cheng”) is the spouse of Mr. Lin. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. Cheng is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares in
which Mr. Lin is interested in.

3. As at 31 December 2018, the total number of Shares in issue was
419,114,000.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Interests of Shareholders Discloseable under the
SFO

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons (other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO or notified to the Company:
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Long position in shares of the Company EATBORZFE
Number of Percentage of
Name Nature of interest shares held issued shares
ERME HERITRG
£8 ERME BERAEE 2B
Mega Regal Beneficial owner 310,137,427" 73.99%
EnEAEA
Modern Times Interest of controlled corporation 310,137,427" 73.99%
G AR
DSHK Person having a security interest in Shares 294,137,427 70.18%
REBB IR ERE= B A
Beneficial owner 3,447,325 0.82%
ExnEAEA
DSCL Interest of controlled corporation 297,584,7523 71.00%
REFES G AEE R
China Orient Interest of controlled corporation 297,584,7523 71.00%
REIRTS G AEE R
Springboard Beneficial owner 41,784,975 9.97%
EnEEA
Mr. Lau Interest of controlled corporation 41,784,975* 9.97%
R - TG AR
Notes: Mz -
1. Mega Regal is wholly-owned by Modern Times, which is in turn wholly- 1. Mega RegalfiModern TimesZ&E#HE - M

owned by Mr. Lin. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lin and Modern Times are
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Mega Regal is

interested in.

2. Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited (“DSHK") is the

chargee of these Shares.

3. DSHK is wholly-owned by Dongxing Securities Co., Ltd (“DSCL"), which is in
turn owned as to 52.74% by China Orient Asset Management Corporation
(“China Orient"”). By virtue of the SFO, DSCL and China Orient are deemed
to be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which DSHK is interested in.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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4. Springboard Holdings Limited (“Springboard”) is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau
Luen Hung, Thomas (“Mr. Lau”). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau is deemed to
be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Springboard is interested
in.

5. As at 31 December 2018, the total number of Shares in issue was
419,114,000.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any
person (other than a Director or the chief executive of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2018 which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO or notified to the Company.

Employee Retirement Benefits
Details of the employee retirement benefits of the Group are set out
in note 5(b) to the audited consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained the public float as required by the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the
date of this annual report.

Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions

Details of significant related party transactions of the Group are set
out in note 30(b) to the financial statements. The above significant
related party transactions do not constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

There were no transactions required to be disclosed as non-exempt
connected transactions or non-exempt continuing connected
transactions in accordance with the Listing Rules during the year
under review. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management
and external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted
by the Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 of
the Company and its subsidiaries were audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”).

Deloitte has resigned as the auditor of the Company on 29 November
2017 as the Company and Deloitte could not reach a consensus on
the audit fee for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
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RRAEKEE(BRE]) 2ERE - BREES
NERE GG - RIS AR AR Springboard A
ERAERRO P HEAER

5. R-ZZBE-N\FE+-_A=+—8 BBRIKNE
214 419,114,000f% °

R EXFIHEEN  BEEMAL(RARE
ERERTHAERIN ARRAABAER
E-NF+A=T—BHFEREBEZEHF LS
BiEPIE 336 ER TN EBERF 2 Z MR
‘JZ%D KRB 2 AR B IR S8 B AR 1 B 4
WBORE ©

& 8 iR kil F1
7 55 [ ) 0 BR (R AB RS S BN I B AR AR
BT TRRMIEE5(b) ©

RELRIGKE
RBE-Z-\F+-A=+—BLFER
ERFHAL  AAF - E#F ETRE

RENABFRE o
MEXZRHERERS

AEBEABB TR ZFHBERT B RERN
#30(b) > EMB AR R ZALTEAK LT
HRAE 1AAETH T AR BMRER 5 I FER

o

REBEFER MEXZER EMHRAAE
BTERPHERHIATERCEERER
STFUERE - ARFIERIELETRAUFE14AE
BTHERTE -

BZEAE
EREEECEREEE RSB — 6
HRARBEARBE

EHARERRNE
TE-NFT A=t HILEFEEEZR
EMBE|E

£ B il
AREREAMBARNBRE-T—AF+_A
SH-ALFEZHBRERMED  BER
F e AT (128 ) B -

R-E—+F+—A=Z+NB BXAFHE
EHREFEE_T—+tF+_A=1+—H
M BFENEZERERKE  BHCEH
EARR B -

89

=REREE)BRAR Z8—I\FEFR



Directors’ Report (continued)
BEEEHRE ()

KPMG (“"KPMG") was appointed as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 30 November 2017 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of Deloitte and has been re-appointed at the 2018 annual
general meeting of the Company held on 21 May 2018.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 of
the Group have been audited by KPMG, who shall retire and, being
eligible, have offered itself for re-appointment as auditor at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.
Chairman

Lin Rongbin

Hong Kong, 20 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WIARHENERS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SANSHENG HOLDINGS
(GROUP) CO. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sansheng
Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
("the Group”) set out on pages 99 to 210, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZEA RS (8)

Assessing the net realisable value of inventories

FEUWERFENTMG

Refer to notes 2(b)(iv) and 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note1(l)(i).

ELREE R BIAHTE2(b)(iv) R 16 X RHZE 1()() B9 &5 B F -

The Key Audit Matter
HRETER

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s inventories
represented properties held for future development,
properties under development and completed properties
held for sale located in Mainland China with an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB7,782,799,000 which accounted
for 79% of the Group's total assets as at that date. These
properties comprise residential projects located in certain
second and third tier cities in Mainland China.
RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H  EBESENEE
ﬁ#$lmﬁm%¢ﬁ§$1%@%¥ hﬁﬁ@
MERBELEEERKME 2 TFTEAERAR
%1m1m9wmm'ﬁ ESEEEHREEW
79% - ZEMEBLEUNFBEAME T _RK/R=K
WMHEEER -

These properties are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The determination of the net realisable
value involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, particularly in estimating forecast development
costs and forecast selling prices. Forecast development
costs and forecast selling prices are inherently uncertain
due to changes in market conditions and government
policies.
ZEVMERKAEAIEMNFENREETER - ATE %
FENEESRERBITEEEHE - CARME
BBERAARRIEREE - AR TR KRBT BKE &
B BAZERKARBAESEANEFE EEN

For certain projects, the forecast selling prices may be
adversely impacted by the volatility of property prices in
Mainland China.
gETEEMES
BKEBOTNTE -

BRAEEMEXITEARLYEE

We identified assessing the net realisable value of
inventories as a key audit matter because the inherent
uncertainties involved in assessing the net realisable
value of the properties require a significant degree of
management judgement which could be subject to error
or management bias.

BMET B FEENRER FERRNSERETSE
HRTEMENAZRFESIROANETEEERTE
EREFELEENHE  XBRNERIEBERM °
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANEANAEEZSE

Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value of
inventories included:

BAFEDENAZRFENESAEFERE

o evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the
preparation and monitoring of management budgets
and forecasts of construction and other costs for each
property development project;

e HEMGHEHIERZEEVWERBLEANTEESE
B BERAMMKARNETERETHEEREE
#l - FEERE - BEEAMNEE LB RE

]

o conducting site visits to property development sites,
on a sample basis, discussing with site management
the progress of each project and challenging
management’ s development budgets for each project
with reference to signed construction contracts;

U DHBEFERAERISGESYER RS - HRE
Iiujuﬁﬁ =] IE E 5@): &Z‘<<;§%§S%E’JLMA?’7M
EREHEREENERBERLERR

3 challenging the forecast property selling prices
as estimated by management with reference to
independent market prices for properties of a similar
type and size and in similar location; and

s RKRBEZAFHAUER RERUEAUNDES
YHE - RREEBENMAAHBAMEEERD
i R

° evaluating the sensitivity analyses prepared by
management for the key assumptions adopted in the
net realisable value estimations, including forecast
selling prices and forecast construction costs, and
considering the possibility of error or management
bias.

e FMAEEBEMNAIERFEMTPERANERR
R L Bk ﬁﬁﬁ B E FEORI & B M TR OBl 22 5
A - AREEDNERKEBEEER AL o
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZEA RS (8)

Impairment assessment of properties under development and prepaid lease payments

BRTPYERBANEERENREN G

Refer to notes 2(b)(iii), 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(i) and

10).

FERHAE A IR AMI A 2(b) (i) ~ 12 13 AT 1() K 1()) B9 a1 B E -

The Key Audit Matter
HRESTER

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate carrying value of
the Group's properties under development and prepaid
lease payments amounted to RMB588,790,000. These
principally represent the cost incurred to date for a
commercial complex development project in Shenyang,
Mainland China. With respect to the development status,
the Group has not yet obtained the approval on the
planning design scheme from the relevant government
authorities.

RZZ—NF+ZA=+—H8B EBEEEBEZRE
THERBNEERENRAEABRRARK
588,790,0007C » Wt E B P B A1 F 5 & ¥ &
ERERLESRIEELENAER - ERXE K EREMN
S B S E B A R A R BT R A AR B R R
Gk

The fair value less costs of disposal of the Group’s
properties under development and prepaid lease payments
were determined by the directors with reference to
independent valuations prepared by a firm of qualified
external property valuers. The determination of these fair
values involves significant judgement and estimation,
particularly in relation to selecting the appropriate
valuation methodology, appropriate market comparables
and adjustment factors applied to these market
comparables.
EEEERTYELANEAERBENAFENGRLE
KATHERZ2ZSERINIYEBER MR
BUYGENEE BEZFATESREEEMNEAXN
A REA  BRREHEBEREZMERE  THL
BHEULBYERERRBRA™MS LA LB ENH
BRE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAWETNAREEZSEE

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of properties
under development and prepaid lease payments included
the following:

BT EERPYERBEMA
FesE:

ERIAER R ERNEIZ

o obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports
prepared by the external property valuers engaged by
management on which the directors’ assessment of
the fair value less costs of disposal of properties under
development and prepaid lease payments was based;

o mMBYimEREIEREZRENINEYEEER MR
HEOHERES  ZHERESEFITHERT
M RFENEERIEN D FEHR DS /K
7%

° assessing the external property valuers’ qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being
valued and considering their objectivity and
independence;

e RIEINBMEMEMNAEEYETENERE
REBELREENE UREEREFNEELENEBY
{3

o obtaining an update on the plan of the project
by interviewing senior management, and with
the assistance of our internal property valuation
specialists, discussing with the external property
valuers, in a separate private session, their valuation
methodology and the key estimates and assumptions
adopted in their valuations;

e MBAGHESABTERE EBEEAMRINER I
EBVETHLASZT RERMABLY EGEE
EXRWWMBT - EINED Y (R EARD S SRR F A
BEREANMGESERFEEMGHGRERE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZEA RS (8)

Impairment assessment of properties under development and prepaid lease payments

BRTUERANEERENREN G

Refer to notes 2(b)(iii), 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(i) and

10).

GERAE A BT ANIE 2(b) (i) ~ 128 13 RATZE 1() K 1()) B9 &5t B E -

The Key Audit Matter
HRESTER

We identified the impairment of properties under
development and prepaid lease payments as a key audit
matter because of the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined
with the uncertainty in timing with regard to obtaining the
relevant governing authorities’ approval on the planning
design scheme of the project.
HREREERBGEAMBEHRRTHEE - UREBK
#BELEEERERATERERB RN ZH - &
%ﬁﬁﬁ%@$%%&ﬁﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%
PRI -

924

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPWETNAREEZSEE

challenging the key estimates, assumptions and
methodology (including market comparables and
adjustment factors) adopted in the valuations, on a
sample basis, by comparison with available market
data and/or government produced market statistics;
and

VA3 B2 0 B A] 45 T 55 BRI N / S BT T 35 A AT
fELL® - BEETRANETEMET RRMTE
(BEMSELEALEMERABRRR)REER

obtaining and reading relevant correspondence
with the relevant government authorities in respect
of the reason for delay on the approval of the
planning design scheme of the project and evaluating
directors’ assessment of whether, based on these
correspondence and relevant agreement with the
government authorities, the fair value less costs of
disposal of the properties under development and
prepaid lease payments would be affected.
MEWHEREARNEESETEN EERRE
REFERENBBEG  ARERBTKEA
ZEEMHRERGR  AREFHERTUER
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o

Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZEA RS (8)

Valuation of investment properties

REMENMGE

Refer to notes 2(b)(ii) and 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(h).

FELHEE R FEERA M iE 2(b)(i1)) B 10 A KB &E 1(h) 89 & 5 BUK °

The Key Audit Matter
HRETER

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held a portfolio
of investment properties located in Hong Kong and
in Mainland China with an aggregate fair value of
RMB602,067,000 which accounted for 6% of the Group’s
total assets at that date. The investment properties
principally comprise certain office units/workshops and
a car park space in Hong Kong and two retail properties
each in Harbin and Qingdao in Mainland China.
RZZE-NE+_A=+—RH ' EBEEUREE
MPBEAMNKRENEFEACNATERLER/RARK
602,067,0007T ' 1 EEXEEEBRBEENG6% ° %
BT ERREBETHLAEEM/IHR—EE
i ARDFIZATEANMERENESHMEZTE
E

The fair values of the investment properties as at 31
December 2018 were assessed by the directors based on
independent valuations prepared by a firm of qualified
external property valuers. The determination of these fair
values involves significant judgement and estimation,
particularly in relation to selecting the appropriate
valuation methodology, appropriate market comparables
and adjustment factors applied to these market
comparables.

RZB-—NF+_A=+—BREWELFEIH
EERBEERI B REEMARRENBLAEE
Tl - BEZEZF R FESRERBOEKXHAE &E
O RRREMEREEMESE MSLESAL
BMERERANREBATS EAILBMENHABRE -

We identified the valuation of investment properties as

a key audit matter because of the inherent risks involved

in estimating the valuations of investment properties,

particularly in light of the current economic circumstances.

MR EAREDERETROBEARER - %Rl 2R E
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANEANAEEZSE

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of investment
properties included the following:

BMFEREVEHEENERAEFEEE

° obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports
prepared by the external property valuers engaged by
management and on which the directors’ assessment
of the fair values of investment properties was based,;

e HWBYAEHERREZEAINEY X LERFR
BHHERE  ZEEREREFTEREDE
A FENKE

° assessing the external property valuers’ qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being
valued and considering their objectivity and
independence;

e  RIEINBMEMLEMNAEEMETENERE
KEREEAND URZERENTHUELBY
:‘E 2

° with the assistance of our internal property valuation
specialists, discussing with the external property
valuers, in a separate private session, their valuation
methodology and the key estimates and assumptions
adopted in their valuations;

s HEBUETHMASHZFTRERMAITYEMGE
EXRWNMET - EINE Y R AR R EEM
BEFERANGEERERFEEZMEF RRE

3 challenging the key estimates and assumptions
(including market comparables and adjustment
factors) adopted in the valuations, on a sample basis,
by comparison with available market data and/or
government produced market statistics; and

o DATMERTE R B A 15 TH 5 BUR K/ ST T 5 AT AT
ELEE - HEETRANEIEAAIRKX(EE
mH LA BERABRRR)REERE - &

o comparing tenancy information, including committed
rental and occupancy rates, provided by the Group to
the external property valuer with underlying contracts
and related documentation, on a sample basis.

e DHEFALREEEZH BEF BESEEM@INE
MELEMREENAZRS RERE - KKEAHE
SR RMEAX M -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZEA RS (8)

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

26
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZEA RS (8)

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZEA RS (8)

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves
fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Chun Pong.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

20 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

= A S
RefliaE
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi) #HZ—Z—N\F+=_A=+—HLFE (UAREFIR)
2018 2017
—E-N\F | ZE—tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B & ARBTRT | ARETT
(restated)
¢ =27p
Revenue A 3 933,971 -
Cost of sales $HE KA (878,800) =
Gross profit =8 55171 - -
Net valuation gain on investment property % & ¥ % t) {4 B W 25 % 58 10 1,478 33,582
Other (loss)/income HEip (EE)/ e 4 (42,972) 41,905
Selling and marketing expenses HERMISHEERX (53,133) =
Administrative expenses TR X (62,861) (50,680)
Other operating expenses HihiEamz (1,020) -
(Loss)/profit from operations meE (F5|) RF (103,337) 24,807
Finance costs & A AR 5(a) (94,983) (35,991)
Share of profits less losses of joint ventures &5 & & 1> % % K 5l & 18 (1,477) -
Loss before taxation BAlEE (199,797) (11,184)
Income tax P15 % 6(a) 13,333 11,111
Loss for the year FAEBE (186,464) (73)
Attributable to: LT AL FELR :
Equity shareholders of the Company AR RE =R R (166,462) (16)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR (20,002) (57)
Loss for the year FAEE (186,464) (73)
Loss per share BREE
Basic (RMB cents) EXR(ARESD) 9 (39.72) (0.00)

The notes on pages 106 to 210 form part of these financial statements.

=RER KB ERAR —ZB—N\FFH

F106E2108 2B AMB R < —#D -

29



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
RERaREMZEGE R

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi) #HZ—Z—N\F+=_A=+—HLFE (UAREFIR)

2018 2017
—E-NEFE | —ZT—LF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT | ARBTT
(restated)
(Fg&E5)

Lossfortheyear . ‘ FRBR ] (186,464)) (73)
Other comprehensive income for FREMEZEKE (HE

the year (after tax and EREHDEAE) .

reclassification adjustments):
Item that may be reclassified subsequently [ 7% A] G2 & %7 7 48 F 18 2%

to profit or loss: ZHEE -
Exchange differences on translation of HE G INZE TS B TS R R B

financial statements of foreign EEZEREZRE

operations 8,157 (16,947)
Other comprehensive income FRAHME2EKE

fortheyear Sl (16,947)
Total comprehensive income FRE2HEKWZHAE

for the year (178,307) (17,020)
Attributable to: DT ATHERL:
Equity shareholders of the Company RAEE=BRE (158,305) (16,963)
Non-controlling interests FEfE AR R = (20,002) (57)
Total comprehensive income FREAKWZEEE

for the year (178,307) (17,020)

The notes on pages 106 to 210 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBRRAE

at 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi) R=ZT—N\F+ZA=+—H (AAREFI'R)

31 December | 31 December 1 January
2018 2017 2017
RZZE-NF RZZE—tF
+=H +=A —E—tF
=t+-—H =+—H —RA—H
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 AR® T ARET T ARET T
(restated) (restated)
(BEF) (RE7)
Non-current assets EREEE
Investment properties REYE 10 602,067 598,550 567,820
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RRE 11 13,682 1,490 230
Properties under development BRAME 12 110,312 110,312 110,312
Prepaid lease payments HNEERE 13 463,979 478,478 492,977
Interests in joint ventures NEEPENERS 15 275,921 = =
Deferred tax assets REMBEE 26(b) 3,817 18,908 =
1,469,778 1,207,738 1,171,339
Current assets REEE
Inventories and other contract costs 7 & Kk H & A A 16 7,783,515 3,471,868 =
Prepaid lease payments BHEEFHE 13 14,499 14,499 14,499
Trade and other receivables JE U B 20 K% H i U TR IE 17 131,482 145,445 5,992
Financial assets at fair value through ~ #&# A FEt A Bz
profit or loss LETREE 18 62,686 58,033 82,029
Fixed deposits held at banks with =@ANEFEBER
maturity over three months - 26,000 40,900
Restricted deposits SR E 7= 19 9,162 16,423 —
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRESZEEY 20 397,075 806,023 331,997
8,398,419 4,538,291 475,417
Current liabilities REEE
Bank loans and borrowings from RITER RS RBEEER
financial institutions 21 1,164,440 750,508 -
Bond payable e & & 22 - 871,303 =
Trade and other payables FE - BR 2 % L At FE 5 3B 23 3,063,929 1,408,569 5,491
Contract liabilities EHBE 24 181,147 = =
Current taxation FER R 1B 26(a) 191,035 177,372 175,616
4,600,551 3,207,752 181,107
Net current assets REBEEFE 3,797,868 1,330,539 294,310
Total assets less current liabilities #EERAE & E 5,267,646 2,538,277 1,465,649
Non-current liabilities EREBER
Bank loans and borrowings from  $R17E 5 M & B (5 X
financial institutions 21 1,338,000 30,000 -
Bond payable e & & 22 894,078 = =
Derivative financial liabilities EeMaRE 23(c) 18,660 = =
Loans from a related party N 25 1,701,092 987,930 =
Deferred tax liabilities BETRIBAE 26 90,459 121,683 132,609
4,042,289 1,139,613 132,609
NET ASSETS FEE 1,225,357 1,398,664 1,333,040
SRR (EE)ERAT —S—\EEH 101



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

AP BIRR (&)

at 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZ=Z—N\F+ZA=+—H(AARKIIR)

31 December | 31 December 1 January
2018 2017 2017
RZZE-NF RZZE—tF
T=A T=A RZF—L£#
=t—H =+—H —HA—AH
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 AR® T ARET T ARET T
(restated) (restated)
(ZE7) (RE7)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital &% AR 27(c) 33,184 33,184 33,184
Reserves & 1,124,588 1,282,893 1,299,856
Total equity attributable to A F SR REMN
equity shareholders of A
the Company 1,157,772 1,316,077 1,333,040
Non-controlling interests FERER 67,585 82,587 =
TOTAL EQUITY B 1,225,357 1,398,664 1,333,040

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20

March 2019.

Lin Rongbin M & &

Director

The notes on pages 106 to 210 form part of these financial statements.
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Cheng Xuan
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi) &k

EE\F+-A=+—HIEFEAARETIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AAARERRELT S
Statutory
surplus Non-
Share Share  Capital  reserve Exchange  Retained controlling
capital  premium  reserve fund  reserve  profits Total  interests Total
EERS FER
Be RORE ExGE  LEE ERRE RERH s Ei  fER
Note RVMB00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEE  ARE  ARE ARE  ARE ARE  AR% ARE ARE
ik T T T T T T T T T
Balance at 1 January 2017, RZE-t%-5-H
as restated &6 RES $3184 911583 18,110 191 (@3024) 413036 1,333,040 - 1,333,040
Changes in equity for 2017: CE-LERHEED:
Loss for the year ERER = = = = = (16) (16) (57) n3)
Other comprehensive income E2EkE - - - - (16947 - (16947 - (16947
Total comprehensive income 2ENGREE - - - - (16947) (16)  (16,963) 57 (17000)
Acquisitons of subsidiaries WERERH - - - - - - - QM 86M
Balance at 31 December 2017, RZE-+E+ZA
adjusted balance at 1 January 2018, = t-RAz&&
as restated W-2-NE-3-A
LERRLs GE) 33,184 911,543 18,110 191 (59971) 413000 1,316,077 82,587 1,398,664
Changes in equity for 2018; Z2-\FRERD:
Loss for the year EmEE = = = = - (166462 (166462)  (20002) (186,464)
Other comprehensive income A2 Aha - - - = 8157 - 8157 = 8157
Total comprehensive income PANEEE = = = = 8157  (166462) (158305  (20,002)  (178307)
Capitalinjection from FRRERTE
non-controling interests - - - - - - - 5,000 5,000
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA
ST-RZER 2 33184 911,543 18,110 191 (51814) 246558 1,157,712 67585 1,225,357

The notes on pages 106 to 210 part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi) #HZ—Z—N\F+=_A=+—HLFE (UAREFIR)

2018 2017
—E-N\E| —FT—LF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5% ARETT | ARETT
(restated)
(=)
Operating activities RETH
Loss before taxation A& 18 (199,797) (11,184)
Adjustments for: BEERNTHE
Depreciation and amortisation e K 15,658 14,572
Fair value changes on listed equity securities FTBRAESRZ AT EEE 10,575 (29,169)
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF T2 F B WA (2,232) (3.322)
Dividend income from financial assets BERATEFABRZEREE
at fair value through profit or loss Z IR BIA (2,040) (3,963)
Share of profits less losses of joint ventures [ERAENERFFRER 1,477 -
Fair value changes on derivative financial MESBIAZATHEEY
instruments (4,285) 13,219
Net valuation gain on investment properties BEWE Z HEREFE (1,478) (33,582)
Unrealised exchange loss/(gain) AERER BB/ (RE) 46,480 (12,178)
Finance costs A& B AR 94,983 35,991
Changes in working capital: BEETEE
Decrease in restricted bank deposits X B HISRITE TR D 7,261 =
Increase in inventories and other contract costs 7 & & E & £ 5K AN 3% AN (3,958,028) =
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables & Ut BR 3% K EL 4 F& U 50 78
(Bm)/md (363,885) 8,066
Decrease in contract liabilities EREERD (779,414) =
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables & 1< B& 5% & EL fth Ji& {5 2B
B/ (RD) 2,540,999 (1,655)
Cash used in operations REXKABRS (2,593,726) (23,205)
Tax paid B (7,376) (214)
Net cash used in operating activities RETHAARSEH (2,601,102) (23,419)
Investing activities REZTH
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W KT B A A - (1,191,093)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWME BEREE (13,313) (839)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEREATEFARR
through profit or loss LERMEE (12,493) =
Placement of fixed deposits held at banks BEAZEANR EEBER
with maturity over three months - (26,000)
Proceeds from disposal of investments &% & A5 3R - 46,128
Investments in joint ventures REELENKE (277,398) =
Withdrawal of fixed deposits held at banks RR=@AN Lt FEHEFER
with maturity over three months 26,000 40,900
Interest received EGE) 2,509 3,517
Dividend received B ) 2,040 3,963
Net cash used in investing activities REZBHMARSTE (272,655) (1,123,424)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

IQ\\%/\ i/ﬂbgig(né-\)

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Renminbi) #Z=—=

—NF+ZA=+T—BIEFE CAARKIIR)

2018 2017
—E-N\F = — L F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5% ARSTR | ARETT
(restated)
(=)
Financing activities METH
Proceeds from bank loans and borrowings RITER - SREBEX
from financial institutions and bonds )Si{,\ %Pﬁ B 20(b) 2,553,240 1,097,931
Repayment of bank loans ERETER 20(b) (831,308) (416,000)
Proceeds from loans from a related party R E R B A 20(b) 6,190,930 1,478,800
Repayment of loans from a related party EREABTER 20(b) (5,173,159) (516,800)
Capital injection from non-controlling FIERERTE
interests 5,000 -
Interest paid EENEESS 20(b) (283,236) (3,590)
Net cash generated from financing activities @& EZEBMEREEE 2,461,467 1,640,341
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BEeRBEEEYWORD)/
cash equivalents EFEE (412,290) 493,498
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—BzEHERBELEEY 20 806,023 331,997
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exgnsd 3,342 (19,472)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December ®R+=-BA=+—-B2zH%
REELZEY 20 397,075 806,023

The notes on pages 106 to 210 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBERERME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

106

(a)

(b)

(BRIE=E A

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
1(c) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group's interest in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

— investment properties (see note 1(h));

— financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(see note 1(f));

— derivative financial instruments (see note 1(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e B MR (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

(0]

Change in presentation currency

In prior years, the functional currency of the
Company and its principal subsidiaries is Renminbi
("RMB") while the Group's consolidated financial
statements were presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"). Having considered that most of the
Group's transactions and business activities are
settled in RMB and conducted in Mainland China
and in view of the recent fluctuation of the
exchange rate of RMB against HK$, the Company
considers that changing the presentation currency
from HK$ to RMB would help to eliminate
fluctuation on the reported results caused by
exchange rate fluctuation which does not have
any direct relationship to the Group’s financial
performance. The Company considers that it is
more appropriate to use RMB as the Group’s
presentation currency for its consolidated financial
statements and this will enable the shareholders
of the Company to better understand the actual
financial performance of the Group.

In view of the above, the Company has decided
to adopt RMB as the presentation currency for the
consolidated financial statements of the Group
effective from 1 January 2018. On the basis that
the functional currency of the Group remains
unchanged, the change of presentation currency
and restatement of the comparative figures from
HK$ to RMB are not expected to give rise to any
impact on foreign exchange gains and losses.

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4= A

B 5 R M aE (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

Change in presentation currency (continued)

The change in presentation currency have been
applied retrospectively. The comparative figures in
the financial statements were then translated from
HK$ to RMB using the applicable closing rates for
assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position and applicable average rates
that approximated to actual rates for items in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Share capital, share premium and reserves
were translated at the exchange rate at the date
when the respective amounts were determined (i.e.
historical exchange rates).

Change in presentation of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

The Group used to present income and expense
items in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
by nature. To keep consistent with the prevailing
industry practice, the directors consider that
presentation of these items by function is more
appropriate and the classification of income and
expenses items was changed accordingly.

The reclassification of income and expense items
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss have
been applied retrospectively. The comparative
figures of these items in the financial statements
were therefore re-presented accordingly. Other
income, gains and losses and investment income
previously presented were categorised into other
income, while depreciation and amortisation,
operating expenses and staff costs were categorised
into selling and marketing expenses and
administrative expenses respectively, by reference to
the functions from which they incurred.

Overview of new and amended standards adopted
by the Group

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to
the Group's financial statements:

(A)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(B) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

(C) HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e B MR (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIERAHA @ SRIGUARES|R)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) () EBE2EH (HF)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted (iii) ERALAEBRMEMN2FTITR
by the Group (continued) RAEFTERI 2 H1 5 (48)

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period, except for the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation which have been adopted at
the same time as HKFRS 9.

(A)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: recognition and measurement. It
sets out the requirements for recognising and
measuring financial assets, financial liabilities
and some contracts to buy or sell non-
financial items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively
to items that existed at 1 January 2018 in
accordance with the transition requirements.
There is no significant impact of transition
to HKFRS 9 on opening balance at 1 January
2018.

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and
the transition approach are set out below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI mEMEE (&)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIERAF A @ SRIGUARES|R)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) BEBEZEH(EH)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted (iii) ERALAEBREMNZFHITR

by the Group (continued) RAEFTE R 215 (4)

(A)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including (A) BETBRELEAEI
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment 2B TA Z2HE
features with negative compensation RN Eﬂ%%&iﬁﬁﬂ
(continued) QSRUBRTAR) + RAE

E1EFTE 1 (&)

a TREEMETHE

a Classification of financial assets and BEZNE

financial liabilities BB mERE
HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into Al 295 & & Bt
three principal classification categories: BE R =M=
measured at amortised cost, at fair THER R
value through other comprehensive KA E BA
income (FVOCI) and at fair value FEFAEME
through profit or loss (FVPL). These [ G R /NS
supersede HKAS 39's categories of Bt AEm - &
held-to-maturity investments, loans BRRTHBZ
and receivables, available-for-sale AERZE 3957 2 58
financial assets and financial assets Bl BB EEE

measured at FVPL. The classification of
financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based
on the business model under which
the financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics.
Under HKFRS 9, derivatives embedded
in contracts where the host is a financial
asset in the scope of the standard are
not separated from the host. Instead,
the hybrid instrument as a whole is
assessed for classification.

For an explanation of how the Group
classifies and measures financial assets
and recognises related gains and
losses under HKFRS 9, see respective
accounting policy notes in notes 1(f),
(9), ()i, (n) and (q).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e B MR (8)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIERAHA @ SRIGUARES|R)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) () EFBERZEH (&)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted (iii) ERALAEBRMEMN2FTITR

by the Group (continued) RAEFTERI 2 H1 5 (48)

(A)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including (A) BETBRELEREI
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment 2B TA EHE
features with negative compensation BEBMBHmEENSE
(continued) CEACCHE R

1B1ERE A H e (4]

a SREENDH
Classification of financial assets and BB (&)
financial liabilities (continued) RIS IERE LD
The measurement categories for all (RBFEE1(k) (i)
financial assets and financial liabilities SN FTBE A
remain the same, except for financial Eks@BEZ
guarantee contracts (see note 1(k)i). AAEEMERET
The carrying amounts for all financial goRnZF—N
liabilities (including financial guarantee F—A—8" F
contracts) at 1 January 2018 have not el =K |- P
been impacted by the initial application A (BB E
of HKFRS 9. REHK) W EZ Y]
T EABETB
WEEAFE IR 2
TR -
AEEI EIETE
The Group did not designate or de- s BYUH 18 T £ ]
designate any financial asset or financial R-E—N\F—
liability at FVPL at 1 January 2018. A—HB&kAFE
FABZ S
BESSRARE -
b EEEE
Credit losses BB W EE
HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” RIS oSt LATEHA(E
model in HKAS 39 with the ECL model. EBFEREATMAK
The ECL model requires an ongoing BEAGHEUNE
measurement of credit risk associated 9| EEAE
with a financial asset and therefore BB - FEHE
recognises ECLs earlier than under the EEEREAEX
“incurred loss” accounting model in HEGFEES R
HKAS 39. BEEFHBZEE

The Group applies the new ECL model
to the following items:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBHRERMETE(E)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZEHA @ BRIHUARKETR)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) () EBER2EH (HF)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted (iiiy BEEAAEEFRERAZTIR

by the Group (continued)

(A)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(continued)

b Credit losses (continued)

— financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, restricted
deposits, trade and other
receivables);

— contract assets as defined in
HKFRS 15 (see note 1(m));

— lease receivables; and

— financial guarantee contracts
issued (see note 1(k)(ii)).

For further details on the Group’s
accounting policy for accounting for
credit losses, see notes 1(k)(i)and (ii).

There is no significant impact to the
Group as a result of this change in
accounting policy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BRI (E)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEBEHA @ BAIHUARETR)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)

(A)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(continued)

C Transition
Changes in accounting policies resulting
from the adoption of HKFRS 9 have
been applied retrospectively, except as
described below:

— information relating to comparative
periods has not been restated.
Differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised
in retained earnings and reserves
as at 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
the information presented for 2017
continues to be reported under
HKAS 39 and thus may not be
comparable with the current period.

— the following assessments have
been made on the basis of the
facts and circumstances that
existed at 1 January 2018 (the
date of initial application of HKFRS
9 by the Group):
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBHRERMTE(E)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZEHA @ BRIHUARKETR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FESTTHE(E)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) () EFBERZEH (&)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted (iiiy BEEAAEEFRERAZTIR

by the Group (continued)

(A)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(continued)

RASTT R 2 B8 ()

BEWBREEEI
% 2MITA BEhE
EEBWHRE LS
95k (BRI A) - REJH

(A)

1BFEFTE A el (5R)

c  BEE)
c  Transition (continued) - EEEAEW
—  the determination of the business SEEE/
model within which a financial BB

asset is held; and 54

— BRI
— the designation of certain BIEEEW
investments in equity instruments AR A & &Y
not held for trading to be aETRER
classified as at FVOCI (non- NEERTA
recycling). H b2 m R
= (Al &

) o
— if, at the date of initial application, — WAV E
the assessment of whether there FREH: 3
has been a significant increase in EERRE
credit risk since initial recognition )46 FE 58 LA
would have involved undue cost RELGRE
or effort, a lifetime ECL has been HINFEE D
recognised for that financial &S KA
instrument. % PR AN 3%
A - BIFER
ZemIT A
B 17 48 B 38
HiEEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e B MR (8)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIERAHA @ SRIGUARES|R)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)

(B)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognising revenue and
some costs from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which
covered revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specified the
accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional
qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements which aim to enable users of the
financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative
effect transition method and has recognised
the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance
of equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore,
comparative information has not been
restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 11 and HKAS 18. As allowed by
HKFRS 15, the Group has applied the new
requirements only to contracts that were not
completed before 1 January 2018.

There is no impact of transition to HKFRS 15
on retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4= A
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B 5 R M aE (48)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)

(B)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes on previous accounting policies are
set out below:

Timing of revenue recognition
Previously, revenue arising from
provision of services was recognised
over time, whereas revenue from sale
of goods was generally recognised
at a point in time when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods had
passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
when the customer obtains control of
the promised good or service in the
contract. This may be at a single point
in time or over time. HKFRS 15 identifies
the following three situations in which
control of the promised good or service
is regarded as being transferred over
time:

A.  When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity
performs;

B.  When the entity’'s performance
creates or enhances an asset (for
example work in progress) that
the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBHRERMTE(E)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEBEHA @ BAIHUARETR)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) () EFBERZEH (&)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted (i) BEAEEREAZHITR
by the Group (continued) RAEFTERI 2 H1 5 (48)
(B) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with (B) BAEUBMEELES
customers (continued) % EEEAVRA (&)
a. Timing of revenue recognition a. WARERZEME
(continued) (%)

C. When the entity’s performance C. EEBZRE
does not create an asset with an 1T R R
alternative use to the entity and BliE—I18 %
the entity has an enforceable EEmMsA
right to payment for performance BERA®Z
completed to date. BE-BE
BBEAB R
7 1 FI| W BR
ZS5RIE
TEPX 2 B &Y

DR o
If the contract terms and the entity's i a HIERRE
activities do not fall into any of these BREAOTRILD
3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 BRZ=TEER
the entity recognises revenue for the Z Ef—% - Al
sale of that good or service at a single B & F 0% IR

point in time, being when control has HHEBFE 1558 -
passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of BRENE —H
ownership is only one of the indicators 25 (BN il s
that is considered in determining when BF) L EH & P qhEk

the transfer of control occurs. PR 7% ®E R U A ©
[2 B K [B] 37 2 &2
BERNETEE

i 7 8 15 B A
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Notesto ﬂwe(ionsoﬂdated Financial Statements (continued)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZBHEA » BRIGAARKETIR)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) BEBEZEH(EH)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted (iii) ERALAEBREMNZFHITR
by the Group (continued) RAEFTE R 215 (4)
(B) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with (B) HEBGHREXAERZE1S
customers (continued) B EEEAKA (E)
a.  Timing of revenue recognition (continued) a. WARERZEME
(%)

Currently the Group’s property development BRI A"&EEZ

activities are carried out in Mainland MEZREHE

118

China only. Taking into account the
contract terms, the Group’s business
practice and the legal and regulatory
environment of Mainland China only,
the Group has assessed that its property
sales contracts do not meet the criteria
for recognising revenue over time
and therefore revenue from property
sales continues to be recognised at a
point in time. Previously the Group’s
policy to recognise revenue from
property sales upon the later of the
signing of the sale and purchase
agreements, the completion of the
property development and the delivery
of properties to the customers, which
was taken to be the point in time when
the risks and rewards of ownership of
the property were transferred to the
customers. Under the transfer-of-control
approach in HKFRS 15, revenue from
property sales is generally recognised
when the property is delivered to the
customer, which is the point in time
when the customer has the ability
to direct the use of the property and
obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits of the property.

This change in accounting policy had no
material impact on opening balances as
at 1 January 2018. However, in future
periods it may have a material impact,
depending on the timing of completion
of the Group’s property development
projects.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A B ERRME (E)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIESAHAA @ SRIIUARES|R)

SRR 22E (&)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c)

(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)
(B) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

b.

Significant financing component
HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust
the transaction price for the time value

(iii) 75 B8 A 5% [ P 5% AR 2 #7 °T %
RASTT R 2 B 5 ()

(B) &E

MR mE

ZERIZE15

5 - EPEAIMA (B)

b.

BEABERD
BB HREE
@|J$155)T%EEE

of money when a contract contains BARERN IL

a significant financing component, BEABMEILD
regardless of whether the payments HEEREE E
from customers are received significantly HEZZERE

in advance of revenue recognition or
significantly deferred.

IR RPN ]
e B W A FE R
Al 2 3T 18 W B B
B2 -

Previously, the Group only applied EULE K&
such a policy when payments were EEMNREEL
significantly deferred, which was not =R E A &K
common in the Group’s arrangements R maZiBENE
with its customers. The Group did not EUEZIK%@EE,H\
apply such a policy when payments BEFP2LTHEHR I
were received in advance. ~E R BAl
AT W HR AT 73R BF
FFZBUR ©
Advance payments are common in B RERAE
the Group’s arrangements with its IEEEEJE 2 &
customers, when residential properties PR EBER -
are marketed by the Group while the AEEBEWMER
property is still under construction. BERgEHET

In assessing whether such advance
payments schemes include a significant

SN
Eﬁ ?%ﬁﬂﬁ?x?r%ﬂ

financing component, the Group has BEEEKNR
considered the length of time between ;ﬁ D ARE
the payment date and the date when = E*E BHEHEP
the customers obtain control of BBV
the properties based on the typical ¥ ZERNRE

arrangements entered into with the
customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e I ImEM R (&)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

120

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)
(B) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

b.

Significant financing component
(continued)

Where payment schemes include
a significant financing component,
the transaction price is adjusted to
separately account for this component.
In the case of payments in advance,
such adjustment results in interest
expense being accrued by the Group
to reflect the effect of the financing
benefit obtained by the Group from the
customers during the period between
the payment date and the date of
delivery of properties to the customers.
This accrual increases the amount of
the contract liability during the period
of construction, and therefore increases
the amount of revenue recognised
when control of the completed property
is transferred to the customer. The
interest is expensed as accrued unless it
is eligible to be capitalised under HKAS
23, Borrowing costs, in accordance with
the policies set out in note 1(w).

As a result of this change in policy, the
Group has made adjustments which
increased inventories and contract
liabilities by RMB56,873,000 at 1
January 2018. As all of the accrued
interest was eligible to be capitalised
into projects still under development,
this change in policy has had no effect
on retained earnings as at 1 January
2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Re B mERNEE (8)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIESAHAA @ SRIIUARES|R)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)
(B) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

() EFBRZEH(E)
(i) BEAEEMERZHIR
BASFTE A 2 HE 5 ()
(B) BEMBIREAERIZE S
5 EEEAA (B)

c.  Sales commissions payable related to c. BHYEHEEEN
property sales contracts EHZENIES
ik
The Group previously recognised sales AEE LB B
commissions payable related to property HEYEHEEEHD
sales contracts as selling and marketing BlEZEMNEE
expenses when they were incurred. 1B & 84 i
Under HKFRS 15, the Group is required RAEDHEEKA o
to capitalise these sales commissions 1B 18 B 7 B 75
as costs of obtaining contracts when HEBIFE 155 -
they are incremental and are expected rEEAKZS
to be recovered, unless the expected HEMREENE
amortisation period is one year or less BREELNZK
from the date of initial recognition X(EHR RS
of the asset, in which case the sales I 78 B T A M
commissions can be expensed when [B]) - Bk FETE HA sk
incurred. Capitalised commissions are $HERBE B R R
charged to profit or loss when the BEBHMER—
revenue from the related property sale FYIRE—F
is recognised and are included as selling FELBERT - 88
and marketing expenses at that time. EMESARNEL
KEtABR- &
HESY EEE K
ABRE - K&
e Lt A
wmI AR R 2D
As a result of this change in accounting BR BB
policy, the Group has capitalised REEH AEH
sales commissions payable related to BEE ALY
property sales contracts amounting to HEGHNEBEZ
RMB13,235,000 and increased deferred FENHERE A
tax liabilities by RMB3,309,000. There R # 13,235,000
had been no impact on retained 7T 0 TR R T IR
earnings as at 1 January 2018 as such BEANEMNAR
sales commissions payable arose in the #%3,309,0007T °
subsidiary before being acquired by the RZZE—N\F—
Group. A—BZ2REBA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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M5 Rk M aE (%)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)
(B) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

d.

Presentation of contract assets and
liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is
recognised only if the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration.
If the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(u) before being
unconditionally entitled to the
consideration for the promised goods
and services in the contract, then
the entitlement to consideration is
classified as a contract asset. Similarly,
a contract liability, rather than a
payable, is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually
required to pay consideration and the
amount is already due, before the
Group recognises the related revenue.
For a single contract with the customer,
either a net contract asset or a net
contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and
contract liabilities of unrelated contracts
are not presented on a net basis (see
note 1(m)).

Previously, receipts in advance relating
to property sales were presented in
the consolidated statement of financial
position under “trade and other
payables”, and direct costs incurred
in respect of the Group’s property
development business were included
within inventory until the properties
were delivered to the customer and the
revenue was recognised for the reasons
explained in paragraph (a) above.
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)
(B) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

d.

Presentation of contract assets and
liabilities (continued)

To reflect these changes in presentation,
as a result of the adoption of HKFRS
15, "“Receipts in advance” amounting
to RMB903,688,000, which were
previously included in trade and other
payables are now classified as contract
liabilities on the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 1 January
2018.

Disclosure of the estimated impact on
the amounts reported in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2018 as a
result of the adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1
January 2018

The following tables summarise the
estimated impact of adoption of
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018, by comparing the
amounts reported under HKFRS 15 in
these consolidated financial statements
with estimates of the hypothetical
amounts that would have been
recognised under HKAS 18 and HKAS
11 if those superseded standards had
continued to apply to 2018 instead of
HKFRS15. These tables show only those
line items impacted by the adoption of
HKFRS 15:
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)
(B) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)
e. (continued)

() BITEEZ22F (&)
(iii) BEAAEEMERZHITR
BASFTE R 2 L5 ()
(B) BBMBIREHERIE S
5 BESAIMA (&)

e. (#&)
Difference:
Amounts estimated
reported in  Hypothetical impact of
accordance amounts  adoption of
with under HKASs  HKFRS 15 on
HKFRS 15 18 and 11 2018
(A) (8) (A)-(B)
E8 R
—B-N\E

REBRE ERET FREERE
HEELR EAFE18R HEEAE
515 % 5 METH 15BN MEE
WEHE(A) BESEMB) FZ(A)-(B)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT AREBTIT

Line items in the consolidated statement SRMBEBUBEREEAE 1SR
of profit or loss for year ended FENBE-_E-N\&
31 December 2018 impacted by TZA=t—HLEE
the adoption of HKFRS 15: GEBBRRPER

Revenue WA

Cost of sales 80 E BN

Gross profit ER

Selling and marketing expenses HERMGHEERY

Loss from operations REBE

Loss before taxation BATE B

Income tax P iG %

Loss for the year FAEE

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of AAREZEREELER
the Company

Loss per share (RMB cents) BREBR(AR%ES)

Line items in the consolidated statement of ZHMAEBHEREERF 155
profit or loss and other comprehensive NENBE-E-N\F
income for year ended 31 December 2018 +t-A=+-HLEFEHEER
impacted by the adoption of HKFRS 15: REME2ERSEERPER :

Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKRAE

Total comprehensive income attributable to 7~ 2 5] # % K R E1E &Y
the equity shareholders of the Company 2HKREE
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933,971 877,098 56,873
(878,800) (821,927) (56,873)
55,171 55,171 -
(53,133) (40,614) (12,519
(103,337) (90,818) (12,519)
(199,797) (187,278) (12,519)
13,333 10,024 3,309
(186,464) (177,254) (9,210)
(166,462) (159,166) (7,296)
(39.72) (37.98) (1.74)
(178,307) (169,097) (9,210)
(158,305) (151,009) (7,296)
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)
(B) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

(BR3EXAHA - BRGUARETIR)

(0 BFBERz2EH (&)
(i) 5 B A< 5% B T R AR 2 3 BT %
RASTT R 2 B 58 ()
(B) BARHBMEERIES
5 EPAAIMA (B)

e.  (continued) e. (#&)
Difference:
Amounts estimated
reported in  Hypothetical impact of
accordance amounts  adoption of
with under HKASs HKFRS 15 on
HKFRS 15 18 and 11 2018
(A) (B) (A)-(B)
=8 R
—E-N\E
BEBME ERET BRHBEBUE
|EER EBF18R HEEAUE
E15 %5 MBETH 1550
MWEFEA) BELEB) FE(A)-(B)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TT ARETRT
Line items in the consolidated statement of SIRME B BHRE LA E 15%
financial position as at 31 December 2018 FENBZE_E—N\&E
impacted by the adoption of HKFRS 15: +t-BA=t—-HLEE
GEMBERRKRTER
Inventories and other contract costs FERHMA DA 7,783,515 7,782,799 716
Total current assets REBEELAE 8,398,419 8,397,703 716
Trade and other payables e A°F B 7% I L At B A 500 3,063,929 3,245,076 (181,147)
Contract liabilities ENEE 181,147 = 181,147
Total current liabilities RBEEATE 4,600,551 4,600,551 -
Net current assets REBEEFE 3,797,868 3,797,152 716
Total assets less current liabilities BHEERRBEE 5,267,646 5,266,930 716
Line items in the reconciliation of profit SRAEBUBEREENE 5%
before taxation to cash generated FENBE_E-\&
from operations for year ended +ZB=+-HLEE
31 December 2018 impacted BARAELEEH
by the adoption of HKFRS 15: FEREHERHIER .
Loss before taxation HAER (199,797) (187,278) (12,519)
Increase in inventories and other contract costs  F& M E A 45K Ki‘ bl (3,958,028) (3,958,744) 716
Increase in trade and other payables 15 B 3R % At B A SR TR SE N 2,540,999 1,580,438 960,561
Decrease in contract liabilities EHEERD (779,414) = (779,414)
The significant differences arise as a EAEREHAE it
result of the changes in accounting SHKEEHM
policies described above. B4 o

=R (RE) BRAR ZB—I\FFH
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(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(iii) Overview of new and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)
(©)  HK (IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on
determining “the date of the transaction”
for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) arising
from a transaction in which an entity receives
or pays advance consideration in a foreign
currency.

The interpretation clarifies that “the date
of the transaction” is the date on initial
recognition of the non-monetary asset or
liability arising from the payment or receipt
of advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance
of recognising the related item, the date of
the transaction for each payment or receipt
should be determined in this way. The
adoption of HK (IFRIC) 22 does not have any
material impact on the financial position and
the financial result of the Group.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual obligation
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 1(0) or 1(p) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(f)) or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(k)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or the Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if
any). The cost of the investment includes purchase price,
other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
the investment, and any direct investment into the joint
venture that forms part of the Group’s equity investment.
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s
net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (see note 1(k)(iii)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’'s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with any other long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Joint ventures (continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when joint control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(f)).

Other investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in equity securities,
other than investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures,
are set out below:

Investments in equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are initially
stated at fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs, except for those investments measured at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair value of
financial instruments, see note 28(f). These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on
their classification.

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment
meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the
fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit
or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at
FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policy set out
in note 1(u)(iii).
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Other investments in equity securities (continued)
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in securities held for trading were
classified as financial assets measured at FVPL.
Any attributable transaction costs were recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value was remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

Investments which did not fall into any of the
above categories were classified as available-for-
sale financial assets. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value was remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve (recycling).
Dividend income from equity investments were
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policies set out in note 1(u)(iii), respectively. When
the investments were derecognised or impaired (see
note 1(k)(i) — policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in
equity was reclassified to profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they
are still in the course of construction or development
at the end of the reporting period and their fair value
cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement
or disposal of an investment property is recognised in
profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 1(u)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Lease payments are accounted for as described in
note 1()).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE MR (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Other property, plant and equipment

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(k)).

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Plant and machinery 10 years
Furniture, fixture and equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Improvements to premises 3 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

The carrying amounts of other property, plant and
equipment are reviewed for indications of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. An impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of an asset, or of the cash generating unit to
which it belongs, is the greater of its fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

132

Leased assets (continued)

Assets that are held by group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a
finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e B HmERNEE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables

A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

— financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, restricted deposits and
trade and other receivables); and

—  lease receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including units in trust protection funds and
equity securities measured at FVPL, are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).
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M5 R M aE (%)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (continued)

A)

Policy applicable from
(continued)
The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

1 January 2018

—  fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current

effective interest rate;

— lease receivables: discount rate used
in the measurement of the lease
receivable.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE RN (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (continued)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease
receivables and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in
which case the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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M5 Rk M aE (%)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (continued)

A)

Policy applicable from
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
(i) the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and
gualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

1 January 2018

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Re I mER MR (&)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (continued)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

(BR3EXAHA - BRGUARETIR)

k) FEFEREERE (&)
() EWMIR SHEERBEE
BHRE2EEER (&)

(A)

=RERGRE)ERAR —ZB—N\FEFEH

A=-ZFE—NF—H—H
HEEFRB R ()
BiEe@mTAZHES
EERBRAE S AREEM
2GR E R s e
LT o BAHEIREE
AEEETR epIT A
RIEDEZEERERE
BEITH A - EEAAR
MEEERBTR -

BEHEEBEBENES RS
BHEEHE - ARKR
BT ERARESE T
AEERR2Z(L - 18
HEEBESB IR
BC MR aE T MR R
BN ER - AEHE

RABTBWTEZR
Bl REE - WiEB
EIERERYERmE
EITHEAE - EEA
FEESARMBEEY
= (A 818 2 MBS
BRI - HER

BB E b 2 T 25 1
RANAFBEREE
s (Tale) -

MBWAZFHEEE

MBWRAZEBEEZ
RIREERE - BRIES
BEEHREERE -
FERBRT - FEHBA
BEREE B
( B 42 A 0 18Rk /5 18 1%
w)EtE -

REREBE  A&H
A EREERD LR
EERE - E%E—1R
HZIAY G RE E T
AXRBERER T
BoEMHR SREE
i RS ARUE ©

137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A MR RME (B)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (continued)

A)

Policy applicable from
(continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

1 January 2018

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset or lease receivable is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e B HmERNEE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (continued)

®)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss”
model was used to measure impairment losses
on financial assets not classified as at FVPL
(e.g. trade and other receivables). Under the
“incurred loss” model, an impairment loss
was recognised only when there was objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment included:

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBHRERMTE(E)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEBEHA @ BRIHUARKETR)
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(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) k) EEEEREERE(E)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments, contract () £WMIE - AHNEEREE
assets and lease receivables (continued) FBRFIEZEEEE (F)
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 B) R=-ZF—/NNF—H—H
(continued) IR ()
If any such evidence exists, any impairment WFEEEA B - Bli%
loss is determined and recognised as follows: AR 75 N R R A
BEETE
For trade and other receivables — HREWEREIRK&
and other financial assets carried at H b 8 Y RIE BA
amortised cost, the impairment loss is R E A 4% 8 55 X
measured as the difference between AAFEz e/ E

the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash

E WMBREZE
EBEX BE

flows, discounted at the financial asset’s ERNEEZE
original effective interest rate (i.e. the HEENEHE

effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the

ERBERRF R (A
NTHERZEE

effect of discounting is material. This ERNFTECE
assessment is made collectively where BRA ) BLIR 2
these financial assets share similar risk HEFRKR &R
characteristics, such as similar past due ERBECERET
status, and have not been individually E- Wz
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows EEBBEEUR

for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e B HmERNEE (8)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIERAF A @ SRIIUARES|R)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract

k) FEFEREERE (&)
() EWMIR SHEERBEE

assets and lease receivables (continued) EBWREZEEEE (&)
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 B) RZF—NF—HA—H
(continued) IR (&)
—  (continued) - (&)
If in a subsequent period the amount of WREEESRE

an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount

£ HE %S B R
L BEREB L&
HeE 52RL (B &5 18 1R
HHEZEMHA
7 AR EEIE
eRBEHEDE R
Bl - BREEEZ

7

exceeding that which would have been BETSERE
determined had no impairment loss EZEHERB
been recognised in prior years. LA 2 3 £ 1
RO EE B R E
BEZHE -
When the recovery of a trade debtor EREHK AT
or other financial assets carried R B JE R 3R 3k
at amortised cost was considered H &5 & E W
doubtful but not remote, associated R A ATER M
impairment losses were recorded using NIZE | e S
an allowance account. When the Group 8 B8 R B B 18 IR
was satisfied that recovery was remote, OB %K B &
the amount considered irrecoverable Ao B ALK E R
was written off against the gross Rl m 2 e
carrying amount of those assets directly. bl H R - Al
Subsequent recoveries of amounts R A M E /Y
previously charged to the allowance REEEHEZE
account were reversed against the EEMNERAES
allowance account. Other changes in FEWEH o W ST Al
the allowance account and subsequent AR EER 25K
recoveries of amounts previously written HAEHZIKE -

off directly were recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e EmEMEE (&)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIERAF A @ SRIGUARES|R)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) k) EEEEREERE(E)

(ii)  Credit losses from financial guarantees issued (i) BEBRHMBERZEEESE

Financial guarantees are contracts that require MBERRBRTEETACE
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified [ERADEHIEEST
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the NERZRA (B HERE
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs A BEBEEEEARERE
because a specified debtor fails to make payment BT E ZIEFHRA D EARE
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt RMEAZBERZEHL -
instrument.
Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised EEEHCUBERVFZEA
within “trade and other payables” at fair value, SBR[ T AR SR IR A FE AT
which is determined by reference to fees charged FE | NER  MzEAFE
in an arm’s length transaction for similar services, DEEBREFNEERTIK
when such information is obtainable, or to interest B A B R 1) 2 B 0 1 3 8 2
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates RN E 5 FEUER B 51 I &
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made (W B8 & R A fE I AT Se (b 5T)
available with the estimated rates that lenders % 2EBLURBEHAFER
would have charged, had the guarantees not SFEFTWER &R (R &S
been available, where reliable estimates of such REBRE) N REEmME
information can be made. Where consideration TE o MR B EZ YE (R B YL ER
is received or receivable for the issuance of the A WERAE - ZRERR
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in BAEEEANZEEEDN
accordance with the Group'’s policies applicable to BEmTFHER - WEBRE
that category of asset. Where no such consideration i A BN B T B - BB
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is A8 R o

recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount RN FERE - VR ERE

initially recognised as deferred income is amortised FEEW AR & R ERIEA

in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as RERGEIRERTHRER

income from financial guarantees issued. BB BB ERAWA -

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 A) B=F—NF—HA—H

L AR R
The Group monitors the risk that the specified AEERERBEEEBA
debtor will default on the contract and BRHER - 3T
recognises a provision when ECLs on the EROBHEEEBRE
financial guarantees are determined to be EESRERD [ ER
higher than the amount carried in “trade and AR R % ELAth 5K
other payables” in respect of the guarantees PR RE (B9 A 1R
(i.e. the amount initially recognised, less SRR ATT ) RN
accumulated amortisation). R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e B HmERNEE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(ii)  Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
(continued)

A)

B)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)

To determine ECLs, the Group considers
changes in the risk of default of the specified
debtor since the issuance of the guarantee. A
12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased
significantly since the guarantee is issued,
in which case a lifetime ECL is measured.
The same definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in credit risk
as described in note 1(k)(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments
only in the event of a default by the specified
debtor in accordance with the terms of the
instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments
to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amount that the Group expects
to receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party. The
amount is then discounted using the current
risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, a provision would be
recognised if and when it became probable
that (i) the holder of the guarantee would call
upon the Group under the guarantee and (ii)
the amount of the claim on the Group was
expected to exceed the amount carried in
“trade and other payables” in respect of the
guarantee.

(BR3EXAHA - BRGUARETIR)

k) FEBFEREERE (&)
(i) EREMBERZFEER

(#&)

(A)

(B)
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SN EUEIBRT - A&
AHEREFENNED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
g R E (&)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

4= A

RN

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(iii)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  prepaid lease payments; and

— investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures.
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

(k)

(BR3EXAFHA - BRGUARETIR)

FEFEREERE (&)
(i) HMERBEERE

AEBEN SRS PERE
T AR & SN R B R R
AHEE NIIEERGRIE
HBERROBEBERES

THEEEL AL -
— % EERERHE

- FENHEERE: &

- RWBRAREKEELE

ZIE

WEFEEFNERTR - AlE

BETEEM A IRE SR -
— A EAKETE

The recoverable amount of an asset is the BEZAIWESEAE
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal DR A AN B

REEzZRE - N
L AEER - fhEtR
KIR 2 E LA AR
BRI S S E¥EREE
B R EERE R R G
ZBRTRRIR = - BRIRE
HBE - WEEEAN L
REEEBUNEME
EZREMARE - AILA
BEMBIUELBRESRA
ZER/NEEMR (IR
SELEEM)BEAK
Ol &5

and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE RN (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (KIERA A - SRIGUARES|R)

FEFEREERE (&)
(i) HpFRBEERE(H)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) (k)
(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

(iv)

—  Recognition of impairment losses TSR R 1B TR
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or WEESKEMBREE
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or H B2 REEBRE

the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less

AU el &5 - RIRE R
BRERER - LRE
EEBMTER 2 RIER
1B 2P ZE
7 (SRZAEL) RE A
BECEEE HEE
RHENEREENE
(Eb AN =V fa k24

costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in KN(AAETE) kERE
use (if determinable). B (EEETE) -
—  Reversals of impairment losses —  EEEEEE

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been

BLEE (BB BN W
= AREE TR

a favourable change in the estimates used to SR MTHREMNE
determine the recoverable amount. FEs - BAREEE
AllgfmE -

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited TEETE 2 B BRI E
to the asset’s carrying amount that would A F [E 30 S RE R A
have been determined had no impairment BEEE BT RE
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals BEZEERMME- AT
of impairment losses are credited to profit B BB EBERER

or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would
at the end of the financial year (see notes 1(k)(i) and

(iv)

BlFEt AR °

o S B T R R R E
REBEBHERXSMBERA
Az EmAA . NREBEA
BEBSTEAF 345 - F
P BHRE  mBEMBFE
BANERZTHRMBRSE -
7N SR B A AP HR H R BR A B B
B E F R AR R 2 R E R
A R RS (R K
1(k)(0) K (i) °

(ii)).
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A MR RME (B)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

146

(1)

Inventories and other contract costs

(0]

Inventories

Inventories in respect of property development
activities are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost and net realisable values are
determined as follows:

—  Property held for sale and under development
for sale
The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials and
supplies, wages and other direct expenses,
an appropriate proportion of overheads and
borrowing costs capitalised (see note 1(w)).
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in selling the

property.

—  Completed property held for sale
The cost of completed properties held for
sale comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

In the case of completed properties developed
by the Group, cost is determined by
apportionment of the total development costs
for that development project, attributable to
the unsold properties. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less
costs to be incurred in selling the property.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Re I mER MR (&)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIERAF A @ SRIIUARES|R)

() Inventories and other contract costs (continued) () BFEREMSHORE (E)
(i)  Other contract costs iy EHEgQamaA
Other contract costs are either the incremental costs EMEHKAIERERNEE
of obtaining a contract with a customer or the costs T (RHEE10)36) % -
to fulfil a contract with a customer which are not R R sk (RBYEE 1)) Bt
capitalised as inventory (see note 1(I)(i)) or property, BEEBSALNNIEE KA
plant and equipment (see note 1(i)). TERERR PR LA KIRIPKAN ©
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those FEBA NS ARIEER
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract BEEHZBEATRTIEE
with a customer that it would not have incurred HE2REBANREBEFESAS
if the contract had not been obtained e.g. an #T EE AR MO SZ S A (a3
incremental sales commission. Incremental costs of EHEME) o MACARERFR
obtaining a contract are capitalised when incurred if KRR 3RS HA R A RR B Uk 25 48
the costs relate to revenue which will be recognised % B TE B A AJ U R kA - Rl
in a future reporting period and the costs are BESAMNIGENARES-
expected to be recovered. Other costs of obtaining BFEARL - BIEELOHHAM
a contract are expensed when incurred. AR EER T °
Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the MK A ERZERE S A
costs relate directly to an existing contract or to BRIREMTBE AL
a specifically identifiable anticipated contract; EA B &8RN RHE
generate or enhance resources that will be used EmiREHEIR  RIEH
to provide goods or services in the future; and 1 e - Bl T2 & A B K
are expected to be recovered. Costs that relate rEgERtb - BEEHEBRES
directly to an existing contract or to a specifically XA FRIRERTETE L
identifiable anticipated contract may include direct BHENKAFIEBEEES
labour, direct materials, allocations of costs, costs B BEME - RSB
that are explicitly chargeable to the customer and A AR e |) 2 2 OB Y B R K
other costs that are incurred only because the ERAEBIZENME
Group entered into the contract (for example, ERRA (B RT 58
payments to sub-contractors). Other costs of ) ERA N E MK AR
fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised as (RERNEATFESDE - &
inventory or property, plant and equipment, are EREE) RNELERTY -
expensed as incurred.
Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less B E Rt & KB AR B AR
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. 2t RBEEEE -
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent EAHKNAEEMNREER
that the carrying amount of the contract cost B)ASEBEHERRERE
asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of P E kBRI M S WER Y
consideration that the Group expects to receive in RABEREE (i1) 18 AR FERR A 5
exchange for the goods or services to which the X EEARRZEER K
asset relates, less (i) any costs that relate directly to R FE B A9 I A AR B R 58
providing those goods or services that have not yet - RERBERE
been recognised as expenses.
Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged BER LA XA SE
to profit or loss when the revenue to which the REEMBWZFHRIEREN
asset relates is recognised. The accounting policy for Nk - WERN et R
revenue recognition is set out in note 1(u). BT EE 1(u) ©
=BIER (£E) ARAT Z8—\FFH 147
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(m)

(o)

M5 Rk M aE (%)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(u)). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1(n)).

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see note
1(u)).

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

In the comparative period, deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition were presented as “receipts in advance”
under “trade and other payables”. These balances have
been reclassified on 1 January 2018 as shown in note 24
(see note 1(c)(iii)(B)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see note 1(m)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see note 1(k)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A B ERRME (E)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(p)

(s)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Trade and other payables are subsequently stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy
set out in note 1(k)(i).

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

(r)
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e MR (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Income tax (continued)

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that
is, those differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods,
in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(h), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those
assets at their carrying value at the reporting date unless
the property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B ERRM T (8)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIERAF A @ SRIIUARES|R)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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(u)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services or
the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases in
the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration
for any effects of a significant financing component if the
period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)  Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties
developed for sale in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the property is
delivered to customer, which is the point in time
when the customer has the ability to direct the
use of the property and obtain substantially all of
the remaining benefits of the property. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold prior
to the date of revenue recognition are included in
the statement of financial position under contract
liabilities (see note 1(m)).
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(u)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(0]

(i)

Sale of properties (continued)

When residential properties are marketed by the
Group while the property is still under construction,
the Group may offer a discount compared to the
listed sales price, provided the customer agrees
to pay the balance of the consideration early. In
such cases, if the advance payments are regarded
as providing a significant financing benefit to the
Group, interest expense arising from the adjustment
of time value of money will be accrued by the
Group during the period between the payment
date and the date of delivery of properties to the
customers. This accrual increases the balance of the
contract liability during the period of construction,
and therefore increases the amount of revenue
recognised when control of the completed property
is transferred to the customer. The interest is
expensed as accrued unless it is eligible to be
capitalised under HKAS 23, Borrowing costs, in
accordance with the policies set out in note 1(w).

In the comparative period, revenue from sales of
properties was recognised upon the later of the
signing of the sale and purchase agreements, the
completion of the properties and the delivery of
properties to the customers, which was taken to
be the point in time when the risks and rewards of
ownership of the property had passed to the buyer.
Deposits and instalments received on properties
sold properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition were included in the statement of
financial position under trade and other payables
and no interest expense was accrued on payments
received in advance. As a result of the change in
accounting policy for accruing interest on payments
in advance, adjustments have been made to
opening balances as at 1 January 2018 (see note

1(c)iii)(B)).

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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(u)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Dividends

— Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

—  Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 1(k)(i)).

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items
are translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e B HmERNEE (8)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIERAF A @ SRIIUARES|R)

(w) Borrowing costs (w) fBFRRKAS
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the BE  DEfAESTEREEEE
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which DVERER S ECEEEEM
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready B2BRNE BN BZEEL
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the EBD AN o EMfE KA E A 5
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in I 8H -

the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost EEFEAERY  EBEEERKAKE
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for TETEFEEENERTR SR
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being HE Y BT Ve - BIFIE SR
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare KARE R S EREEKA—L
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Do BERBEBBREENERTER
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases BREEZMVETEBAI D P
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare sl ES - @ E 1 Z ek 4R E B Rk
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are REARAL -

interrupted or complete.

(x) Related parties (x) EAHE
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s (@) fWEBATAL  BlZZAL
family, is related to the Group if that person: AT 2 HKRER B EAR
SEEH
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) HAEEERESIEK
FE [R5 4
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAREBEEEATE
7755k
(i) is a member of the key management (i) AAEEFIAKEEAQ
personnel of the Group or the Group'’s parent. A EEEEENXES -
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) MEBRBKENATEMS  BIsE
following conditions applies: NEEF R
() The entity and the Group are members of the () ZERBEASEBER-—
same group (which means that each parent, EEZKE AR (A&
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to FR7A] - WEA R KA
the others). RB A F I EE
i) o
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture (iiy —HEEBES—EEZ
of the other entity (or an associate or joint e NFRE B
venture of a member of a group of which the (HZEMERERMBE
other entity is a member). Elpdd=PNCIPA: 2N
AlEERE) -
(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) MEEBHARA—F=
third party. FZEERE -
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity (iv), —RERAFEF= &8
and the other entity is an associate of the Z2EELE ME—E
third entity. BITAR—F=78%

ZHERT]

=RERGRE)ERAR —ZB—N\FEFEH
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(x)

Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. ANNUAL REPORT 2018

(x)

(y)

BAEESS ()
(b) fHERISIATEME  RIMR

REBERREE : (8)

(v) ZEBRAKEZER
SEEHE cEEE
BRI maR 2 B R 1=
FEHE -

s
o
it
>
H-
e
%

i

—
[«3]

o e
7g of
it
o+
>

A

ggl_

"

Ht
pai
m
e
TE]
3
il

I R m %

(viii) ZERIZERMEBE

%
e 1

ZEEHZ
RILEEET
ﬁ% °

— R AL A RREK B IEFAERE
HEBZRXHTAZEZALRE
FANLHEBZREKE -

P
A S TR TARE S ER
1R EE L R & BT R
E @R %8 BTBAARE
RS BEROREEERAH G E
Bl - 4835 AR AT MBI
REJIZBENBRENEHEBE
B o

EREXREE D BTSN UETR IR
RFIEAR - FRIFZ S D RIEAMEEZ
mEEE . BEERERBIEE
EERENE  BEPBELSMER
FAPAD $HE mn AR AR FS 2 JT A A
REEREBZHEAEE o HIE5]
PEREED HHEARE D ZEH
B RIFTREREA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Re IR R (&)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(a)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the accounting
judgements to the deferred taxation on investment
properties.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the Company
have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolio.
With the long-term lease agreements entered in 2018,
the Group changed its intention and determined to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company
have considered that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale
is rebutted. Accordingly, the deferred tax liabilities of
RMB82,416,000 in respect of land appreciation taxes in
Mainland China were reversed and deferred tax liabilities
in respect of corporate income taxes are recalculated
and increased by RMB51,192,000 correspondingly. No
deferred tax has been recognised on changes in fair value
of investment properties situated in Hong Kong as it is
not expected to have tax consequence upon disposal of
these properties. Any change in the business model of
the Group for those investment properties would affect
the carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities to be
recognised and hence net profit in future years.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 10 and 28 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation of
investment property and financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i)  Income tax
Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses and
other deductible temporary differences carried
forward are recognised and measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period. In determining the carrying
amounts of deferred tax assets, expected taxable
profits are estimated which involves a number of
assumptions relating to the operating environment
of the Group and require a significant level of
judgement exercised by the directors. Any change
in such assumptions and judgement would affect
the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to be
recognised and hence the net profit in future years.
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(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Investment properties

As described in note 10, the fair value of the
Group's investment properties situated in Hong
Kong and Mainland China at 31 December 2018
had been arrived at based on a valuation carried
out at that date by Cushman & Wakefield Limited
(formerly known as “DTZ Cushman & Wakefield
Limited”), an independent professional valuer. The
fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2018 was arrived at based on direct
comparison method or term and reversion method.

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the
Group’s investment properties are RMB602,067,000
(2017: RMB598,550,000). By relying on the
valuation reports of the independent professional
valuers, the management has exercised its judgment
and is satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the market conditions prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Any changes in the
market conditions will affect the fair value of the
investment properties of the Group.

Properties under development and prepaid lease
payments

As described in notes 12 and 13, the carrying
amounts of properties under development and
prepaid lease payments at 31 December 2018
were RMB110,312,000 (2017: RMB110,312,000)
and RMB478,478,000 (2017: RMB492,977,000)
respectively. As at the date of this report, the
Group had not yet received the final approval on
the planning design scheme from the relevant PRC
government authorities and development of this
property development project was delayed.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Properties under development and prepaid lease
payments (continued)

Determining whether properties under development
and prepaid lease payments are impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit, which is the higher of the
value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The
fair value less costs of disposal of the properties
under development and prepaid lease payments
at 31 December 2018 has been arrived based on
a valuation carried out at that date by Cushman
& Wakefield Limited, an independent professional
valuer, based on direct comparison method
assuming sales of the property in its existing state
and by making reference to comparable sales
evidence of similar nature properties as available in
the relevant market.

Inventories

As explained in note 1(I), the Group’s land held for
future development, properties under development
and completed properties held for sale are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Based
on the Group's recent experience and the nature
of the subject property, the Group makes estimates
of the selling price, the costs of completion in case
for properties under development, and the costs to
be incurred in selling the properties. If there is an
increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net
sales value, impairment provision for inventories
may be resulted. Such provision requires the use of
judgment and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, the carrying
value and provision for properties in the periods in
which such estimate is changed will be adjusted
accordingly.

Given the volatility of Mainland China’s property
market and the distinctive nature of individual
properties, the actual outcomes in terms of costs
and revenue may be higher or lower than estimated
at the end of the reporting period. Any increase or
decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss
in future years.
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(@) Revenue

(BR3ERAHA - BRGUARETIR)

(a)

The principal activities of the Group are property
development and sale, and property investment.

Revenue are net of sales related taxes and discounts
allowed. All the revenue are generated in Mainland

A

AEEE2EB/MEERMIHE
ARMERE -

W A H0BR 55 6 48 B8 B0 18 Se AT AT 4T
0 - B RARN B A -
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China.
2018 2017
—E-N\E | —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T | AR®TT
(restated)
(&E5)
Revenue from contracts with EAUEREENE 155
customers within the scope of BEERNZCEFAENWRA
HKFRS 15
— Sale of properties —YEHEE 923,765 -
Revenue from other sources H g A KR
— Gross rentals from investment —REYEZHCERE
properties 10,206 -
933,971 -

The Group's customer base is diversified. None of the
Group's client with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group's revenue.

(i)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future
arising from contracts with customers in existence
at the reporting date

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregated
amount of the transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations under the
Group’s existing contracts is RMB198,317,000.
This amount represents revenue expected to be
recognised in the future from precompletion
sales contracts for properties under development
entered into by the customers with the Group. This
amount includes the interest component of pre-
completion properties sales contracts under which
the Group obtains significant financing benefits
from the customers (see note 1(u)(i)). The Group
will recognise the expected revenue in future when
or as the work is completed or, in the case of the
properties under development for sale, when the
properties are assigned to the customers, which is
expected to occur over the next 12 to 36 months.
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REFERNEBTTVAEBER
FYENBLEEREEELH
RO A - ZeBEBEETE
HEKDEHEES LT B
o BHAEERETFE
BEZMNHE M= (R K
T(u)(i) o A& B R KK
TREIXMEEFMEL
E IR MEEETRFE
(TEERE AR 2R 12 2= 3618 A
A ) HERTBERIA o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A B ERRME (E)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (continued)
(i)  Total future minimum lease payments receivable by
the Group

Total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in place at the
reporting date will be receivable by the Group in

(a)

(BR3EXAHA - BRGUARETIR)

WA ()
(i) ARBRYCKESERE
TRARER

7% S [ 7 2R 28 A ) S i R
e B BHITR N A EH A
LHE T RAKEHEENK

future periods as follows: HBEEMT
2018 2017
—E_N\NFE | —_E—+&
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE | AR TT
(restated)
(gE5)
Within 1 year —F RN 19,000 -
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREAFNRN 91,984 =
After 5 years AFUE 97,474 -
208,458 =
Segment reporting (b) D EPHRE
Operating segment 4% o

The Group’s operating activities are attributable to
a single operating segment focusing on property
development and property investment. This operating
segment has been identified on the basis of internal
management reports prepared in accordance with
accounting policies conform with HKFRS 8, that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
("CODM") (i.e. the executive directors of the Company).
The CODM regularly reviews property portfolio by
locations and considers them as one single operating
segment since all properties, including those situated
in Hong Kong and Mainland China, are held by the
Group for earning rental income and development.
No revenue analysis, operating results or other discrete
financial information is available for the assessment of
performance of the respective locations.

=RERGRE)ERAR —ZB—N\FEFEH

AREHNREXB R TN EER
EYERENE QLD EETT -
A EDBIIENEREEMBR
EEAE MM BT BERM AR R L
WBEPEERE T AR - AERE
BRRE(TXTE2REREKE | B
ARBMITES) EHEHN - =2
REARRE R ERHYE
e BREMYE(BRUNE
BRPBERBEYE) TR AEE
FHEEARRENMAE  WARE—
REDE - BBADHIT - REXE
REMEBYBEM AT SRR
B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e M ERRME (E)

w3

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZEHA @ TRIHUARKETR)

3

Revenue and segment reporting (continued) 3

(b) Segment reporting (continued)
Geographical information

Information about the Group’s non-current assets
(other than deferred tax assets) is presented base on

WA RSB E ()

(b) 2EEE (&)

AEBREEIK LR D M El
DEEREEE CREHRE ERK
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the geographical location of the assets or location of SN) BRI
operation as follows:
2018 2017
—E-NF| ZT—+tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T | ARETT
(restated)
(&)
Hong Kong &5 40,570 38,570
PRC =5 1,425,391 1,150,260
1,465,961 1,188,830
Other (loss)/income 4 HM(HER) Kk
2018 2017
—®-_N\F | —B—+%F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR T | AEETx
(restated)
¢ =27
Net exchange (loss)/gain PE X (E18) /e F8E (40,954) 12,173
Project management income HEERKA - 6,250
Interest income on bank deposits |ITHERZFBWA 2,232 3,322
Dividend income from financial assets BAVEFAEBERZZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREECKREBA 2,040 3,963
Fair value changes on listed equity securities EFRABES L AFEE (10,575) 29,169
Fair value changes on derivative financial PTHESTTEZ AT (E#E
instruments 4,285 (13,219)
Net gain on disposal of property, LEME - BE X
plant and equipment J AR W 5 R = 247
(42,972) 41,905
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE MR (&)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrIESHHEA » TAHUARKESIR)

5 Loss before taxation 5 WMABR
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): HANSE &R/ (FEA) A TN RIEREZ
E g
(@) Finance costs (a) BERKAS
2018 2017
—E-NF | ZF—+F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT | ARBTT
(restated)
¢ =:27p)
Interest on borrowings from financial & B B R B
institutions 204,421 125
Interest on bonds BEBERE 82,557 9,936
Interest on loans from a related party BT B R B 73,803 25,930
Other finance costs H b g & Bk 2N 87,821 =
448,602 35,991
Less: interest expense capitalised B BERNMEATESSE
into inventories* ZHMBERZ* (353,619) =
94,983 35,991
@ The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 9.14% L EREARRFENEIN14%ERE
per annum (2017: Nil) (ZF—+ : #\)
(b) Staff costs (b) BIRA
2018 2017
—E-N\F | ZE—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT | ARBTT
(restated)
(e&E75)
Salaries, wages and other benefits He ILERHMER 28,222 13,414
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR k48 Fl 512 2 & 2,443 647
30,665 14,061
=R (EE)ARAE —8—\FEH 163



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4= AR

M5 Rk M aE (%)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

w3

164

(b)

Staff costs (continued)

Hong Kong

The Group participates in a defined contribution
scheme under Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme”). For members of the MPF Scheme,
both the Group and the employee contribute 5% of the
employee’s relevant income to the Scheme according to
the MPF ordinance.

Mainland China

The employees of the Group in the Mainland China are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the respective local governments in relevant
jurisdictions. The Group is required to contribute and
recognise a specified percentage of payroll costs to the
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligations of
the Group with respect to these schemes are to make
the specified contributions and recognise the respective
retirement pay in accordance with terms set out in the
schemes and relevant jurisdiction requirements.

(b)

(BR3ERAHA - BRGUARETIR)

ETHRA (&)

58

AEE2 Gt T E([58
REE 8 )E TN 2 ERHEREE
ERRES EINE  REBES
fERpl - AR E N B iRE S HH
R # 5% AT B -

REIR i

REE 2P BERNMES RBEEE
BESWIT BN EECBERERR
RAERIGHBIZ KB - AR BB
SRR ZIEE B D L RR KRG
SRR M AEH AR femRERIK
BH o NEBBRNZFRKEHE
i —BERFELIEE 2 HRA
FESRIR BR T & P AV 155K 76 B =)
AEBEEBENERZABEEARTE -

Other items (c) HfbEBE
2018 2017
“E-N\E | —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T | AR®TT
(restated)
(&E7)
Operating lease charges: LEHEST W
minimum lease payments EHEEHR 2,366 1,383
Depreciation and amortisation e R 15,658 14,572
Cost of inventories FERK AR 878,800 -
Auditors’ remuneration G
— Audit service — BE R 1,280 933
— Non-audit services —EE R 780 1,109
2,060 2,042

Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e B HmERNEE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents:

(BR3EXAHA - BRGUARETIR)

(a) HREBBERARZHIES !

2018 2017
—E-N\E | —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT | ARBTT
(restated)
(rg&75)
Current tax B HA ¢ 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") FREZERER
(THECEMEH]) 5,912 =
Withholding tax BINRIE S B 197 213
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary ERUEZECES RBE
differences (19,442) (11,324)
(13,333) (11,111)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the
Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
2018 is calculated at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of
the estimated assessable profits for the year. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in the consolidated financial statements as the
Group has no assessable profit for both years.

The provision for CIT is calculated based on the
estimated taxable income at the rates applicable to
subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland China. The
income tax rates applicable are 25% (2017: 25%).

Withholding tax represents tax on interest income
received from a subsidiary in Mainland China at 7%
(2017: 7%) of the amount received.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

=RERGRE)ERAR —ZB—N\FEFEH

RERSESMEBERAR
BHE((EBERARKS]) 2
MAIRRH - AEEBER
MASHERABERRE
5 ZEFFEH -

—E-)N\FEBFNEHE
HBIRFERNGER G
2165%( =— & — + &£
16.5% )5t HE - AR AEEH
EFEEHERZER G - W
B E R AR S BT I RR B
EBFISRIEL A -

T EMBREBERIBEA
&= B Fh A i BB A B E A
2R RBH 2 (EE R U
AFTE - BAMEHRMEA
25% (ZF—+F 1 25%) °

BHHABEBEPR AL —F
BB A B FT AR BN 2 ) Bk A
ZHIE @BEEREK
WMEE2 7% (T — L4
7%) °
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= A\
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEBEHA @ BRIHUARKETR)

6

166

Income tax in the consolidated statementof 6 FSESEXMRTZHERN

profit or loss (continued) (&)
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (@) ZREBERFTIZBES:
loss represents: (continued) (#&)

(vy  PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) is levied on v) AEEHEEMBRZ2WER
properties developed by the Group for sale, at B+ (B (EIGIE 30% £ 60%
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on 2 2R BN R B £ i
the appreciation of land value, which under the ER (T EHIBER ) - B
applicable regulations is calculated based on the EREBN - LHBRER TR
proceeds of sales of properties less deductible & W TS SRIE R AT A
expenditures including lease charges of land use X (BETHERAELES
rights, borrowing costs and relevant property H o BB AR K E R ) 2 R
development expenditures. RFAX)FE

(b) Reconciliation between tax (credit)/expense and (b) FiE(E) /B EERE AR E
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: BHzEEEYEROT ¢
2018 2017
—E-N\E| —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTr | ARETx
(restated)
(&)
Loss before taxation T Al s 18 (199,797) (11,184)
Notional tax calculated at applicable ZIE & E A R E A
income tax rate of the relevant F 1S % & qu BEHEENE
group entities concerned (44,223) (4,559)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T —I WA 2 B 5 & 608 934

Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBKRA ZRB 22 (691) (3,243)

Tax effect of unused tax losses RER R Ejj Fﬁ T8 & 18

not recognised I 61,574 15,038

Tax effect of valuation of investment A E A TE 2B E

properties (note 2(a)) (FtsE 2(a)) (31,224) 5,361
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FRBE ik EE A
tax losses TMIBEBE = (24,258)

Withholding tax B 197 213

Others HAtb 426 (597)

Actual tax credit ERBIBEE R (13,333) (11,111)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE MR (&)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEBEHA @ BAIHUARETR)

7 Directors’ emoluments 7 EEie
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RIBBEBRGHEHIZE383(1) KR AR (#
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BESMNREN)ROIFE_BHRECE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of EfMEmT :

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2018
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 2 Bk ZE-N\F
EENE REWNAZ (R B @t

RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR AR®Tn AR%TR AR%®T:R

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Lin Rongbin WERE L& - 1,014 - 15 1,029
Ms. Cheng Xuan Bzt - 1,267 - 15 1,282
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Xiao Zhong HREE 152 - - - 152
Mr. Xu Jianwen AR KA 152 - - - 152
Independent non-executive =~ BIYFHTEE

directors
Mr. Pan Dexiang BEEEL 152 - . _ 152
Mr. Zhong Bin EWrk 152 - - - 152
Mr. Yuan Chun RERE 152 - - - 152

760 2,281 - 30 3,071
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e EmEMEE (&)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIERAF A @ SRIGUARES|R)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2017
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e o 28 BIK ZT—LF
EEHe REDH& [DRERAAN BRI B
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Bz ARBFTr ARETT ARETR AREFRT AR®ETR
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Lin Rongbin MEBEE @) - 663 - 10 673
Ms. Cheng Xuan Rt (@) = 829 = 10 839
Mr. Lau Kam Sen ALELE (b) 36 617 = 7 660
Ms. Chan Siu Chun, Candy RSN | (b) 36 604 = 7 647
Non-executive directors EHTES
Mr. Xiao Zhong HREE @) 99 - - = 99
Mr. Xu Jianwen Rl s () 99 = = = 99
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas 2|38 % & (b) 36 = = = 36
Mr. Wong Man Hoi ITXEEE (b) 36 = = = 36
Independent non-executive BYEHTEE
directors
Mr. Pan Dexiang EEELE 6) 99 = = = 99
Mr. Zhong Bin EWLE (@) 99 = = = 99
Mr. Yuan Chun RELE (a) 99 = = = 99
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon kB E (b) 36 = = = 36
Mr. Robert Charles Robert Charles (b)
Nicholson Nicholson %&£ 4 36 - - = 36
Mr. Wong Kun Kau BEM L (b) 36 - - = 36
747 2,713 - 34 3,494
Notes: 5T -
(@)  Appointed on 11 May 2017 (@) RZZE—tFRA+—BEZAE
(b) Resigned on 31 May 2017 by M-ZE—+tFERA=+—HEE

RER AEERECHNHBENESK
TR 8 P #L < (] I & & = BB A
ITHOE  FREREEREENAREE
2 RENSF SRR AE - RERENE
HERMZHE  BEEFHERRBRE
EE

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Group
to the directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set
out in note 8 as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 BRI ()

%

.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

T 5

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, 2 (2017: 4)
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7.

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other 3

(2017: 1) individuals is as follows:

(BR3EXAHA - BRGUARETIR)

—F
—tF - WE)ATAES EMEE
AW ¥ 7 #EE -

hEEmFmMALTES  BmA(

BERI=F(—ZT—+oF: —2) A+
2B ENT

2018 2017

“E-N\E | —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T | AR®TT

(restated)

(E5)

Salaries and other emoluments o K H 3 B 1,037 810
Retirement scheme contributions RORET S 3k = 6
Performance related incentive payments B RIDH N 7 B E 149 =
1,186 816

The emoluments of the 3 (2017: 1) individuals with the highest

emoluments is within the following bands:

AI=F(ZF—tF: —R)R=FHMH

HK$Nil to HK$500,000
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000

T T E 500,000 7% T
500,001 & JCZE 1,000,000 7T

AT ZEBN A TEE :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AE
1 1

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB166,462,000 (2017: RMB16,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue of 419,114,000

(2017: 419,114,000).

No dilutive loss per share is presented as there were no dilutive
potential ordinary shares in issue during both years.

=RERGRE)ERAR —ZB—N\FEFEH

FREREETIZRAAGHER AEGE
BARK166,462,0007T (ZF—+4F :
AR¥16,00070) R NEFHEBITYE
BAYEE 419,114,000 (=T —+4 :
419,114,000 %) 5t & -

HREZMEADED RITAEHEE
N2 BB R #2558 EETE

B
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RE IR (&)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIERAF A @ SRIGUARES|R)

170

RMB’'000
ARET T
Fair Value A¥E

At 1 January 2017, as restated RZZE—tF—A—H L££7 567,820
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss REEPER A FEE N 33,582
Exchange adjustments IE H R (2,852)

At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018, as restated R-ZE—+FE+-_A=+—8Bx
—2-NF—A—8  KF7 598,550
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss R PR Z A FEE N 1,478
Exchange adjustments VE 5 38 & 2,039
At 31 December 2018 R_E-NF+_A=+—H 602,067

The Group leases out investment properties situated in
Mainland China under operating leases. The leases typically
run for an initial period of at least 10 years, with an option
to renew the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased every 2 or
3 years to reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

The fair values of the Group'’s investment properties situated in
Hong Kong and Mainland China at 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017 had been arrived based on a valuation carried
out on the respective dates by Cushman & Wakefield Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuer not connected to
the Group whose address is 16/F., 1063 King’'s Road, Quarry
Bay, Hong Kong. Cushman & Wakefield Limited is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties measured
at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, are
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as set out below:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs

Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A B ERRME (E)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIERAF A @ SRIIUARES|R)

The following tables gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as

TREIMAEEZFREDENRF
B(LEREETNEMAERZ2E) AR
REGAFEABZHEORZAFES

the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements o
are categorised.
Carrying value of Relationship of
investment properties held Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable  unobservable inputs
by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) input(s) to fair value
rEEMERENEZ NYE hER % EARH TAEESH
REE £ REE2Y BE2Y BATENBE
At 31 December 2018
“®-Nft=A=t-H
Commercial property in Qingdao, Level 3 Term and reversion method Reversion rate based The higher the reversion
Mainland China E=5 FHRERE on market research on rent, the higher the fair
HEANERSEENE comparable rentals and value.
The key inputs are: making adjustments on EsHels  NLEY
TELHA: factors such as location, =R
(1) reversion rent; and floor size and facilities.
EHEfHe R BREANHLBALE  The higher the reversionary
(2) reversionary yield TEMEFEREME +  yield, the lower the fair
EEkHEE BEARRRXBEREZE value
A - ERNHEEES  ATE
HE -
Reversionary yield which is
4.5%.
EREREER45%
Commercial property in Harbin, Level 3 Term and reversion method Reversion rate based The higher the reversion
Mainland China E=R EHRERE on market research on rent, the higher the fair
mEANRREEEE comparable rentals and value.
The key inputs are: making adjustments on EEHeHs  ATEY

R2HUR:

(1) reversion rent; and

BEAE R

(2) reversionary yield
CETEE

factors such as location,
floor size and facilities.
EEXERHLBRALH
mERRTEREME -
EERRREREEREE
A% -

Reversionary yield which is
4.5%.
BRREERA5%

=
m °

The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair
value.

EEhEENS  ATE
M o

=R (£ E) ER AT —B—\NEFH 171




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBHRERMTE(E)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEBEHA @ BRIHUARKETR)

Carrying value of Relationship of
investment properties held Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable  unobservable inputs
by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) input(s) to fair value
ARERERENEZ AVE fhER & EXAT FTBER2H
REE g4 REEZH BE2Y EATENBE
Commercial properties in Hong Kong  Level 2 Direct comparison method assuming N/A N/A

EEWENE E-0 sale in its existing state and by making ~ FiEA TEH

reference to comparable sales evidences
of similar nature properties as available
in the relevant market.
NEREERZEZBBMS L ARY
ENTLHERINEELBE o

At 31 December 2017

“E-t¥t-A=t-H
Commercial property in Qingdao, Level 3 Direct comparison method assuming Price per square metre, The higher the price per
Mainland China E=H sale in its existing state and by making ~ using market direct square metre, the higher
mERNNEEEENE reference to comparable sales evidences  comparables and taking the fair value.
of similar nature properties as available into account locationand ~ FE HABRHE - AF
in the relevant market. other individual factors such  E# 3 o
WEREERZ2ZHBEMS ZREY  asenvironment, building
ENLEERHHNERLES facilities, levels, etc., which  The higher the level
is ranging from RMB9,279/  adjustment, the lower the
The key inputs are: sq.m. to RMB14,416/sg.m.  Tair value.
TERH5 RETHRERERER BEARHUE ATEH
MHLRAELEFHA Ko
(1) Price per square metre; and I E REMERREZWR
BYIRER R 5 MERN BESR
BRZ RBTAANT
(2) Level adjustment ARE9279TEARE
BEAZ 14,416 T °
Level adjustment on
individual floors of the
property range from 40%
t0 70% on specific levels.
NEXBENREREA
{5 RM40%ZE70% °
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A B ERRME (E)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR3EXAHA - BRGUARETIR)

Carrying value of Relationship of
investment properties held Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable  unobservable inputs
by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) input(s) to fair value
ARERERENEZ NYE hER % EXRT FIBRSH
EBEE 24 BIESH 5258 RAVERBE
Commercial property in Harbin, Level 3 Direct comparison method assuming Price per square metre, The higher the price per
Mainland China EF=H sale in its existing state and by making ~ using market direct square metre, the higher
hENRRERENE reference to comparable sales evidences  comparables and taking the fair value.
of similar nature properties as available ~into accountlocationand ~ FF K ERHET - AT
in the relevant market. other individual factors such  E#iS e
NEREERZ2ZHBMS ZREY  asenvironment, building
ENTHHEETHNEELEE facilities, levels, etc., of
RMB29,734/s.m.
The key inputs are: REYHRERERER
TERHA 5 LB A T 8 5t A
fiiE R EMEREZME  The higher the level
(1) Price per square metre; and 5 - MEXMH  BESE  adjustment, the lower the
BYHRER R ER%Z - RETARAR fairvalue.
%29,7347T BEERMR DVEE
(2) Level adjustment & -
EERE Level adjustment on
individual floors of the
property range from 50%
t0 70% on specific levels.
NEXBENRERRA
{ARIBARE50%ET70% °
Commercial properties in Hong Kong  Level 2 Direct comparison method assuming N/A N/A
YT EYES -} sale in its existing state and by making TER TEA

reference to comparable sales evidences
of similar nature properties as available
in the relevant market.
DERRLERZZRBT S FARY
ENTHEERFNERELBE -

=RERGRE)ERAR —ZB—N\FEFEH
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A MR RME (B)

RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

174

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation of the Group’s investment properties. At the end of
each reporting period, the management of the Group works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will
first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
transaction prices or derived observable quoted prices in the
active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group
will adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs.
Where there is a material change in the fair value of the assets,
the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the board of
directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no

transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3 (2017: None).

Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. ANNUAL REPORT 2018

(BR3ERAHA - BRGUARETIR)

AR AKREREMELZ AFER - KA
SEERRZHERNERAMSIBREH
B WMYES1EGABE A5ES
ZRRE=SEERMGEMEAEE 2K
BMFRETHE RNERSHR - A%
BEEERAERINBEEMEZS
1 LY RMEFE B EERTD RE
ABE - ETE2EBREIE R FER
B WMBAREBEARZERNLA BEE
MG Z A BRBRERS  AAKE /S
BEERERAE2EBARE - BX
BEE2ERWABER  AEBEBSRHK
BRFIBGARBZAEERD - HE
EZRAFELRRENZ  BEERA
NAEESERNBZIEAR -

HE_Z—N\F+_A=+—HLHF
B $—REFE_HoEWEERE 5
BARBEHE="H(—T—+F: &) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE MR (&)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEBEHA @ BAIHUARETR)

11 Property, plant and equipment 11 PE - BERRH
Furniture,
Plantand fixture and Motor Improvements
machinery  equipment vehicles  to premises Total
BEEE
BERKE RERRE RE NR%EE @zt

RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTRL ARBTL ARBTR ARKTR

Cost S
At 1 January 2017, as restated RZE—tF-A-R"

"BE7 61 9,083 144 - 9,288
Additions NE - 839 - - 839
Acquired on acquisitions of subsidiaries KERBARMSG - 49 444 = 493
Exchange adjustments R AR = (1 = = (1
At 31 December 2017 and RZZ—t%

1 January 2018, as restated +-A=t-BK

“Z-\f¥-A-H 61 9,970 588 - 0,619
Additions NE = 4,117 590 8,606 13,313
Exchange adjustments BEHAE - 47 - - 47
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF+ZA

=t+-A 61 14,134 1,178 8,606 23,979
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE
At 1 January 2017, as restated RZE-—t§5-A-R"

"E5 54 8,860 144 - 9,058
Charge for the year ERE - 64 9 - 73
Exchange adjustments AR = 2) = = @)
At 31 December 2017 and RZZE—+%F

1 January 2018, as restated +ZA=+-8k

“Z-)\f—R—H 54 8,922 153 - 9,129
Charge for the year ERE - 427 114 618 1,159
Exchange adjustments BN AR - 9 - - 9
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\$+2R

=E1=f 54 9,358 267 618 10,297
Net book values REZEE
At 31 December 2017, as restated RZZE—t+&+=A

=t—H &&7| 7 1,048 435 - 1,490
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\$+ZR

== 7 4,776 911 7,988 13,682

=R (£ E) ER AT —B—\NEFH 175
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RE I mEM R (&)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

176

The amount comprised project design and pre-development
costs, professional fees, amortisation of prepaid lease payments
capitalised and other related fees and taxes that are directly
attributable to the development of the Group’s prepaid lease
payments.

At 31 December 2018, the Group has not yet obtained the
final approval on the planning design scheme from the relevant
local government authorities with respect to the property
development project. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, properties under development are not expected to
be realised within the Group’s normal operating cycle and are
classified as non-current assets. The directors of the Company
considered active development of property development
project has been suspended, as a result the capitalisation of
construction costs, including amortisation of prepaid lease
payment, has ceased since June 2016.

(BR3EXAFHA - BRIGUARETIR)

HHRBRBRA KA AREER X
E BENMeRNEERIEEHENLERE
B R S R % R H R AR 2 H A8
FAERARDIA -

R-ZE-N\FE+-_HA=+—0 A&HE
fe AR Y AE B 3t 75 AT #B P9 EX A5 A 4 3¢ 2
RIA B MR BRI RORBRIL - K
ARREFRAMERI TS EARE
B EFRERDRAAER - At B8R
HERBEE - ARAEZRRMEER
BREZEERERE XM - Fil - BEX
R ERBENEERERFER)IEE_F
—NERABRTTFUAERE -

2018 2017

—E-N\E | ZT—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T | ARBTTT

(restated)

(=E75)

At 1 January n—HA—H 492,977 507,476
Amortisation for the year F R (14,499) (14,499)
At 31 December nt+=-—A=+—8H 478,478 492,977

Analysed for reporting purpose as: MEFRBODMA

Current assets e B E 14,499 14,499
Non-current assets EREBEE 463,979 478,478
478,478 492,977
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e MR (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (KIERA A @ SRIIUARES|R)

TREJHBAEEZXE  EELA
BEEATZEZMBRBEN -BRE

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise HIBRAN - FTis AR FE RIS AT o
stated.
Proportion of ownership interest
BEEEREND
Place of Group's
incorporation Particulars of effective Held by Held by
Name of company and business issued capital interest the Company  a subsidiary Principal activity
A R BB i1 AR Mk
ARER Ry ha&®  BERER 2} NAKE TEEH
REENBAEERAA Harbin USD 18,000,000 100% = 100%  Property investment
(Harbin Lifestyle Commercial BEE 18,000,000 % ¢ MERE
Building Co., Ltd.) *
EGREEEERAA Shenyang USD 89,990,000 100% = 100% Property investment
(Shenyang Yifu Property Company) * Zh 89,990,000 % T MERE
#EBE(58)ERAR Qingdao RMB 225,000,000 100% = 100%  Property investment
(Lifestyle Plaza (Qingdao) Co., Limited)* & & ARE ETe
225,000,000 7T
ERFARREZER LA Zhanggju RMB 18,000,000 80% - 80% Real estate development
(Zhanggiu Zhengda Tianyuan ER ARE BiELR
Development Limited) * 18,000,000 T
BEARRERREBR LA Hong Kong USD 100,000 90% = 90% Investment holding
(Hong Kong Zhong Sheng Property Bk 100,000 % T REER
Investment Limited) *
TEBRERERER DA Pingtan RMB 300,210,000 90% - 100% Real estate development
(Pingtan Yangguang Guohang Land TE ARE FiHELR
Limited) * 300,210,000
NR=EEHERLEERAA Nantong RMB350,000,000 92% - 92% Real estate development
(Rudong Sansheng Real Estate Epl ARE BHERE
Development Limited) * 350,000,000 7T
BNEEEHEREBBAT (M)  Fuzhou RMB 20,000,000 30% - 30% Real estate development
(Fuzhou Shenghai Real Estate &M ARE FHELE
Development Limited) * (note) 20,000,000 7T
BNEREHEREERAR Fuzhou RMB200,000,000 100% = 100% Real estate development
(Fuzhou Shengxin Real Estate BN AR FEHEEE
Development Limited) * 200,000,0007T
BNRERWEREERAR (M)  Fuzhou RMB50,000,000 30% - 30% Real estate development
(Fuzhou Zhisheng Real Estate i ARE EHERE
Development) * (note) 50,000,000
BNE2EHEREARAR Fuzhou RMB19,608,000 28% - 51% Real estate development
(Fuzhou Shengaquan Real Estate B ARE FHELRE
Development Limited) * 19,608,000 T
RERERHEREERAR Xiapu RMB50,000,000 55% - 100% Real estate development
(Fujian Pusheng Real Estate 2% ARE BHEEE
Development Limited) * 50,000,000 7T
EB-RBEARAA Zhangzhou RMB50,000,000 100% - 100% Real estate development
(Longhai Sansheng Real Estate Limited) * 5/ ARE EHEER
50,000,000 7T

=R (EE) BRAR ZB—I\FFEH
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= A\
rAH

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk3E5 A 5487

14

178

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

RS R R M5 (&)

* These entities are limited liability companies incorporated in Mainland
China. The English translation of the names are for reference only.

The official names of the companies are in Chinese.

Note: in accordance with the shareholder agreements, the Group controls
the two entities as the Group has rights to take unilateral decisions
on relevant developing, operating and financing activities which
significantly affect the returns, and the Group is exposed to variable
returns from its involvement with the entities.

The following table lists out the information relating to
subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-controlling
interests (NCI). The summarised financial information presented
below represents the amounts before any inter-company

P BRBGUARETIR)

14 RIBERE BT ()

ZEBRATEAMEMK L 2BEREE
AF EHER AXERBEERS
Z o ZERAPXEHTBEE A

M RERRHGE  BRAREAREMKRE

BOHEMER -

EREMBEAZE

BERBEESELET
EE 2&%@?%‘]{“

ER ME2EERTHTHERED

;o

TRINLBRAAEEFEERIFERE
mZMBRBZEMN - TRARUKE
B RETARREHEZ SR -

elimination.
Zhanggiu Zhengda Hong Kong Zhong Sheng
Tianyuan Development Property Investment Fuzhou Zhisheng Real
Limited Limited Group Estate Development
EnEARREE ERHRELRE ENBEEHERY
ARAR ERAAEE ERAR
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\E | ZE-tfF | ZB-N\E | ZT-+tF | ZE-N\E | ZB-tF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR | AR®TT | AR%TR | AREFR | ARETR | AR%TR
(restated) (restated)
(mE5)) (BE3))
NCI percentage FRRERAAL 20% 20% 10% 10% 70% -
Current assets THEE 1,363,670 2,365,358 2,113,305 1,510,359 1,201,595 -
Non-current assets ERBEE 458 19392 3,359 - - -
Current liabilties RHAE (670853) | (2,246,750) |  (1,398,328) (751,293) | (1,202,852) -
Non-current liabilties ERBER (590,000) (30,000 (204,100) (149,200 - -
Net assets EERHE 103,275 108,000 514,236 609,866 (1,257) -
Carrying amount of NCI FERERZREE 20,655 21,600 59,519 60,987 (880) -
Revenue ey 923,765 - - - - -
Loss and total comprehensive ERRRELEER
income attributable to 2ENRAE
shareholder for the year (3,780) - (94,159) (579) 31) -
Loss and total comprehensive AEFEERESR 2 ER
income allocated to NCI REAKELE (945) - (1,468) (58) (880) =
Cash flows (used in)lgenerated TolES (Ff)/
from fERERE
- operating activities ) (196,011) = (580,874) = 1,050 =
- investing activties -REEY 57 - (1,004) - = -
-~ financing actvities -RHEEH (29,474) = 633,135 = = -
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AR

15

A MR ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Interests in joint ventures

Management considers that none of the joint ventures of the
Group will have significant impact to the financial position and
performance of the Group individually.

(BR3EXAHA - BRGUARETIR)

15

.
b

m

=
Y
AL

I ¥E
° B

0 18

BEEEMiER
BRA - AEESECEEERNT
BB B R EAUER A

2018 2017
—E-N\F| ZF—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R | AR¥TT
(restated)
(&E5)
Share of net assets EIEEEFE (1,477) -
Shareholder’s loans to joint ventures (note) BRERHBEELENER(MZE) 277,398 -
275,921 =
2018 2017
—E-N\F | ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT | ARBTT
(restated)
(/= E%)
Aggregate carrying amount of individually REEEMBREFEBM
immaterial joint ventures in the TEEMNEGELED
consolidated financial statements REEARE 275,921 =
Aggregate amount of the Group's share of FAREEEGZE
those joint ventures’ profits less losses and EEPENERN LT
total comprehensive income for the year WEEREENZERE (1,477) =

Note: The loans are unsecured, interest-free and have

terms.

no fixed repayment

=RERGRE)ERAR —ZB—N\FEFEH

M - B EER - 28 REEAEERBR -
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4= A

B 75 R M AL ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

w3

16

Inventories and other contract costs

(BR3ERAHA - BRGUARETIR)

16 FEREMSHIAE

180

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
“E-N\% —Z-N\F —T+F
+ZA=+—H —HA—B +TZA=+-H
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ik ARET T ARET T ARETR
(restated)
(&=7))

Properties held for development BIELHEREMER

for sale and properties under HEBRTPME

development for sale 7,629,903 2,702,314 2,664,880
Completed properties for sale BELEEERNME 152,896 816,501 806,988
7,782,799 3,518,815 3,471,868
Other contract costs Hith & #IAR (i) 716 13,235 =
7,783,515 3,532,050 3,471,868

Note: ek -

(i) Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, opening adjustments were made as (i) RIRMBBMEREERFE1558% - B
at 1 January 2018 to capitalise certain sales commissions which were —ZE-N\F—A—BELHTRAEUKR
expensed in prior periods. This has resulted in an increase in contract FHRXHENE THEREERE - B
costs as at that date (see note 1(c)iii)). ZBEBEHE LKA i (R 1(c)

(iii)) °

(a) Inventories @ #E
The amount of inventories recognised as an expense and BRAERIRFTABE=ZZ—N\F
included in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December ToTA=tT—HBIEFEEENTFE
2018 is RMB878,800,000 (2017: Nil), all of which LR/ AR 878,800,0007T (=
represented the carrying amount of inventories sold. TE—t+F:|) MAESESER

ERFEWNREE -
The amount of properties held for development for sale TREAR BB — F Bl 2 FHEHE
and properties under development for sale expected to be BERMNERGERERYMEZS
recovered after more than one year is RMB7,629,903,000 A ARM7,629,903,000T(=
(2017: RMB2,511,771,000). All of the other inventories T—t%F: AR®2,511,771,000
are expected to be recovered within one year. JL) e BRI AMIFESE—F
AYE o
Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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e B HmERNEE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b)

The analysis of carrying value of land held for
property development for sale is as follows:

(b)

(BR3EXAHA - BRGUARETIR)

BEEHEMEREN LR
HEZHWOT :

2018 2017
—E2-NEF | ZE—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT | ARBTT
(restated)
(EE5)
In Mainland China eRETiAp:i]

— 50 years or more (long leases) —50F kA E(REHEE) 4,458,262 266,850

— between 10 and 50 years —10&ES50F (R HHEE)
(medium-term leases) 1,114,566 1,067,402
5,572,828 1,334,252

Included in the inventories are leasehold land with lease
terms ranging from 40 to 70 years, which are located in
Mainland China.

Contract costs

Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2018 relate
to the incremental sales commissions paid to property
agents whose selling activities resulted in customers
entering into sale and purchase agreements for the
Group's properties which are still under construction at
the reporting date. Contract costs are recognised as part
of “selling and marketing expenses” in the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which revenue from
the related property sales is recognised. The amount of
capitalised costs recognised in profit or loss during the
year was RMB13,235,000. There was no impairment in
relation to the opening balance of capitalised costs or the
costs capitalised during the year.

In the comparative period, such sales commissions were
included in the balance of inventories due to acquisition
of subsidiaries and therefore an opening balance
adjustment was made on 1 January 2018 in this regard
(see note 1(c)iii)(B)).

The Group applies the practical expedient in paragraph
94 of HKFRS 15 and recognises the incremental costs
of obtaining contracts relating to the sale of completed
properties and services as an expense when incurred
if the amortisation period of the assets that the Group
otherwise would have recognised is within the same
reporting period as the date of entering into the contract.
The amount of capitalised contract costs that is expected
to be recovered after more than one year is RMB716,000.

FERFEMRTREANM s HE i 0
BN TA40FEETOF -

(c)

=RERGRE)ERAR —ZB—N\FEFEH

BHRA

RZB—-NE+-_A=+—HAX
IEREHNRASRENEREE
BEHE R AEBE N RS B ED
EERTHMEII L EEHENY
EREMNESHEEME - NIEED
¥HEEEEANBRAERZNEER -
BHRARIBRERPERE [HE
MHSHERY ] - FRREZS
BRNEN A AEGEAEARE
13,235,0007C ° FR A M@E K
BN B9 BE ) 45 4 37 S R (B sl R AN I
HEERA o

REBHE - ZFHEMELAR
WEMBAREENTFEEH -
R T \F—A—ABtikEL
M aserAE (MR () (iii)B)) ©

NEBERNREBMEHRELERSE
1558 E AR Al ITIEE % + i
AREERERANAEMT A ERZZE
BEMNBEBMERTEIIVAHHE
B MERRERA - BSAEBEEE
FERMENRTE 2 & LRI E A
RELERERAEAY - BHR—F
LA BRI B M E A& DI AR E 58
AARE 716,000 7T °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

w3

182

(BR3ERAHA - BRGUARETIR)

2018 2017

—E_NEFE | —_T— &

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T | AR®TT

(restated)

(eE75)

Trade debtors (note (a)) FE U BR X (KT 5E (a)) 1,158 10,300
Others receivables H th & U FR B 62,415 41,542
Amount due from non-controlling shareholders & U JF #52 I% A% R 2k 78 - 15,013
Interest receivable FE W F1) B - 277
Financial assets measured at amortised cost BEBENATENSREE 63,573 67,132
Prepaid tax and surcharges T8 45 % 18 12 B a0 AR 52,854 52,298
Rental, utility and other deposits He  KEEBRHEMES 8,057 9,218
Prepaid interest KR RS) = 11,876
Other prepayments H At 8 50E 6,998 4,921
131,482 145,445

Notes:

()

As at 31 December 2018, trade receivable is rental receivable from
one single customer with ageing of within 1 year based on the
invoice date.

The amount of deposits and prepaid tax and surcharges expected
to be recovered or recognised as expense after more than one year
is RMB60,911,000. All of the other trade and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

As at 31 December 2017, no provision for impairment on bad and
doubtful debt was made under HKAS39. As at 1 January 2018 and
31 December 2018, the Group measured loss allowances for trade
and other receivables according to the credit policy as set out in note
28(a).

Considering no impairment losses has occurred since the initial
recognition of trade receivables, the Group expects the credit loss is
immaterial at the beginning and at the end of the year.

The balance of other receivables as at 31 December 2018 includes
a past due amount of RMB5,000,000 for which the Group has
obtained guarantee from a third party. Management considered
there is no significant increase in credit risk and no possible default
events for all other receivables are expected within the 12 months
after the reporting date. Accordingly, no expected credit loss is
recorded.

Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. ANNUAL REPORT 2018

(b)

()

RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—8H ' BKER
RRAE—FP » Rk A —FALENHE
ZRHMEKES -

TEHARA BB — F 12 A il K FERR AR 6
BeAREMATIE R ME S EAARE
60,911,000 7T » TEHA F7 A H fth & 47 BR 5Kk
Fe b Wi SR IE A — 4 A A U [B] 35 R
X o

R-ZZT—tH&+-_A=+—8 LER
BRBGHERFEIVRE RERELE
HERE R=ZT—\F—A—BK=F
—NEFE+=-A=+—8  "EERFHFE
28(a) HI M EBEECR T 2 IR R R H
ftb FE A SR IE A S TR o

Z B2 B V)25 HE R R U R AR I S B AR
EER  AEERARFORFREER
BT RE -

R-BE-N\F+-A=1+—BEMEEKR
BREABEIERNEERE=FTEBERDY
#HAFRIE A R ¥ 5,000,0007T - EEER
A RIEHREE A K 12EA "R
EREEMEKRERNS - FERBRIY
BRI EF R AT REE L E 1 o FEIE -
WERETEEERBA -
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PARZANG

AT B HmRMGE (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEBEHA @ BAIHUARETR)

18

19

20

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

18 BAFEHARBZEMNEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F | ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT | ARBTT
(restated)
(F&&75)
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong RER ETHIRARE 50,193 58,033
Units in trust protection fund EREES BN 12,493 =
62,686 58,033

Restricted deposits 19 ZRFEFER
2018 2017
ZE2E-NF | ZT—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T | ARETx
(restated)
(&)

Guarantee deposits for construction of BETEEMEZRES

pre-sold properties 9,162 16,423

In accordance with the relevant documents issued by the
local state-owned land and resource bureau, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place at
designated bank accounts the pre-sale proceeds of properties
received as the guarantee deposits for constructions of related
properties. The deposits can only be used for purchases of
construction materials and payments of construction fees of
related property projects upon the approval of the local state-
owned land and resource bureau. Such guarantee deposits will
be released according to the completion stage of the related
pre-sold properties.

Cash and cash equivalents and other cash

flow information

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
The cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the consolidated
statement of cash flows as at 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017 are all cash at bank and on hand.

As at 31 December 2018, RMB209,738,000
(2017:RMB392,617,000) is placed at the banks in
Mainland China. Remittance of funds out of the Mainland
China is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the
PRC government.

20

=B (

R T BEE LB REEREL A
BAXf  AEEYMERRAFFEREE
E SRTT IR P A U ER 1 FR & 1) 3 P 1S 3R0R
BABRBYEIRNEES - /85
wHBALHEREERNILET @ &
RESATARBEEREMH RN
MYEBRENREER -  ZRFEIER
EERZAMBEY RN TKERER
B o

HeRFEFRVLUREMBA

€35 H

(a) BERBEESEYEE
N-_ZE—NE+-_A=t+—HE=
T—+F+= H_+ BM4RE Bt
BRARREERERERANNIR
%&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
NFERE o

R=ZZ—N\F+=-_A=+—H " A
Eiﬁzog 738,000t (=F—+4F :
AE#392,617,0007T) 1F A E
AHRIERTT o HEFP B A B R Z= 55
HNJB 2 H B B e 0 A BR o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZHFHAT @ FRIFUAAREESIR)

20 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 20 HEeRBASFEBEMLURAEMR
flow information (continued) €3FFE (8|)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) REZEZBEFIEENEEYHER
activities
Bank loans and
borrowings
from financial Interest Prepaid  Loans froma
institutions payable interest  related party  Bond payable Total
RITEHR
SREBBER ERHE BfiHE  BEIER EfiE% it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTn  ARETn  AR%TR  ARETn  ARETzR
(Note 21) (Note 23) (Note 17) (Note 25) (Note 22)
(Wi21) (W& 23) (K& 17) (K& 25) (Wi 22)
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-NE-B-A 780,508 25,444 (11,876) 987,930 871,303 2,653,309
Changes from finanding ~ MEZHREFERT
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans TR {7TE &8 2,553,240 - - - - 2,553,240
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (831,308) = = = = (831,308)
Proceeds fromloans from BB R EFFIEHE
arelated party - - - 6,190,930 - 6,190,930
Repayment of loansfrom ~ BEEHHER
a related party - - - (5.173,159) - (5,173,159)
Interest paid BAFE - (283,236) - - - (283,236)
Total changes from finanding  BEREFERHEE
cash flows 1,721,932 (283,236) - 1,017,111 - 2,456,467
Exchange adjustments ERHE - 5,974 - - 0,775 28,749
Other changes: H85
Finance costs (note 5(a) RERE (M3 5(a) - 362,923 11,876 73,803 - 448,602
Offset liabilities with REEE=-H78%
third parties - - - (378,412) - (378,412)
Total other changes EpEBas - 362,923 11,876 (304,609) - 70,190
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZR
=+-H 2,502,440 111,105 - 1,701,092 894,078 5,208,715
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o
Az

BB EmAR KT (E)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEBEHA @ BAIHUARETR)

20 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information (continued)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (continued)

Bank loans and

20 HeaRBaERMLREMER

®¥H ()

(b)) MEEZBRELENEGEYHK

(%)

borrowings
from financial Interest Prepaid  Loans from a
institutions payable interest ~ related party  Bond payable Total
RIEFR ‘
SREBEN EfiH S BEAE BHAEX EfiGEH @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR ARETR  ARETR
(Note 21) (Note 23) (Note 17) (Note 25) (Note 22)
(W& 21) (K3t 23) (K317) (W3t 25) (WzE22)
At1January 2017, as restated R=F-+E-f-R -
HEE] = = = = = =
Changes from financing HERERERE:
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans ¥ BT ENFETR 210,508 - - - 887,423 1,097,931
Repayment of bank loans EBERTER (416,000) - - - - (416,000)
Proceeds from loans from BB AERMEEE
a related party - - - 1,478,800 - 1,478,800
Repayment of loans from EEBBAER
a related party - - - (516,800) - (516,800)
Interest paid ERFIE - (1,590) 2,000 - - (3,590)
Total changes from financing ~~ BER 2 HE2HEHE
cash flows (205,492) (1,590) (2,000) 962,000 887423 1,640,341
Exchange adjustments ERSZ - - - = (16,120) (16,120)
Other changes: Af2e
Interest expenses for bank loans  $#7 E 3% B F % - 9,937 124 - - 10,061
Interest expenses for loans from BB T & ZFIE B %
arelated party - - - 25,930 - 25,930
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEHBAF 986,000 17,007 (10,000) - - 993,097
Total other changes Et28eE 986,000 27,034 (9,876) 25,930 - 1,029,088
At 31 December 2017, RZB-tE+ZA
as restated =t+-R£E) 780,508 25,444 (11,876) 987,930 871,303 2,653,309
Sl (M) ERAR —8—N\EEH 185
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PN

NN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

186

B 5 R M aE (48)

(BR3E=AHA - TRGUARETIR)

2018 2017
—E-NF | ZE—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T | AR®T T
(restated)
(F&E5)
Current BN HA
Secured B &
— Bank loans —RITER = 540,000
— Borrowings from financial institutions — S REBER 1,164,440 149,200
1,164,440 689,200
Unsecured borrowings from financial institutions £ #f # < & #15 {& 3 - 61,308
1,164,440 750,508
Non-current JE BN HA
Secured e
— Bank loans —HRITER 590,000 30,000
— Borrowings from financial institutions — BB ERK 748,000 -
1,338,000 30,000
2,502,440 780,508

At 31 December 2018, all non-current interest-bearing bank
loans were repayable as follows:

R-ZE—NE+_A=+—8" a3k
BEET BERITERAEEN T ¢

2018 2017

—E-N\EFE | —E—F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TR | AR¥TT

(restated)

(&ES)

After 1 year but within 2 years R1FBRER2FR 279,900 30,000
After 2 years but within 5 years R2FBRERSFR 1,058,100 =
1,338,000 30,000

Bank loans are interest-bearing at 9.31% per annum (2017:
7.13% to 9.5% per annum). Borrowings from financial
institutions are interest-bearing ranging from 10.34% to 16%
per annum (2017: 9% to 10% per annum).

All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants which are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were
to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 28(b). As at 31
December 2018 none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2017: Nil).
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The secured bank loans and borrowings from financial
institutions are secured over share of interest in certain
subsidiaries of the Group and other assets as below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Re I mER MR (&)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIERAHA @ SRIGUARES|R)

BEMBITERR S BEBREFTIALE
BETHBRABZBERATEMERE
TR

2018 2017

—E-N\NE | —EB—£&

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T | ARETIT

(restated)

¢ =27p

Inventories &8 2,850,493 1,226,437

As at 31 December 2018, the secured bank loans and
borrowings from financial institutions of RMB1,444,340,000
(2017: RMB649,200,000) were also jointly guaranteed by Mr.
Lin Rongbin (“Mr. Lin”) and Ms. Cheng Xuan (“Ms. Cheng”),
the controlling shareholders of the Company, and Fuzhou
Sansheng Property Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou Sansheng”), a wholly-
own subsidiary of Sansheng Group Limited which is controlled
by Mr. Lin and Ms. Cheng. Secured borrowings from financial
institutions of RMB163,000,000 (2017: RMBNIl) were solely
guaranteed by Fuzhou Sansheng.

As at 31 December 2017, RMB149,200,000 of such loans
were also pledged by 10% equity share of interest in Fuzhou
Sansheng held by Sansheng Group Limited. The pledge was
released during the year.

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s unutilised banking
and other financial institutions facilities amounted to
RMB723,660,000 (2017: RMB1,226,800,000).

On 17 November 2017, the Company issued a 1-year corporate
bond with principal amount of USD135,000,000 issued at par.
The bond is secured over share of interest in certain subsidiaries
of the Group and interest-bearing at 3-month LIBOR plus 4.3%
per annum.

On 13 November 2018, the Company exchanged a 3-year new
corporate bond with same principal amount issued at par for
the abovementioned bond. The new bond is secured over share
of interest in certain subsidiaries of the Group and interest-
bearing at 3-month LIBOR plus 8.59% per annum.

As 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company had not
breached any covenants of the bond.

R—ZE—NE+=_A=+—H " B
HIRTERLCHBEERARE
1,444,340,000 C(=ZZF—+tF : AR¥
649,200,000 7T ) 71 AN A E)4%E A% A% SR AR
BRE (TMEE]) Mz ([
+ ) AEREN=RBXERAT (18
MN=m%] B=REBEBERAFZEE
MEBAR  EZMAEERBELZIIES)
HEAER BEFASHEBEERARE
163,000,000 T (ZE—+4%F : ARBZE
TT) @M =5 ER -

RZZE—+F+_A=+—H ' AR¥
149,200,000 TR ZEER MU =B E
BEARRAFFEEMN=82 10% REE
LI o ZE IR EFEREER o

RZZE—NE+A=+—8 x&£H
ABAMBRITREMSREEREAA
R#723,660,000 T(—ZFT—+F : AR
#1,226,800,0007T) °

RZTE—+tF+—A++tH AQAE
1T EEZEITA ST A 135,000,0003%
TTZ—FHRRIES - BFEUAERSE
FHEB AR ZREERTELYZ =A%
BIRITRERBNFFEA3% L °

R-EBE—NFE+—A+=H  XAQA7A
REiiEERBIZAEZTHRAS
BENF3IFHNFIES - HEFUK
EEERETHE QR MER IR -
I 4% 3 18 B fm R 17 R 2 37 BN A R
8.59% it A o

R—ZE—NER_ZT—ttF+=-A
=+—H  ARABEERGEHFHTIM
R o

=mipe (EE) AR AT —B—I\EEH 187
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A MR RME ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZEHA @ BRIHUARKETR)

2018 2017

—E-N\NEFE | ZE—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT | ARBTTT

(restated)

(F&E3)

Trade creditors and accrued charges (note (a)) BN ERZ N EER (K5 (a)) 623,081 333,065
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders — J& < £ % % A% 5 218 (BT 3% (b))

(note (b)) 2,239,973 102,000
Other payables H b fE 3R 59,526 28,144
Interest payable &R B 111,105 25,444
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost IR K AT EZ SR B E 3,033,685 488,653
Derivative financial liability (note (c)) MESBEE (i () 2,016 12,756
Value added tax and surcharges payables 188§ N & A~ BT 0 AR 22,824 3,472
Receipts in advance (note (d)) TE YR 3k (M 3E (d)) 5,404 903,688

3,063,929 1,408,569
Notes: BiaE -
(@)  Asat 31 December 2018, all trade creditors are with ageing of within (@ RZE-NE+ZA=+—H FEEN

1 year based on the invoice date.

(b) The amount represents advance from non-controlling shareholders of (b)
certain subsidiaries for the respective property development projects.
The amount is interest-free and repayable on demand.

(o] The amount, together with the amount disclosed as non-current (o)
derivative financial liabilities, represents the fair value of interest rate
swap contracts (“IRS contracts”) entered into by the Group.

The notional principal of one outstanding IRS contract to be
terminated within one vyear as at 31 December 2018 was
UsSD35,000,000 (2017: USD135,000,000), equivalent to
RMB240,212,000 (2017: RMB892,593,000).

The notional principal of two outstanding IRS contracts to
be terminated over one year as at 31 December 2018 was
USD100,000,000 (2017: Nil), equivalent to RMB686,320,000 (2017:
Nil).

(d)  As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, receipts in advance from (d)
pre-sale of properties are included in contract liabilities (see note 1(c)

(iii)).

(e) All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or (e)
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE SRR (8)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEBEHA @ BAIHUARETR)

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\F —E-N\5 —E—tF
+=-—A=+—H —H—B +ZA=+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT ARETTT
(restated)
(EE35))
Receipts in advance from HEMET R FE R
property sales (notes (ii), (iii)) FRIE (MEEE (i) ~ (i) 181,147 960,561 =

Notes: BT

(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect (i) AEBEFA R REE L E R BB
method and adjusted the opening balance at 1 January 2018. MEEEISHRUABR T —NF—

A—B®E R4S -

(i) Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, these amounts at 1 January 2018 (i) WABETBRMESERFE155R% - R
were reclassified from “Trade and other payables” (see note 23) to T—N\F—A—BZEHER [ EAERX
contract liabilities (see note 1(c)iii)). FEMEMZIE| (RNE23)EFHHEE

ARBE (R 1) i) °

@iy~ Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, an opening adjustment as at 1 (i) RABEBUBREERFE 15581 - FE
January 2018 was made to accrue interest on the advance payments RZZE—N\F— A —BHHYER AR
received from customers (see note 1(c)(iii)). BEFPHEMRBEZFTFE (K1)

(iii)) °

The Group receives certain percentage of the contract value as WEFEZEEEHZ  AEBWEET

a deposit from customers when they sign the sale and purchase LA EHNEBEBEEREFPZES - REK

agreements and the rest of the consideration is paid according BRBNRERARZN - ZIRESERAE

to payment schedules. This deposit is recognised as a contract BREBEEYMFERZEPERRILE -
liability until the properties are controlled by the customers.

Movement in contract liabilities ERNEERY

2018
—B_ &
RMB’000
AR T
Balance at 1 January, as restated R—A—B#&#  LE7 960,561
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognising HRENGT AT AL
revenue during the year that was included in the BEMKRATEED
contract liabilities at the beginning of the period EHEERD (923,765)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receipts in advance FREENR T — N\ F
from property sales during the year in respect of properties +=—A=+—BMNA
still under construction as at 31 December 2018 EENENTEWFRIE
iME£R &K B FEEM 143,327
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of accruing interest ZEBRHF BRI M
expense on advances EENE QA EE M 1,024
Balance at 31 December R+-—A=+—B#&% 181,147
=R (M) BRAT —B—N\EEH 189
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A M ERRME (E)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZHFHAT @ FRIFUAAREESIR)

25 Loans from arelated party
The balance represents loans drawn by the Group from the
revolving facilities of RMB4,500,000,000 granted by Fuzhou
Sansheng on 18 August 2017 and 28 September 2017
respectively. The loans are unsecured, interest-bearing at 7%
per annum and the earliest repayment date is in 2020.

26 Income taxin the consolidated statement of
financial position
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

25

26

RRBE A &S
EHERN =P IR_E—+tFN\A
+N\BE-_ZE—+FNAA -+ N\HIEH
AR % 4,500,000,000 7T 7 BB & IE
TAEEMRIMNER - EHERBE
B REMRTI%TE  RREEHH
HR-T_TF o

HEMEBEKARABMER
(a) ARE BN & A M0 ED HE B R

financial position represents: ig
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\E Tt F
t=A=t+-8|t=A=t—~
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
(restated)
(reE5)
Income taxes TSt 36,192 27,012
LAT T IR E R 154,843 150,360
191,035 177,372

Note: Upon the initial application of HKFRS 15, the Group has
recognised deferred tax liabilities arising from the capitalisation
of contract costs which had been expensed in prior periods
(see note1(c)(iii)(B)).
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=LANH
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26

(b)

F 5 M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR3EXAHA - BRGUARETIR)

Income tax in the consolidated statementof 26 FAMBEBRARABMEBRN
financial position (continued) ($#8)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) BRANELBEEERAE:
()  Movement of each component of deferred tax (i) iﬁ EHREBEEREBEEEAI
assets and liabilities D ZEE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities RERE BB R AR Z
recognised in the consolidated statement of RIERIE (BE)/ BB D
financial position and the movements during the 2H) . UEKRFERZE
year are as follows: (1N
Fair value
changeof ~ Amortisation Other
investment  of capitalised temporary
property  contract costs Taxlosses  differences Total
RENF BALH
ARERY AORAER REFR EpEREE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(1) (Ka2)
Deferred tax arising from: EERERE
At 1 January 2017, as restated R=E-t£-A-A"
TET| 132,610 - - - 132,610
Charged(credited) to profit or loss NEERMR/(GEA) 16,768 - (28,09) - (11,329)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WERBAT - - - (18,908) (18,908)
Bxchange adjustments BT 397 = = = 397
At 31 December 2017, as restated RZB-tE+ZH
=R &3 149,775 - (28,092) (18,908) 102,775
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 15 A1 5 A& S i%ﬁi
ENZE15HHT 2 = 3309 = - 3309
At1 January 2018 RZE-\E-A—H 149,775 3,309 (28,092) (18,908) 106,084
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss RE&ERGEA) K (59316) (3309 24,275 18908 (19442)
At31 December 2018 “B-N\ErZA
=t+-H 90,459 = (3817) = 86,642
Notes: BT

1. The balance represents deferred LAT and CIT arising
from fair value change of investment properties

in Mainland China,

recognised in the respective subsidiaries.

and depreciation allowance

2. Upon the initial application of HKFRS 15, the Group
has recognised deferred tax liabilities arising from
the capitalisation of contract costs which had been

expensed in prior periods (see note1(c)(iii)(B)).

=RER KB ERAR —ZB—\FEFEH
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B o

NFERAE BTG RE %R
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A M ERRME (E)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZEHA @ BRIHUARKETR)

26 Income taxin the consolidated statementof 26 HFEMERARABDMAER
financial position (continued) ($8)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) BREMELEHEEERE R :
(continued) (#&)
(i)  Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of (i) BASZEHMBMRRRZYER
financial position
2018 2017
—E-N\E | —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T | ARETT
(restated)
(&= E5)
Net deferred tax asset recognised in REERBARRKRFPER
the consolidated statement of ZIBRERIBEEFE
financial position 3,817 18,908
Net deferred tax liability recognised in RERE F BRI R P ER
the consolidated statement of BEERIBAGEFR
financial position (90,459) (121,683)
(86,642) (102,775)
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (c) KRERZELEBEEE
At 31 December 2018, the Group has unused tax losses RZE—NF+=-_A=+—8"
of RMB247,243,000 (2017: RMB94,950,000) available AEBRABANREBERARK
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset 247,243,000 C(=ZF—t£F : A
has been recognised in respect of such losses due to R # 94,950,000 7T ) A] AR 5K
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses DA == N S e N I
in Hong Kong may carry forward indefinitely. The Al B R BB B SR R RIR T
unrecognised tax losses in Mainland China will expire HEE - BAZMIBEEENSER
from 2019 to 2022. HAAEEIR H - R 2 B AR
BEBER-_ZE—NFE_T==
FEE o
(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (d) RERZELEHBEESE
No deferred tax has been recognised on changes in HRFEHLEERBRENETSE
fair value of the investment properties situated in Hong EBEER  MAEETERZE
Kong as it is not expected to have tax consequence upon YEZ A EEBERIELHRE -
disposal of these properties.
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e BRI (E)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:

(BR3EXAHA - BRGUARETIR)

EEED 228

AEBRAERE D NFEIRF
REHR B R NAR S o &
&K o AREESERIORFNE

BI#5
iR BBEEBIDT

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
R RE RitE#R @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARET T ARETF T
Balance at 1 January 2017, R=-E-t&-H-H
as restated &R RED 911,543 (28,436) 883,107
Changes in equity for 2017: “E-LEZREREE:
Total comprehensive income ENERKERE
for the year - (41,669) (41,669)
Balance at 31 December 2017 and R-ZE—t&+=H
1 January 2018, as restated =t-BR=-B-N\F
—B—-Hz#&&H
RE| 911,543 (70,105) 841,438
Changes in equity for 2018: TE-N\FZREREE:
Total comprehensive income FRAXERGER
for the year - (91,409) (91,409)
Balance at 31 December 2018 R-ZBE-NE+Z8
=+ -H2 & 911,543 (161,514) 750,029
Dividends (b) ERE
The directors do not recommend the payment of any EEWIEERNEBEE_E—)\&

dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: RMBNil).

Share capital
Details of the Company’s share capital during both years
are as follows:

(c)

T A=+—BIHBFEEZ KRS
EE(ZF—+t5F : &) o

&N

RARRAMEFEE 2 RAFEFR
™
Number

of shares Amount
BB o]
HK$’000
T T

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Authorised: ETE
As at 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2018

BREEIIETZEBK

R—E—tF—H—H "
—E—+F+_-8

=+—HE-FT-N\%
+=—RA=+—8H

2,000,000,000 200,000

=RER KB ERAR —ZB—\FEFEH
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e I ImEM R (&)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

194

()

(e)

(BR3EXAFHA - TRGUARKETIR)

Share capital (continued) () BRA (&)
Numbers
of shares Amount Amount
BHEE TR x|
HK$'000 RMB'000
FHET ARET T
(equivalent)
(H%E)
Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.1 each BREMBO0N BT
ZEBR
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR :
As at 1 January 2017, R-_T—tF—H
31 December 2017 —B - —+tF
and 31 December 2018 +-A=1t-8Bk
ZZE-\F+=A
== 419,114,000 41,911 33,184

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.

Reserves

(i)  Share premium
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company may be
applied for payment of distributions or dividends to
shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

(ii) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 1(v).

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's reserves
available for distribution, calculated in accordance
with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately RMB750,029,000 (2017:
RMB841,438,000), which may be distributed provided
that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.
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A B ERRME (E)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIESH LA

(f)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholders returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
debt-to-assets ratio and adjusted debt-to-assets ratio
which deducted contract liabilities and receipts in advance
(2017: receipts in advance) from total liabilities. The
ratios as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 is calculated as
follows:

P BRBGUAARETIR)

BEXREE
AEEEREEARUERAEEE
BREMRERE - ARERE(CE
BREDZEHREBERBAFTNE 2
Bl - NEEZ BREREEFR
qz o

AEEEHEMRS RERRLER
A BRERSEEKFAR
KzBmMREHR - B EEAK
A 5 2R A 4 BR AR 8 2 PRI ERAG F
- WK EEFHEE R
ZR1E -

AEERBEEFEEL R REHE
BHREELXR(RREETRHERE
HEEMTBRER(ZE—LF
TEWARFR) ) EEREEARZERE - R
—E-N\FERFE—+F+=A
=+—HB BBELEFEDT :

2018 2017
—E-N\NE | —EB—£
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARE TR | ARBTT
(restated)
(eE7)
(i) Debt-to-assets ratio (i) BEXEELR
Total liabilities e fE 8,642,840 4,347,365
Total assets BB E 9,868,197 5,746,029
Debt-to-assets ratio BEREELX 87.58% 75.66%
(i)  Adjusted debt-to-assets ratio (ii) RARBEKEELR
Total liabilities FER=Ri 8,642,840 4,347,365
Less: Contract liabilities and B ANEER
receipts in advance T8 IR 5K (186,551) (903,688)
Adjusted total liabilities KARBAE 8,456,289 3,443,677
Total assets BEE 9,868,197 5,746,029
Adjusted debt-to-assets ratio KAREBREELXR 85.69% 59.93%
=k (EE) R AT ZS—\EEH 195
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIE=E A

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group
is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. The carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

(0]

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Group’s
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry in which the customers operate
and therefore significant concentrations of credit
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers.

The Group’s trade receivables mainly arise from
lease of properties. The Group has policies in
place to ensure that rental contracts are entered
into only with lessees with an appropriate credit
history, and the Group monitors the credit quality
of receivables on an ongoing basis. Deposits may
be withheld by the Group in part or in whole if
receivables due from the tenant are not settled or in
case of other breaches of contract. The Group also
regularly reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.
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e MR (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Other receivables

In respect of other receivables due from third
parties, the Group reviews the exposures and
manages them based on the need of operation.

In respect of amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders, the Group facilitates their capital
demand by assessing and closely monitoring their
financial conditions and profitability.

At each reporting date, the Group measures
the expected credit losses of other receivables in
following ways:

If, at the reporting date, the credit risk on other
receivable has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for other receivable at an amount equal
to 12-month expected credit loss. The Group
measures the loss allowance for other receivables at
an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit loss
if the credit risk on other receivable has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Financial guarantees

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Group as set out in note 31, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees at
the end of the reporting period is disclosed in note
31.

Liquidity risk
The Group are responsible for all individual operating

subsidiaries’

cash management, including the short-

term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of

loans to cover expected cash demands.

The Group

regularly monitors its liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

(a)

(b)
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eI mEMEE (&)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIERAF A @ SRIGUARES|R)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) H"BELEK (&)
The following table details the remaining contractual TRASAEEZIETESRMEE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the RBERRUNBHORITIRBESRE
Group's non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative (BREEAHFE KB EE
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual Bl S HIR ERR R E 2 F 8
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments 30 AL E A & BN R 2 &
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on FHHAAENFIREOFIBRIBER -

current rates at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

2018
220§
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 Tyear  2yearshut
Carrying  undiscounted year or on but less less than
amount cash flow demand than2 years 5 years

slkfE  AR-fn  BA-FE  BERFE
REE HERELE ABFXRE  JOWAF  HREE
RMBOOO  RMB'000 RME'000 RME'000 RMB'000
ARMTr  ARWTZ  ARBTR  ARWTI  ARBIR

Non-derivative finandial iabilties HiEERAR
—Bank loans and borrowings from -BOEFREBBERR
financial institutions 2,502,440 3,046,769 1,398,898 389,417 1,258,454
- Loans from a related party -BRAER 1,701,092 2,058,320 119,076 119,076 1,820,168
- Bond payable -EfES 894,078 1,193,106 103,948 103,948 985,210
~Trade and other payables BRI R AR TE 3,033,685 3,033,685 3,033,685 - -
Derivative financial iabilty fTEepak
- Interest rate swap (net settled) —-FIREH (N FELE) 20,676 20,676 2,016 18,660 -
Total 8,151,971 9,352,556 4,657,623 631,101 4,063,832
2017 (restated)
“T-tE(BE])
Total More than
contractual Within 1 More than 2 years but
Camying  undiscounted yearoron 1 yearbut less less than
amount cash flow demand than 2 years 5 years
ANRE  BARN-FR BE-FR  BEMER
BAE REREEE ARFREE PRAE PRAE
RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  AR%TT  ARETR
Non-derivative finandial iabilties HiteRaRE
~Bank loans and borrowings from -BAEFREBBERR
financial institutions 780,508 843,215 817790 25,425 -
~Loans from a related party -BRAER 987,930 1123279 64,983 64,983 993313
~Bond payable -EfiE% 871,303 931,255 931,255 - -
~Trade and other payables -ERERRAMERZE 488,653 483,653 483,653 = =
Derivative financil iabilty fEemak
- Interest rate swap (net settled) -FIREE (N FELE) 12,756 12,756 12,756 - -
Total Fh 3,141,150 3,399,158 2315437 90,408 993,313
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e MR (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIERH A

()

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk arises primarily from long-term borrowings.

Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The Group has a policy
ensuring that most of its borrowings are effectively on a
fixed basis, either through the contractual terms of the
interest-bearing financial liabilities or through the use
of interest rate swaps. The interest rate and terms of
repayment of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings
are disclosed in notes 21, 22 and 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase of 50 basis points in interest rates of bank
loans and borrowings from financial institutions of the
Group, with all other variables held constant, would
have increased the Group’s loss and total equity by
approximately R\MIB4,842,000 (2017: RMB6,528,000).

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to all floating rate bank
loans and borrowings from financial institutions, without
taking into account the impact of interest capitalisation.
In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting period, the
impact on the Group's loss and total equity is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest expense or income of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis is performed
on the same basis as 2017.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
on bank balances and cash, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and bank loans that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currency giving rise to this risk is primarily United State
Dollars and Hong Kong Dollars.

(c)

=R (EE) BRAR ZB—I\FFH
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIERAF A @ SRIGUARES|R)

200

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated using
the spot rate at the year end date. Differences resulting
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.

E¥ k(&)

TRV AEBRRE L RE LA
MERIEERNINERHELZ
EEREEXREMELZERRA
e B2IME  ZFERRZEHE
UIARBIR - WAFHEE B 2B
HAE R E o BB INETSI T MR
BESAKEERERELCER
WABREEA °

Exposure to foreign currencies

(expressed in Renminbi)

HERE (AARBFIR)

2018 2017 (restated)

“Z-N\% “ELF(RED)
United States  Hong Kong | United States ~ Hong Kong
Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars
EY B e BT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARMTR ARETT ARKTR
Bank balances and cash ROEBERE 152,294 42,620 385,960 50,767
Bond payable ERES 926,532 - 871,303 =

Sensitivity analysis BREDH

Based on the assumption that Hong Kong Dollars
continue to be pegged to United States Dollars, the
Group considers the risk of movements in exchange rates
between Hong Kong Dollars and United States Dollars to
be insignificant.

Management estimated that a 3% appreciation/
depreciation of Renminbi against Hong Kong Dollars and
United States Dollars, the Group'’s profit and equity would
be increased/decreased by approximately RMB33,736,000
(2017: RMB38,027,000).

The analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and that all other variables remain
constant. The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s presentation
currency.
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e BRI (E)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(e)

(BR3EXAHA - BRGUARETIR)

Equity price risk (e) MRAEREE
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from A AR EES B AL AT E
listed equity investments classified as financial assets at FTABRZeREEMEERAE
fair value through profit or loss (see note 18). TR E) - ANE B mERRAER
[BLBg (R HEE18) ©
The Group's listed investments are listed on the Stock AEEZ EMREESBERFTE
Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy or sell e BMEFRAEAERESR K
trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the I8 (WA L B FE 8 N H Ath 7T 3£ 4512
performance of individual securities compared to that ZRIBELER) ARAKNER Z RS
of the Index and other industry indicators, as well as the BeFK RIEHBERILERS
Group’s liquidity needs. The management manages this BHEIRTE - EREGERERR
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with ETRERSBZIREAGMER
different risk profiles. AR -
The Group's sensitivity to price risk on the listed equity EEMEHEFZIET  XEER
securities in Hong Kong at the end of the reporting period WMEMARER B LM ZRAES
while all other variables were held constant is as follows: ZERRERERRENT
2018 2017 (restated)
ZE-N\F 2+ E(FET)
Effect on Effecton
loss after  Effecton loss after  Effect on
tax equity tax equity
HH# HiEs Ytk Higs
BEzxE % BEz%E LEE
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETT AR¥TR
Change in the relevant equity HERAEREREH
price risk variable: 288
Increase A 1% 500 (500) 1% 582 (582)
Decrease T (1%) (500) 500 (1%) (582) 582
=R (EE) BRAT —B—\EEH 201
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(f) Fair value measurement

(0]

(ii)

202

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost were
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2017 and 2018.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs
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e BRI (E)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(f)  Fair value measurement (continued)
(ii)  Financial assets and liabilities mea

(BRIE=E A

sured at fair

P BRBGUAARETIR)

() 2DFEFEAE)
(i) BAFPEFEZERMEENR

value (continued) &E&(#)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) INFEER(E)
Far value at Fair value at
31 December Fair value measurements as at 31 December Falr value meastrements as at
018 31 December 2018 categorised into 017 31 December 2017 categorised nto
H-§-N% RZT-tF
t2A=1-A Ho8-NE+ZA=t-H2 t-A=1-A RIE3-tETZf=1-BY
AVE AVEHERER LATf DYBHEAER
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Level 1 Level 2 Level3
£-4 528 £z8 £-% 224 528
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT  AR%Tn ARETx  ARETx | ARETn ARETn  ARETn  ARETR
(restatec]) (restatec) (restated) (restatec)
) 88 E)  E5)
Recurring far value ERH20TERE
measurements
Bssets: BE:
Financial assets a fair value BOREABS
through profitorloss: LEREE
- Listed equitysecuie - [iRAE% 50,193 5019 - - 58,033 58,033 - -
- Unitin trust protection fund ~EHREELEN 12493 - 12493 - - - - -
Liabifty: B
Derivative finandial instruments; fTERIE:
- Interst rate swap L] 20476 - 2476 - 12,75 - 12756 -

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2018, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the present
value of estimated amount that the Group would
receive or pay to terminate the swap at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account current
interest rates and the current creditworthiness of
the swap counterparties.

The fair value of unit in trust protection fund is
determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at prevailing market interest rates as at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate used
is derived from the bank deposit rate as at the end
of the reporting period plus an adequate constant
credit spread.

BE_Z—t+tFR-T-N
FH-—A=+—HLFE -
E-MEE-MYEATE
S VET e
o AEEZBE R LB
R W R ERA T (E
S5 2 2 K -

ARE_RAFEFEZ G
B0 RA B
FEEHZ A FED SRR
BHXEARKEHHFEE
A BAKERESHR
R g WA 2
fHETERERIRME -

EAEREESH R FETIR
REERARZBITHH MR
RRBRESARRBEREME
E o FTRAZARRHNR
SFHRZRITERAE R
WZBEEEEEEMSH
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A M ERRME (E)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZEHA @ BRIHUARKETR)

29 Commitments

(a)

(b)

204

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
2018 not provided for in the financial statements

29 i
FEER-2-N\F+=A
=T —HRRUBHRERABE

(a)

were as follows: ZARBITERAEDT :
2018 2017
ZE-NF | ZE—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT | ARBTT
(restated)
(gE5)
Contracted but not provided for in the EEEOKERIZ =
consolidated financial statements B 1% TRk B
— capital expenditure in respect of —EAMEEZERERZ
property development projects N 1,916,570 38,160

At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

(b)

R=—Z-—NF+=-A=+-—
B AEERBEFIBELE
HEMEN 2 RRKEREM

MEEWT -
2018 2017
—E-NE | —_T—LtF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T | ARETx
(restated)
(&)
Within 1 year —E R 3,310 2,255
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRHERAFR 1,473 2,812
4,783 5,067

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for leasing office premises and staff quarters.

Rentals payable are predetermined at fixed amount.

Leases are generally negotiates for terms ranging from six
months to three years.
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A MR ERRI R (B)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEBEHA @ BAIHUARETR)

30 Material related party transactions

(a)

Key management personnel remuneration

The remuneration of executive directors and key
management personnel is determined by the
remuneration committee of the Company having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.
Details of which together with the other three (2017:
one) highest paid management personnel are disclosed in
notes 7 and 8 above.

Transactions with other related parties
During the year, other than those disclosed in notes

30 FERBAEES

(a)

(b)

FTEEBEASH M

HITEERETRZEEABZMEH

ARBFHFINE B RERKRE LT

LBEEE  HERBIIN=%(=

T—+F: —R)BIFMERA

iZ%ﬁM\%?'I%ﬁM:YMﬁE7&SEP
= o

HEMEEER LS 2R 5
FR- BRMFE21R25IFE &

21 and 25, the Group had entered into the following HN - ANESEE BTN B 5 AT LA
significant transactions with the following related parties: TEARS
Name of related party Nature of transactions 2018 2017
BRL AR RHME —E-)\f§ —EtF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREFT
(restated)
(=5))
Fuzhou Sansheng Interest expense 73,803 25,930
BN=BEXERAA MERX
Grand Kinetic Limited* Rental expense paid - 130
BERRAF REEE
Shenyang Zhuoyuan Property Limited Company* Rental expense paid - 43
BEEREZXARAA REEiE
Li Yi Da Commercial Property Limited Company* Project management income received - 2,448
MREBXER (LE)ARAR BRREAERKA
Shanghai Ongoing Department Store Limited* Rental expense paid - 17
IBAKBEEERAR BEfffe
Project management income received - 861
BHEER ERMA
Sogo Hong Kong Company Limited* Management service expense paid - 43
Sr(FR)ASARRAA BERERRHE X

* The entities were no longer related parties of the Group
subsequent to change of majority shareholders of the Group
in 31 May 2017.

=R

(£E)ER AR ZB—I\FF#

* RAEETERER-T—FE
B=t+—R2F#% HZEBTH
AR -

205



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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206

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to

connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of financial
assistance received by the Group disclosed in notes 21,
23 and 25 and the relevant interest expense set out in
(b) above constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However
those transactions are fully exempt from shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they are (i) on normal
commercial terms; and (i) not secured by the assets of the
Group.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has issued
guarantees to banks to secure the mortgage arrangement of
property buyers. The outstanding guarantees to the banks
amounted to RMB100,000 (2017: RMB421,005,000), which
will be terminated upon the completion of the transfer
procedures with the buyers in respect of the legal title of the
properties.

The directors do not consider it probable that the Group will
sustain a loss under these guarantees as the bank has the rights
to sell the property and recovers the outstanding loan balance
from the sale proceeds if the property buyers default payment.
The Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of these guarantees as its fair value is considered to be minimal
by the directors.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at
1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
comparative information is not restated. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 1(c)(iii).

The Group has changed the presentation currency of these
financial statements from HK$ to RMB in the annual report. In
addition, the Group has changed the classification of income
and expense items in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss from by nature to by function. The comparative information
have been restated retrospectively due to such changes. Further
details of the change are disclosed in notes 1(c)(i) and 1(c)(ii).

At 31 December 2018, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Mega
Regal Limited, which is incorporated in BVI. This entity does not
produce financial statements available for public use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RE SRR (8)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEBEHA @ BAIHUARETR)

2018 2017
—E-N\F| ZFT—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 ARETRT | ARBTT
(restated)
(EE5)
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in a subsidiary N—ERB AR s 1,580,842 1,396,565
Current assets REBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary & W — B B & Rl 3k IR 8,333 8,333
Prepayments TE R IE 622 549
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBEEEEY 146,212 361,452
155,167 370,334
Current liabilities REBasE
Accrued charges fEET & 1,543 94
Interest payable JE 5 FILE 36,499 8,124
Derivative financial liability MTEEBAE 2,016 12,756
Bond payable JE & 55 = 871,303
40,058 892,277
Net current assets/(liabilities) BRABEE/(ER) 115,109 (521,943)
Total assets less current liabilities #MEER B ARG 1,695,951 874,622
Non-current liabilities kFRBEE
Bond payable fE &+ 894,078 =
__ Derivative financial fiabilities breema®m 18660 | .. .
912,738 -
Net assets BEE 783,213 874,622
Capital and reserve EXREE
Share capital % 27(c) 33,184 33,184
Reserves {1 750,029 841,438
Total equity BRER 783,213 874,622
=@k (EE) ERAT —B—\EEH 207
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Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

P BRBGUAARETIR)

BENFWBHRETELAS  FES
ARG RS IRERT RAATER - &
FER] - ML RREBERBE_F
—NFE+-_A=t—BLEFEHKRE
M BRI FH B RRILARERA AT
PRI BERAKE AR ER -

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

RET AR 22 &Rt Bt BB £X

HKFRS 16, Leases

EBMBRELERFE 16 - HE

HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

BE (AR BKBREZREZESR) —REF23%
T 15 %1 55 32 /9 1S 7 2 1

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

BEEMBHREEN —_F-—AFE_FT-LFBEHPFERE

Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term interest in associates
and joint ventures

ARG EAE285 (BFIAR) REZL AR
EEPRZRAEZ

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of
the new standards which may have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for HKFRS 16, the actual
impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards may differ as
the assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further impacts may
be identified before the standards are initially applied in the
Group's interim financial report for the six months ending 30
June 2019. The Group may also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the standards
are initially applied in that financial report.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Re I mER MR (&)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BIESAHAA @ SRIIUARES|R)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(j), currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification
of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor
and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under a
lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no
longer distinguish between finance leases and operating leases.
Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for
all leases in a similar way to current finance lease accounting,
i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee will
recognise and measure a lease liability at the present value
of the minimum future lease payments and will recognise a
corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of
this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and
the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12
months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which
case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of the lease.

BREMBHRELENE 1655 - HE
AN EE 1) FTIREE - ARERESHEE
DERBMEMREREEHE - WREM
ENBRHAELENRIARK - REBEE
REBAFTZBOEE - WIERAEA
RIVEMBES -

BHEBWBREEAF 165K &KX

BEETNAARBHERSEENLEG
A2 - R —BRABF ARG
HEEFE 165 FAABTBRSR
EHERKEHE - AR - XAITTHE
TEZRR - AEARRERARER
EertRE A BNz S RAHEE
ARk BIREAOMSG BB - AHAKR
AREEEENRZREERNER
EaE WHRHERAEEERE] BE -
RFERZEERRBER - AHEARK
ERAEEHEREEHRMELN S
SRERBEEENE  MIFREBEREGI
RN HEEHRARAREEEARELE
MEMEL 2HEMX - ERAIITHRE
% AEAFEENE M @ RAE
AREEEE (AAMA12EAZKAT)
LREBEEEZHE  REZFHEAT
HeRxBEENHEHNIZRGEE
R o

BEMBHRELEANE 16 R T ERFER
SEERBEEABARYE - BE KR
BEARDBEAKEHE) 2asTRIES
%o AR G RAKEREER
BEOEMEN  YRFEXRHEHER
SRR 2K o
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HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group plans to use
the practical expedient to grandfather the previous assessment
of which existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. The
Group will therefore apply the new definition of a lease in
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into on or after the
date of initial application. In addition, the Group plans to elect
the practical expedient for not applying the new accounting
model to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019 and will
not restate the comparative information. As disclosed in note
29(b), at 31 December 2018 the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases amount to
RMB4,783,000 for properties only, the majority of which is
payable either within 1 year after the reporting date. Some
of these amounts may therefore need to be recognised as
lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted. Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16,
the opening balances of lease liabilities and the corresponding
right-of-use assets will be adjusted to RMB8,480,000, after
taking account the effects of discounting, as at 1 January 2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-
use assets, the Group expects that the transition adjustments
to be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be
material. However, the expected changes in accounting policies
as described above could have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements from 2019 onwards.
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Five-Year Group Financial Summary

AFEKEMBGBE

Results

For the year ended 31 December

xi&
BE+-A=t-ALFE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE-\f | ZE—+F —FT-RF —ZT-1F —ZT-WF
RVIB'OOO | RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBBTT | ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Turnover EE< 933,971 = = = =
(Loss) profit attributable to equity NG E )
shareholder of the Company skl (166,462) (16) (26,645) 14,028 (11,041)
(Loss) earnings per share (RMB cents) Sk (EE) BA(ARES)
— Basic —ER (39.72) (0.00) (6.36) 335 (2.63)
Assets and liabilities SEREE
At 31 December nt+=—HA=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“B-0\F | Tt —F-AF —FT-nf —T-RF
RVIB'OO0 | RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBBTT | ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Non-current assets EREEE 1,069,778 | 1,207,738 1,171,339 1,189,656 1,177,505
Current assets LR 8,398,419 | 4,538,291 475417 480,334 480,112
Current liabilities mBEE (4,600,551) | (3,207,752)  (181,107)  (174,629)  (166,568)
Non-current liabilities e =l (4,042,289)| (1,139,613)  (132,609)  (132,608)  (132,609)
Net assets FEE 1,225,357 | 1,398,664 1,333,040 1,362,753 1,358,439
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Particulars of Major Properties

EEYMRFT

Investment Properties BEYME
Attributable Gross floor
interest to area
Project Location Project status the Group (sq.m.)  Primary intended use
rEE REER
1R H BAMRR JeibEL (I5%) FERUAZ
1. Qingdao commercial building  Qingdao, Shandong ~ Completed and commenced leasing 100% 26,507 Commercial
EERE WRES BRIREA A%
2. Harbin commercial building ~ Harbin, Heilongjiang ~ Completed and commenced leasing 100% 10,090  Commercial
REEHE 2EIRME BRI REA Ax
Development Properties MR
Attributable Gross floor
Expected interest to area
Project Location Project status Completion the Group (sq.m.)  Primary intended use
T£E BEER
R it ] BAMRR BRI i3 4 (F5%) FERUAZ
1. Sansheng International  Pingtan, Fuzhou, Fujian Under Development ~ Year of 2021 90% 443,507 Residential/Commercial
Coast (Phase 1)
“RERER(-H)  RREMTE R —E--F Fx/m%
2. Sansheng International  Pingtan, Fuzhou, Fujian To be constructed Year of 2021 90% 187,051 Residential/Commercial
Coast (Phase 2)
SRERER(ZH) RERMTE T T--F ffx/m%
3. The Puyue Bay Zhangaiu, Jinan, Shandong ~ Under Development ~ Year of 2019 80% 204,112 Residential
EHiE WREREL &S —T-hE iz
4. Future City Langaj, Fuzhou, Fujian Under Development ~ Year of 2021 100% 173,193 Residential/Commercial
RIS RERNERIR FE ETF ffe/m%
5 The Puyue Bay City Tingjiang, Fuzhou, Fujian ~ Under Development ~ Year of 2021 28% 258,757 Residential/Commercial
EHER RREMN=T R “E--F ffE/mE
6. Puyue Mansion (Phase ) Changle, Fuzhou, Fujian Under Development ~ Year of 2020 30% 136,435  Residential/Commercial
BHR(—8) BREMNRE FE& —3-%fF frE/mg
7. Yifu Project Shenyang, Liaoning To be constructed - 100% 186,065  Residential/Commercial/
Office
=R FEEG T EE/BRMBLE
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